EDGAROnline

PFSWEB INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/31/14 for the Period Ending 12/31/13

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

505 MILLENNIUM DRIVE

ALLEN, TX 75013

972-881-2900

0001095315

PFSW

7389 - Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified
Software & Programming

Technology

12/31

Powere d By ED‘GA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2014, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20:

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 000-28275

PFSWEB, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaerr)

Delaware 75-283705¢€
(State or other jurisdiction o (I.LR.S. Employet
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
505 Millennium Drive, Allen, Texas 75013
(Address of principal executive office (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
972-881-2900
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlie Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act:
Common Stock, par value $.001 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c0Bé#turities Act. Yes[d No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)%f the Act. Yes [J No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b tiled all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4193
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the registrant was required to filetsteports), and (2) has been subject to suclhyfilin
requirements for the past 90 days. Y&8 No O

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant hasngiied electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapderjng the preceding 12 months (or for such shorte
period that the registrant was required to submitgost such files). YedX] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant’'s knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by nexiee in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendirten
this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlaage accelerated filer, an accelerated filer noa-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting conypan
See definition of “large accelerated filer”, “acesdted filer” and “smaller reporting company” inlRd2b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file O Accelerated file| O

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a Smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar
Indicated by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the) A¢es [ No
The aggregate market value of the voting stock bgldon-affiliates of the registrant as of JuneZm 3 (based on the closing price as reported dy th
National Association of Securities Dealers Autorda@eiotation System) was51,189,540.
At March 2 6, 2014, there were 16,653,008 shardseofegistrant’'s Common Stock issued, $.001 plareva

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The information required by Part Il of this AnnlRé&port, to the extent not set forth herein, i®iporated herein by reference from the registrant’s
definitive proxy statement relating to the annuakting of shareholders, which definitive proxy etaent shall be filed with the Securities and Exgean
Commission within 120 days after the end of thedigear to which this Annual Report relates.




INDEX

Page
PART 1
Item 1. Business 1
Iltem 1A.  Risk Factor 12
ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen 20
Item 2. Properties 20
Item 3. Legal Proceeding 21
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosur 21
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters asuklsPurchases of Equity Securi 22
Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial D 22
Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior 23
ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About MdrRésk 33
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary | 34
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @outing and Financial Disclosu 55
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedur 55
ltem 9B.  Other Informatior 55
PART III
Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate GoaBce 56
ltem 11. Executive Compensatic 56
Iltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagement and Related Shareholder Ma 56
Iltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsDarggttor Independenc 56
Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servi 56
PART IV
Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt 57
Signatures 68

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to “PEBW “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to P FSweb, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, and its subsidiaries; references tad=®” refer to our wholly-owned subsidiaries, PrigriFulfilment Services, Inc., PFS Canada
and PFS Europe; references to “Supplies Distribataefer to our wholly-owned subsidiary Suppliesibutors, Inc. and its subsidiaries;
and references to “Retail Connect” refers to ouralifi-owned subsidiary PFSweb Retail Connect, Inc.




PART |

Iltem 1. Business
General

PFSweb is an international business process owisgyprovider of end-to-end eCommerce solutionsathdr services. PFSweb
provides these solutions and services on a cusgzhtiasis to major brand names and other compaméding to optimize their supply chain
and to enhance their traditional and online busimdsinnels and initiatives. We derive our revefyegroviding a broad range of services as
we facilitate and process individual business tatisns on our clients’ behalf. MarketedrRBESweb’'s End2End eCommefcsolution and
PFSweb Infinite Commerce, or iCommerce, the seswiee offer are organized into the following catégsr

* Digital Marketing

® eCommerce Technolog

®  Order Management & Om-Channel Solution
®  Customer Car

®  Logistics and Fulfillmen

®*  Financial Managemel

®*  Professional Consultin

Our solutions support both direct-to-consumer (“D)f&hd business-to-business (“B2B3les channels. The majority of our clients
the merchants of record for the orders we prodessigh our infrastructure on their behalf. For thelients, we do not own the inventory or
the resulting accounts receivable, but provide enerce solutions and other services for these etiamted assets.

For some of our clients, we are the merchant ainteéor the orders we process through our infrastme. Depending on the terms u
nder these arrangements, we record either produenue or service fee revenue, may own the accoeces/able and inventory and we may
be compensated for all or a portion of our servtbesugh the resulting profit margin. In some cases purchase the inventory as the product
is delivered to our facility. In other situatiorike client retains ownership of inventory in outifidy and we purchase the inventory
immediately prior to each individual customer satagsaction. In all cases, we seek inventory fimanfrom our clients in the form of
extended terms, working capital programs or manketiinds to help offset the working capital requiemts that follow accounts receivable
and inventory ownership.

We are headquartered in Allen, Texas where ourgixecand administrative offices and our primarghteology operations and hosti
facilities are located. We operate state-of-thezalitcenters from our U.S. facility located in &l Texas and from our international facilities
located in Richmond Hill, Ontario, Canada, LiegeJdum and Manila, Philippines. We lease or manageehouse facilities of approximat
1.6 million square feet, many containing highlyamated and state of the art material handling amehecunications equipment in Memphis,
Tennessee, Southaven, Mississippi, Grapevine, T&ielsmond Hill, Ontario, Canada and Liege, Belgiathowing us to provide global
distribution solutions.

PFSWEE'S END2END ECOMMERCE® SOLUTIONS

PFSweb serves as the “brand behind the bré&fm’companies seeking to increase efficienciesremw markets or launch optimized
sales channels. As an eCommerce and business pimassurcer, we offer scalable and cost-effedolations for brand manufacturers,
online retailers, and distributors across a widgesof industry segments. We provide our clienth weamless and transparent solutions to
support their business strategies, allowing thefodas on their core competencies. Leveraging PBSaechnology, expertise and proven
methodologies, we enable clients to develop antbgleew products and implement new business stiegery address new distribution
channels rapidly and efficiently through our optied solutions. Our clients engage us both as aittongspartner to assist them in the design
of a business solution as well as a virtual andsfay infrastructure partner to provide the misstdtical operations required to build and
manage their business solution. Together, we nigtraip our clients define new ways of doing busgeut also provide them the
technology, physical infrastructure and professioesources necessary to quickly implement thesiriess model. We allow our clients to
quickly and dramatically change how they “go-to-kedr”

Each client has a unique business model and usimategic objectives that often require highly ousized solutions. PFSweb suppc
clients in a wide array of industries, includingliéon apparel and accessories, fragrance and bpandycts, consumer packaged goods, t
furnishings and housewares, consumer electronfiise e¢echnology and network connectivity produatsl aviation spare parts. These clients
turn to PFSweb for help in addressing a varietgusiness issues that include eCommerce,
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customer satisfaction and retention, time-defilutgstics, vendor managed inventory and integratsupply chain compression, cost model
realignments, transportation management and irtiena expansion, among others. We also act asstiewtive agent of change, providing
clients the ability to alter their current distritmn model, establish direct relationships with @udtomers, and reduce the overall time and
costs associated with existing distribution charstigltegies. Our clients are seeking solutionswulilbprovide them with dynamic supply
chain and multi-channel marketing efficiencies, lehiltimately delivering a world-class customenges experience.

Our value proposition is to become a seamless,inteljrated extension of our clients’ enterprisgslélivering superior solutions that
drive optimal customer experiences. On behalf eftiftands we serve, we strive to increase and ealsates and market growth, bolster
customer satisfaction and customer retention, aiveé dosts out of the business through operationstachnology related efficiencies. As
both a virtual and a physical infrastructure for olients’ businesses, we embrace their brand gadne strategic objectives. By utilizing our
services, our clients are able to:

Quickly Capitalize on Market Opportunitiedur solutions empower clients to rapidly implemgrgir supply chain and eCommerce
strateg ies and take advantage of opportunitidsowitlengthy integration and implementation effovte have readily available advanced
technology and physical infrastructure that isifdein its design, which facilitates quick intetiom and implementation. The PFSweb
solution is designed to allow our clients to daligensistent quality service as transaction volugresv and also to handle daily and seasonal
peak periods. Through our international locatians, clients can sell their products throughoutwioeld.

Improve the Customer Experiendée enable our clients to provide their customett wihigh-touch, positive buying experience
thereby maintaining and promoting brand loyaltyrdtdgh our use of advanced technology, we can resgmactly to customer inquiries by e-
mail, voice or data communication and assist théth @nline ordering and product information. Weibet we offer our clients a “world-
class” level of service, including 24-hour, seveysta-week, Web-enabled customer care servicersedetailed Customer Relationship
Management (“CRM"yeporting and exceptional order accuracy. We hay@fgant experience in the development of eConueetorefront
that allows us to recommend features and funceéasdy navigated and understood by our clientstaasrs. Our technology platform is
designed to ensure high levels of reliability aastfresponse times for our clients’ customers. Bseaf our technology, our clients benefit
from being able to offer the latest in customer oamication and response conveniences to their gus®

Minimize Investment and Improve Operating Efficieag®ne of the most significant benefits outsourcingvides is the ability to
transform fixed costs into variable costs. By efiating the need to invest in a fixed capital infinasture, our clients’ costs typically become
more directly correlated with volume increasesexlicies. Further, as volume increases drive theadéerfor greater infrastructure or capac
we are able to quickly deploy additional resourd®s.provide services to multiple clients, which lelea us to offer our clients economies of
scale, and resulting cost efficiency, that they matyhave been able to obtain on their own. Adddity, because of the large number of daily
transactions we process, we have been able tdyjiustestments in levels of automation, securityveillance, quality control processes and
transportation carrier interfaces that are typjcalltside the scale of investment that our cliemight be able to cost justify on their own.
These additional capabilities can provide our t¢fighe benefits of enhanced operating performandesticiency, reduced inventory
shrinkage, and expanded customer service options.

Access a Sophisticated Technology Infrastructife.provide our clients with ready access to a sijglated technology infrastructure
that is designed to interface seamlessly with thygstems. We provide our clients with vital prodaetl customer information that can be
immediately available to them on their own system#hrough web based graphic user interfaces felirusiata mining, analyzing sales and
marketing trends, monitoring inventory levels amdfprming other management functions.

We believe our highest value proposition is achiewéen our clients engage our full suite of serwitem all of the categories
included inPFSweb’s End2End eCommeftsolutions. However, we provide our clients with dmportunity to customize their solution by
selecting only certain services from our offeringhila carte fashion if they prefer. We believe ftexibility and willingness to create a
customized solution for each client differentiaisfrom our competition.

Digital Marketing Services

Our team has extensive experience partnering witltlents to help grow their business. We haveeetige in developing strategies to
attract new customers, converting website visitoie actual buyers, and nurturing the relationshifib current customers to increase their
lifetime value. We achieve this through the follagiservices:

Creative ServicedVith a unique understanding of usability and usgregience we can convey our clients’ creative ndema concept
to execution. Our creative solutions are in tunthwur client ’s brand and effectively translate ttients’ voice in the digital market while
engaging customers at every digital touchpoint.




Customer Experienc&/e determine how to optimize the website to enghgeustomers with the brand, drive sales conveysind
offer an ideal customer shopping experience. Camtmakes it their focus to understand the cust@meréds and offer site usability
assessments that will improve the customer expegiegnhance the brand and support revenue goals.

Digital Strategy We offer unique strategic insights and subject enakperts to make absolutely sure that our marfgetpproach
yields the most effective results. Through the efdeehavioral research and analysis, the strategy helps our clients plan, build &
execute a strategy that creates, sustains and-esidlcommunity of actively engaged customers.

Search Engine Optimization (SE®@Ye combine knowledge of SEO best practices withtailkd knowledge of the technology platfc
to maximize the programs’ performance. Our subjedtter experts achieve measurable results by esitegprise tools to identify keyword
opportunities matched to optimal landing pagedess&O efforts, identify on-page and off-page optation opportunities, monitor progress,
and assess the competitive landscape. We provitiettoe strategies and the implementation to achi@yeankings in the search engines,
increase visibility of the brand and drive salesutts.

Search Engine Marketing (SEM)ur certified SEM strategi sts provide cost effeefpaid search marketing campaigns which are
highly focused on increasing conversion and opiimgiad spend. SEM campaigns are designed to fatteacvisitors to the site through paid
keyword advertising, display advertising, retanggtiproduct search and social media advertising. d&elop and execute pay per click
campaigns using tactics such as A/B testing ofteeand landing page testing, along with bidditrgtegies and keyword targeting to
optimize the results.

Affiliate Marketing.We seek the best affiliate partners that fit themldis, implement the program, and manage the ongelatpnships
We develop strategies for the programs and nuth@raffiliate partnerships to ensure relevant ica$f driven to the website to convert into
sales.

Comparison Shopping Engin&¥e have experience creating and managing compastsmpping feeds that will increase brand
visibility in a competitive landscape while drivisgles. We use the comparison shopping engineraddn enhance the search engine
marketing initiatives and power mobile applications

Conversion OptimizationlVe combine industry expertise with best-in-breetht®logy to increase conversion and increase agerag
order size. Our team of experts offers servicamisite merchandising, recommendations, person@izaon-site search, and promotion
management an d support.

Digital Analytics.All of our interactive marketing services are dateven; we look at how the various marketing progseare
performing and determine where investments neéea tmade. We turn data into knowledge and offeghitsinto the ¢ ustomer&ehavior an
create strategies to provide actionable results.

Email Marketing We offer our clients a dynamic 1-to-1 email apptodwt enables sending engaging, personalized toagiach
customer. Our email strategy and execution ses\ace designed to build customer loyalty and geeeevenue. We provide email delivery
services to ensure email is reaching the inboxtewveé established methodologies to test contengmesnd subject lines, as well as drive
email strategy to engage and retain customers.

Social MediaWe engineer social media strategies across multipkforms to encourage interaction and build retegthips, and raise
overall brand awareness. Our strategists leverag®vative technologies to engage the customesugrrelevant content and connect the
customer with the brand.

eCommerce Technology Services

Direct-to-Consumer eCommerce (“DTC"). PFSweb’s EEd# eCommerc&solution for the DTC online channel features Denwzand
eCommerce, a leading third party Software-as-ai€eivSaaS")eCommerce platform. We have fully integrated Dermeaaré with the rest ¢
our world-class technology platform including otheist-of-breed technology partners to create a RbSeference application that provides
our clients with a very high-function DTC onlinest out-of-the-box. We are able to use the PFSwkdrance application as a starting point
to quickly create a completely customized onlimeesfor our DTC clients. Designed specifically 8FC brands, our comprehensive offering
redefines end-to-end eCommerce by enabling resadlied branded consumer goods manufacturers withbility to employ a total
outsourcing solution customized to their particd@ommerce strategy, without the loss of site antircontrol associated with earlier end-to-
end outsourcing solutions.

Business-to-Business eCommerce (“B2B”). PFSwebd2End eCommercesolution for the B2B online channel features our
GlobalMerchant Commercewd?service that provides a complete eCommerce wessittion for our B2B clients. We engage
collaboratively with our clients to design, builthst, and manage fully branded, fully customized fatly integrated eCommerce
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web applications for B2B channels. We offer a braathye of hosting and support plans that can barédli to fit the needs of each client.
Utilizing Microsoft's.NET Technologies and our prigiary GlobalMerchant Commercewdrplatform, we maintain a robust hosting
environment for our hosted client B2B web sites.

Order Management Services

Order Management InterfaceSur order management technology solutions provitkrfiaces that allow for real-time information
retrieval, including information on inventory, sslerders, shipments, delivery, purchase ordershveaise receipts, custom er history,
accounts receivable and credit lines. These solsititwe seamlessly integrated with our web-enahlstbmer contact centers, allowing for the
processing of orders through shopping cart, phfaxxe mail, email, web chat, and other order receipthods. As the information backbone
for our total supply chain solution, order managehservices can be used on a stand-alone basisconjunction with our other business
infrastructure offerings, including customer comtfioancial or distribution services. In additidor the B2B market, our technology platform
provides a variety of order receipt methods thailifate commerce within various stages of the $yppain. Our systems provide the ability
for both our clients and their customers to traekstatus of orders at any time. Our servicesransparent to our clients’ customers and are
seamlessly integrated with our clients’ internadtsyn platforms and web sites. By synchronizingahaegivities, we can capture and provide
critical customer information, including:

®  Statistical measurements critical to creating dityueustomer experience, containing réiate order status, order exceptions, k
order tracking, allocation of product based on tigndf online purchase and business rules, the eattastomer inquiries to
purchases, average order sizes and order respores

®  B2B supply chain management information criticabt@luating inventory positioning, for the purp@éémproving inventory
turns, and assessing product f-through and er-user demanc

®* Reverse logistics information, including customesponse and reason for the return or rotationafymrt and desired customer
action;

® Detailed marketing information about what was soid to whom it was sold, by location and prefereace

*  Web traffic reporting showing the number of vig“hits”) received, areas visited, and products and infoonatquestec

Technology CollaborationlVe have created a suite of technology servicessthable buyers and suppliers to fully automate thei
business transactions within their supply chaimgishe order management interfaces. Our collalmratichnologies operate in an open
systems environment and feature the use of indssarydard XML and SOA web services, enabling custedheCommerce solutions with
minimal changes to a client’s systems or our EmieeResource Planning (“ERP”) systems. The raesualtfaster implementation process. We
also support information exchange methods suchS#s KTP, SFTP, EDI, MQ Series, ALE, HTTP, and HTTPS

Information Managemen®We have the ability to communicate with and transféormation to and from our clients through a wid
variety of technology services, including real-timeb service enabled data interfaces, file transfethods and electronic data interchange.
Our systems are designed to capture, store analari@ally forward to our clients critical inforrmiah regarding customer inquiries and
orders, product shipments, inventory status (fangxe, levels of inventory on hand, on backordempuorchase order and inventory due dates
to our warehouse), product returns and other inftion. Our systems are capable of providing o@ntd with customer inventory and order
information for use in analyzing sales and markgtiends and introducing new products. We alsor @ffistomized reports and data analyses
based upon specific client needs to assist thetmein budgeting and business decision process.

Customer Care Services

Customer Relationship Managememtrough our web enabled CRM platform, called iComzaeAgent (“iCA”), our unique
technology leverages the client’s website investrbgrwrapping CRM capabilities around the existimgpsite. Through iCA, agents provide
customer service functions, such as placing orddexking order status, facilitating returns, getige“voice of the customer” information,
initiating upsell and cross sell, and managing lesicams. iCA is fully integrated into the clientigeb front end and PFSweb’s data analytics
platform and order processing system, allowing¥idibility into customer history and customer lenThrough each of our customer touch-
points, information can be analyzed and processedurrent or future use in business evaluatioogpct effectiveness and positioning, and
supply chain planning. Through this fully integatsystem, we are able to provide a complete custoare solution.

Customer AssistancAn important feature of evolving commerce is théigtfor the customer to speak with a li ve custarservice
representative. Our experience has been that marsumers tell us they visited the web locationrifmrmation, but not all of those
consumers chose to place their order online. Ositocuer care services utilize features that integraice, e-mail, standard
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mail, fax, data and Internet chat communicationggpond to and handle customer inquiries. Ouiocust care representatives answer
various questions, acting as virtual representatdfeour clients’ organization, regarding ordetissashipping, billing, returns and product
information and availability as well as a variefyother questions. Our wednabled customer care technology identifies eastomer contac
automatically and routes it to the appropriate @msr care representative who is individually trdiirethe clients’ business and products.

Our webenabled customer care centers are flexibly desigondtat our customer care representatives carléhaitder several differe
clients and products in a shared agent environntteeteby creating economy of scale benefits foralients, or through a highly customized
dedicated agent support model that provides th@ateé customer experience and brand reinforcement.

Quality Monitoring.Quiality is essential in our client solutions. Apn@sentatives of our clients, our customer careesgmt atives must
adhere to the unique quality standards of eachtcMye continually monitor the quality of our custer care representatives against each
client quality standard and use the results toigdmagent-level feedback to continually improve ¢hetomer care experience. Clients may
participate in the quality process by remotelyelishg to calls, assisting in the grading of recdrdalls, and providing ongoing direction to
improve quality standards.

Customer Self-Help/ith the need for efficiency and cost optimizatfon many of our clients, we have integrated intdvacvoice
response (“IVR”) as another option for customertaots. IVR creates an “electronic workforce” wititwal agents that can assist customers
with vital information at any time of the day oght. IVR allows for our clients’ customers to degkractively with our system to handle
basic customer inquiries, such as account balamder status, shipment status, catalog requestdupt and price inquiries, and routine order
entry for established customers. The inclusiol® In our service offering allows us to offer a teffective way to handle high volume, low
complexity calls.

Logistics and Fulfillment Services

Advanced Distribution Facilities and Infrastructuen integral part of our solution is the warehousamgl distribution of inventory
either owned by our clients or owned by us . Weently have approximately 1.6 million square fekteased or managed warehouse space
domestically and internationally to store and pssceur own and our clients’ inventory. We receiweentory in our distribution centers,
verify shipment accuracy, unpack and audit packéa@socess that includes spot-checking a percerghthe inventory to validate piece
counts and check for damages that may have occdurig shipping, loading and unloading). Upon estuwe inspect for other damages or
defects, which may include checking fabric, stibtchand zippers for soft goods, or ‘testing’ powpreapabilities for electronic items as well
as product specifications. We generally stock &e svithin one business day of unloading. We pielck and ship customer orders and can
provide customized packaging, customized monogramgnmersonalized laser engraving, capabilitiesigi olume shrink packaging, inse
and promotional literature for distribution withstamer orders. For many clients, we provide gifaping services including line level
gifting, customized gift-wrapping paper, ribbonftdiox and gift-messaging.

Our distribution facilities contain computerizedtstion equipment, highly mobile pick-to-light carpowered material handling
equipment, scanning and bar-coding systems andnat#ol conveyors and Ime scales. Our distribution complexes includessaeladvance
technology enhancements, such as radio frequenbpaéogy in product receiving processing to enswn@uracy, as well as an automated
package routing and a pick-to-light paperless ofdiéiiment system. Our advanced distribution gyst provide us with the capability to
warehouse an extensive number of stock keeping (BKUs), ranging from large high-end electron@csmall cosmetic compacts. Our
facilities are flexibly configured to process B2Bdasingle pick DTC orders from the same centrahtion.

In addition to our advanced distribution systems, mick-to-light carts, stationary pick-to-lightesrs and conveyor system controls
provide real time productivity reporting, thereliypyiding our management team with the tools to enpnt productivity standards. This
combination of computer-controlled equipment pregithe seamless integration of our pick-to-liglstemns and mass sortation capabilities.
This unique combination of technologies ensureh bigler accuracy for each and every customer order.

We are able to take advantage of a variety of shipand delivery options, which range from next dayvice to zone skipping, to
optimize transportation costs. Our facilities aggtems are equipped with multi-carrier functionaléllowing us to integrate with all leading
package carriers and provide a comprehensive fraigthtransportation management offering. We affgerse logistics management
services, including issuing return authorizatiaesrn carrier shipping labels, receipt of prodecgditing customer accounts and disposition
of returned product.

Our domestic facilities provide security trained lanforcement professionals from our security headgrs in Memphis, Tennessee
and Southaven, Mississippi. Continual validatiosugas that we employ the latest in security prazseasd procedures to further enhance our
surveillance and detection capabilities.




Facility Operations and Managemefur facilities management service o ffering incleidéstribution facility design and optimization,
business process reengineering and ongoing staffidgnanagement. Along with our operations in M&ppi and Tennessee, we also
manage facilities on behalf of two of our clierdas: aircraft parts distribution center in Grapevifiexas and a DTC facility in Memphis,
Tennessee for a major retailer. Our expertise apluchain management, logistics and customer-icefullfillment operations extends
through our management of client-owned facilitresulting in cost reductions, process improvemantstechnology-driven efficiencies.

Kitting and Assembly Service3ur expanded kitting and assembly services enablelients to reduce the time and costs associated
with managing multiple s uppliers, warehousing hawsl light manufacturing partners. As a singlerseyprovider, we provide the advantage
of convenience, accountability and speed. Ounkjtind assembly services include light assembégialized kitting and supplier-consigned
inventory hub either in our distribution facilities co-located elsewhere. We also offer customiiggd manufacturing and supplier
relationship management (“SRM").

We will work with clients to re-sequence certaipgly chain activities to aid in an inventory posipment strategy. We can provide
kitting and assembly services and build-to-stodu#ands of units daily to stock in a Just-in-Tiffl#T(") environment. This service, for
example, can entail the procurement of packagingmnads includi ng retail boxes, foam inserts ant-atatic bags. These raw material
components may be shipped to us from domestic erseas manufacturers, and we will build the finisB&Us to stock for the client. Also
included is the custom configuration of high-enihtars and servers. This strategy allows manufacsuio make a smaller investment in base
unit inventory while meeting changing customer dechor highly customizable products.

Our standard capabilities include: build-to-ordmrild-to-stock, expedited orders, passive and aalectrostatic discharge (“ESD")
controls, product labeling, serial number genemgtinarking and/or capture, lot number generatiesetitagging, bill of materials (‘BOM9r
computer automated design (“CAD”") engineering cleapigpcessing, SKU-level pricing and billing, maraiéeting and metrics reporting, first
article approval processes, and comprehensivetygalntrols.

Kitting and inventory hub services enable clieotsallapse supply chains into the minimal stepsssary to prepare product for
distribution to any channel, including wholesal@ss merchant retail, or direct to consumer. Cliantfonger have to employ multiple
providers or require suppliers to consign multipkentory caches for each channel . We offer oients$ the opportunity to consolidate
operations from a channel standpoint, as well@® fa geographic perspective. Our integrated, glioffatmation systems and international
locations support business needs worldwide.

Product Management and Inspection Servivés.also operate a coupon management system andcprodnagement program.
Coupons are managed and activated by a uniqué sender, thus significantly reducing fraudulentity. Our capabilities also extend into
salvage operations, allowing our clients to reclaatuable raw materials and components from discoat or obsolete inventory.

We operate a test and repair center where we §snapect items for cosmetic defects. These itamsput through rigorous testing
that includes: functionality, durability, accessamgpection and packaging. Items that pass thmtgate repackaged and resold with a noted
exception of “open-box” merchandise. Items thdttfee inspection are disassembled and working Spans are saved for future use in
repairs.

High Compliance Distribution Related to Food ands@etic ProductsNe also operate an American Institute of BakerdB"Aand
the Food and Drug Administration (“F.D.A.”) compiigfacility, which adheres to the Consolidated 8tads for Inspection along with
regulatory developments required by the F.D.A. FBafety Modernization Act and other industry basicfices. Adherence to these stand
resulted in the facility scoring a “Superior” rajifrom the AIB audit and inspection in 2013.

Financial Management Services

Our financial services are divided into two majoeas: 1) billing, credit, collection and cash aggiion services for B2B clients and 2)
fraud review, chargeback management and proceasihgettiement credit card services for DTC clients

Business-to-Business Financial ManagemEnt.B2B clients, we offer full-service accountsei®able management and collection
capabilities, including the ability to generatetomsized computer-generated inv oices in our cliemses. We assist clients in reducing
accounts receivable and days sales outstandingg wimimizing costs associated with maintainingrashouse collections staff. We offer
electronic credit services in the format of EDI af/dL. communications direct from our clients to theendors, suppliers and retailers.

Direct-to-Consumer Financial Managemehtr DTC clients, we offer secure credit card pregesrelated services for orders made
a client web site or through our customer contaaoter. We offer manual credit card order revievamadditional level of
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fraud protection. We also calculate sales taxesgdgand services taxes or value added taxes, litapfe, for numerous taxing authorities i
on a variety of products. Using third-party leadadpge fraud protection services and risk managesyatems, we can offer high levels of
security and reduce the level of risk for cliemtisactions.

Professional Consulting Services

As part of the tailored solution for our clientsg wffer a full team of experts specifically desitgthto focus on our clients’ businesses.
Team members play a consultative role, providingstictive evaluation, analysis and recommendafionthe client’s business. This team
creates customiz ed solutions and devises plahsvithéncrease efficiencies and produce benefitsthe client when implemented.

Comprised of industry experts from top-tier consiglfirms and industry market leaders, our teamrofessional consultants provides
client service focus and eCommerce, customer tagistics and distribution expertise. They havdtksdlutions for Fortune 1000 and Global
2000 market leaders in a wide range of industinesdyding multi-channel retailers, apparel, teclogyl, telecomm unications, cosmetics,
aviation, housewares, high-value collectibles, 8pgrgoods, pharmaceuticals and several more. Fogas the evolving infrastructure needs
of major corporations and their business initiagiveur team has a solid track record providing altimg services in the areas of interactive
marketing eCommerce, supply chain managementjldiibn and fulfillment, technology interfacing,distics and customer support.

SELLER SERVICES FINANCIAL MODELS
Service Fee Model

We refer to the standard PFS seller services finhnwodel as the “ Service Fee” model. In this mpder clients own the inventory
and are the merchants of record and engage usvaprvarious business outsourcing services inaumd their business operations. We
provide ecommerce website services, inventory addrananagement, customer service, payment proggssid operations reports such as
product sales, sales tax, and inventory managerapatts. In this model, we provide infrastructunel dervices and the clients are respon:
for all financial operations and reporting relatedhe sales transactions.

The Service Fee model is designed to generate nsafwi our clients consistent with other retaili@rsur clients’ product category and
provide bottom line financial results for our cliersimilar to other retailers in their space. Wgoré service fee revenues from clients in this
model in our traditional PFSweb service fee segment

Agent (Flash) Financial Model

As an additional service, we offer an “Agent” madm®l “Flash”model, in which our clients maintain ownershiplod product inventol
stored at our locations. When a customer ordergribduct from our clients, a “flash” sale transaotpasses product ownership to us for each
ord er and we in turn immediately re-sell the prido the customer. The “flaslivnership exchange establishes us as the merchaetord
which enables us to use our existing merchantsirinature to process sales to end customers, reigtivé need for clients to establish these
business processes internally, but permitting tteenontrol the sales process to end customersidmiodel, based on the terms of our cul
client arrangements, we record product revenuefnaist of product revenue as a component of sefeie revenue in our consolidated
statement of operations.

Retail Financial Model

In addition to the Service Fee and the Agent moaetsalso offer a “Retail” model. Under the Retaibdel, a PFSweb subsidiary
purchases inventory from the client. In the Rataldel, we place the initial and replenishment pasehorders with the client and take
ownership of the product upon delivery to our fiaagil

Because we are the product owner as well as thehraetr of record, we work closely with the clieniplan sales and promotional
activities. Under the Retail model, depending uffenproduct category and sales characteristicsnaerequire the client to provide product
price protection as well as product purchase payteems, right of return, and obsolescence protection apprtptiathe product sales prof
as well as potential reimbursement for uncolleetitiilstomer accounts receivable balances. Sincaiwbase and own the inventory and
accounts receivable, this business model may regignificant working capital requirements for whige have credit available either
through credit terms provided by our clients oremsknior credit facilities. Depending on the teghsur client arrangements in the Retail
model, we record either: 1) product revenue as@poment of product revenue, or 2) product reverai@hcost of product revenue as a
component of service fee revenue in our consolidatatement of operations.
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The costs of all standard PFSweb services normdlgd on a transaction basis under the Servicenk@gel, as well as certain credit
risks, may be covered by the selling margin undemRetail model arrangement. The bottom line firgmesults for our client should be
similar to the financial benefits from the retdilamnel, although unlike the traditional retail chel our clients generally control the
presentation and branding of the web site and ditheacustomer data from the eCommerce activities.

In general, we use our Retail model to enable oypp$es Distributors subsidiary to serve as a dldisiributor of printer supplies for
Ricoh Infoprint Solutions Company (“IPS”), a wholbywned subsidiary of Ricoh Company Ltd. (hereafééerred to collectively as “Ricol”
In this model, the pro duct revenues are repontexlir Business and Retail Connect segment.

INDUSTRY INFORMATION AND COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE
Industry Overview

Business activities in the public and private sectmntinue to operate in an environment of rapahmhological advancement,
increasing competition and continuous pressurefiyéve operating and supply chain efficiency whidgereasing costs. We currently see the
following trends within the industry:

®*  Manufacturers strive to restructure their supplgink to maximize efficiency and reduce costs ihl&#2B and DTC markets, and
to create a variableest supply chain able to support the multiplequerineeds of each of their initiatives, includiragitional an
electronic commerce

® Companies in a variety of industries seek outsograis a method to address one or more businessfumthat are not within
their core business competencies, to reduce opgredists or to improve the speed or cost of impleat®n.

* Retailers, both traditional and e-commerce onlytrga with end to end providers to provide a tugnkelution to support their e-
commerce channels. Providers with a global presenavide additional value to companies pursuingngarnational expansion
strategy.

Supply Chain Management Trend

As companies maintain focus on improving their besses and balance sheet financial ratios, signifiefforts and investments
continue to be made identifying ways to maximizppy chain efficiency and extend supply chain peses. Working capital financ ing,
vendor managed inventory, supply chain visibilibfteare solutions, distribution channel skippingedt to consumer eCommerce sales
initiatives, and complex upstream supply chainatmkative technology are products that manufactigeek to help them achieve greater
supply chain efficiency.

A key business challenge facing many manufactuedsretailers as they evaluate their supply chificiency is in determining how
the trend toward increased direct-to-customer lassimctivity will impact their traditional B2B afidfC commerce business models. Order
management and small package fulfilment and distion capabilities are becoming increasingly int@ior processes as this trend evolves.
We believe manufacturers will look to outsourceith@n-core competency functions to support thiglified business model. We believe
companies will continue to strategically plan foe impact that eCommerce and other new technoldggrecements will have on their
traditional commerce business models and theitiegitechnology and infrastructure capabilities.

Manufacturers, as buyers of materials, are als@&img new business practices and policies on shgiplier partners to shift the norr
supply chain costs and risks associated with irorgrawnership away from their own balance sheétsotgh techniques like Vendor
Managed Inventory or Consigned Inventory Prograi@$_"), manufacturers are asking their suppliessagart of the supplier selection
process, to provide capabilities where t he mariufacneed not own, or even possess, inventory fwithe exact moment that unit of
inventory is required as a raw material componeiivioshipping to a customer. To be successfublfbparties, business models such as these
often require a sophisticated collection of tecbgatal capabilities that allow for complete intetipa and collaboration of the information
technology environments of both the buyer and sapgdfor example, for an inventory unit to arrivelse precise required moment in the
manufacturing facility, it is necessary for the Mé#arcturing Resource Planning systems of the matwfarcto integrate with the CRM syste
of the supplier. When hundreds of supplier partagesinvolved, this process can become quite cotgoie technologically challenging.
Buyers and suppliers are seeking solutions thitei’KML based protocols and traditional EDI starti¥ato ensure an open systems platform
that promote easier technology integration in thedkaborative solutions.

8




Outsourcing Trend

In response to growing competitive pressures actthigogical innovations, we believe many comparieth large and small, are
focusing their critical resources on the core campees of their business and utilizing eCommenrzklausiness process outsourcing to
accelerate their business plans in a cost-effeatiener and perform narere business functions. Outsourcing can provideynkay benefits
including the ability to:

®*  Enter new business markets or geographic areadlya

* Increase flexibility to meet changing business dtmas and demand for products and servi
®*  Enhance customer satisfaction and gain competiivantage

®*  Reduce capital and personnel investments and cofived investments to variable cos

®* Improve operating performance and efficiency;

®  Capitalize on skills, expertise and technologyasfructure that would otherwise be unavailablexpeasive given the scale of t
business

Typically, many outsourcing service providers areused on a single function, such as informatichrielogy, call center managem:s
credit card processing, warehousing or packageetgli This focus creates several challenges forpaomies looking to outsource more than
one of these functions, including the need to mamagltiple outsourcing service providers, to shiafermation with service providers and to
integrate that information into their internal ysts. Additionally, the delivery of these multipkengices must be transparent to the customer
and enable the client to maintain brand recognitiot customer loyalty. Furthermore, traditional coence outsourcers are frequently
providers of domestic-only services versus intéomat solutions. As a result, companies requiritabgl solutions must establish additional
relationships with other outsourcing patrties.

Another vital point for major brand name comparsiesking to outsource is the protection of theindraVhen looking for an
outsourcing partner to provide infrastructure gohs, brand name companies must find a companycraprovide the same quality
performance and superior experience their customarsct from their brands. Working with an outsingartner requires finding a partner
that can maintain the consistency of their branaige; which is one of the most valuable intangilskets that recognized brand name
companies possess.

Competition

We face competition from many different sourceseeling upon the type and range of services reqiiesta potential client. Many
other companies offer one or more of the same @swive provide on an individual basis. Our comgetiinclude vertical outsourcers, which
are companies that offer a single function solytguch as call centers, public warehouses or ccadit processors. We o ccasionally compete
with transportation logistics providers, known liretindustry as 3PL’s and 4PL’s (third or fourthtgdogistics providers), who offer product
management functions as an ancillary service tio gignary transportation services. We also compej@inst other eCommerce and business
process outsourcing providers, who perform vargersices similar to our solution offerings. Additadly, as our Digital Marketing Services
solution continues to grow, we see competition fagencies providing commerce strategy and systegriation services.

In many instances, we compete with the in-houseadipes of our potential clients themselves. Oanaaliy, the operations
departments of potential clients believe they ocarfiqgum the same services we do, at similar quiditgls and costs, while others are reluctant
to outsource business functions that involve dicestomer contact. We cannot be certain we wiklble to compete successfully against t
or other competitors in the future.

Although many of our competitors offer one or mof@ur services, we believe our primary competitidvantage is our ability to off
a full array of customized services markete@BSweb’s End2End eCommefcsolutions, thereby eliminating any need for ouemds to
coordinate these services from many different gterd. We believe we can differentiate ourselvesfisring our clients a very broad range
eCommerce and business process services that gddresany cases, the entire value chain, from dent@adelivery.
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We also compete on the basis of many other impbatdditional factors, including:

e  operating performance and reliabili

®  ease of implementation and integrati

* experience of the people required to successfulliyedficiently design and implement solutio
®  experience operating similar solutions dynamice

® |eading edge technology capabiliti

® global reach; an

®  price.

We believe we can compete favorably with respeatany of these factors. However, the market forsmuvices is competitive and
continually evolving, and we may not be able to pete successfully against current and future coitopet

COMPANY INFORMATION
Clients and Marketing

Our target clients include traditional retailerslioe retailers and leading technology and consugneds brands looking to quickly and
efficiently implement or enhance business initiasivadapt their go-to-market strategies, or intcechew products, programs or geographies,
without the burden of modifying or expanding thieichnology, customer care, supply chain and lagistifrastructure. Our solutions are
applicable to a multitude of industries and compgmes and we have provided solutions for such congs as:

Procter & Gamble (consumer packaged goods), L'Qirédlth & beauty), LEGO Brand Retail (toys), TMhxx (apparel and home
fashion), Columbia Sportswear (active outdoor appabiageo (premium beverages), Roots Canada(apgharel), BCBGMAXAZRIA (high
fashion), Ricoh (printer supplies), Xerox (printared printer supplies), Hawker Beechcraft Corpilifies management and time-definite
logistics supporting parts distribution) among mattyers.

We target potential clients through an extensivegrated marketing program comprised of a variégirect marketing techniques,
email marketing initiatives, trade event participat search engine marketing, public relationsjadonedia and a sophisticated outbound tele-
sales lead genera tion model. We have also dewtigipbal business development methodology whiamwedlus to effectively showcase our
various eCommerce and business process outsowsalttipns and products. We also pursue strategiketiag alliances with consulting
firms, software manufacturers and other logistics/jglers to increase market awareness and gerrefateals and customer leads.

Because of the highly complex nature of the sohgtizwe provide, our clients demand significant cotapee and experience from a
variety of different business disciplines during gales cycle. As such, we utilize a selected mewfaur senior executive team to lead the
design and proposal development of each poterdialalient we choose to pursue. The senior execigisapported by a select group of
highly experienced individuals from our professioservices group with specific industry knowleddear experience with, the solutions
development process. We employ a team of highigechimplementation managers whose responsibilitieside the oversight and
supervision of client projects and maintaining hligiels of client satisfaction during the trangitiorocess between the various stages of the
sales cycle and steady state operations.

Technology

We maintain advanced management information sysaamdiave automated key business functions usiligepneal-time or batch
systems. These systems enable us to provide infameoncerning sales, inventory status, custoragments and other operations essential
for us and our clients to efficiently manage elesic commerce and supply chain business programssydtems are designed to scale ra
to handle the transaction processing demands afl@nts and our growth.

We employ technology from a select group of vendeos example, we deploy IBM e-servers and netvgoikters in appropriate
models to run web site functions as well as ordanagement and distribution functions. Our netwa&kbone is powered by Cisco, who
provides network connectivity and network secusityutions for our worldwide locations. We utilizeedya Communication for telephone
switch and call center management functions, antévact with customers via voice, e-mail or clfataya Communi cation technology also
allows us to share web pages between customersuarsgrvice representatives. We have the abilityaiesmit and receive voice, data and
video simultaneously on a single network connectitoa customer to more effectively serve that austofor our client. Clients’ interest in
using this technology stems from its ability taallshoppers to consult with

10




known experts in a way the customer chooses miputchasing. Our sophisticated computer-telephiotegration has been accomplished by
combining systems software from IBM and Avaya Comination together with our own application develamn We use Verizon Business
for our private enterprise network and AT&T as g distance carrier. We use Oracle’s J.D. Edwasdthe software provider for the
primary ERP applications used in our operationaharand financial areas. We use Dematic Materiatgllihg Automation for our automat
order selection, automated conveyor and “pick-gbli (inventory retrieval) systems, and wirelesarster guns for our warehouse radio
frequency applications. Our Warehouse Managemeste8y(“WMS”) and Distribution Requirements Plann{fiDRP") system have been
developed in-house to meet the varied unique remeénts of our vertical markets. Both the WMS andPléRe tightly integrated to both the
North American and European deployments of our Bdward’ system.

Many internal infrastructures are not sufficienstgport the explosive growth in e-business, e-gtatices, supply chain compression,
distribution channel realignment and the correspandemand for real-time information necessarystoategic decision-making and product
fulfillment. To address this need, we have cre&@E8web’s End2End eCommefgalatform to enable companies with little or no eQoence
infrastructure to speed their time to market andimize resource investment and risk, and to allbwampanies involved to improve the
efficiency of their supply chain.

Using the various components of our collaboratemrhhology suite, we can assist our clients in gasiégrating their web sites or ERP
systems to our systems for real-time web serviedled transaction processing without regard foir therdware platform or operating
system. This high-level of systems in tegratioovafi our clients to automatically process orderstamer data and other eCommerce
information. We also can track information sentisoby the client as it moves through our systentérsame manner a carrier would track a
package throughout the delivery process. Our systmble us to track, at a detailed level, infoiomateceived, transmission timing, any
errors or special processing required and informnagient back to the client.

We provide technology interfaces to our back-offipplications including our customized Oracle EBwards order management and
fulfillment application. We utilize IBM® Sterling BB Integrator (“Sl”) as our technology platform fénterprise Application Integration with
our clients and clients’ trading partners. With\8& have greatly increased our ability to quickésidn and deploy customized B2B and DTC
eCommerce solutions for our clients by utilizingphust business process modeling tool and a higgdiable operating infrastructure. This
platform facilitates the efficient and secure exxdof electronic business transactions/documardsiide variety of formats (i.e. XML,

X.12 EDI, delimited text, IDOCS) and communicatjgmotocols (i.e. FTP/SFTP, AS2/HTTP/HTTPS, AS1 SMIVE) Series and SOA Web
Services).

We have invested in advanced telecommunicatiomapater telephony, electronic mail and messagingpnaated fax technology, IVR
technology, barcode scanning, wireless technolfiiggt optic network communications and automateiriory management systems. We
have also developed and utilize telecommunicatiecisnology that provides for automatic customelrresiognition and customer profile
recall for inbound customer service representatives

The primary responsibility of our systems developtieam of IT professionals is directed at impletimgncustom solutions for new
clients and maintaining existing client relationshiOur development team can also produce proprisyatems infrastructure to expand our
capabilities in circumst ances where we cannothmse standard solutions from commercial providaies.also utilize temporary and/or
contract resources when needed for additional égpac

Our information technology operations and infragtinee are built on the premise of reliability amdlability. We maintain diesel
generators and un-interruptible power supply eqeipinto provide constant availability to computesirss, call centers and warehouses.
Multiple internet service providers and redundaabwervers provide for a high degree of availagbititweb sites that interface with our
systems. Capacity planning and upgrading is perdrregularly to allow for quick implementation afw clients and avoid time-consuming
infrastructure upgrades that could slow growthgale the event of a disastrous situation, we h#see a disaster recovery plan that provides
geographically separated and comparably equippeedogaters that are able to recover stored daaéasonable and effective manner.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 1g8@@loyees, of which approximately 970 were locatetthe United States. We
have never suffered an interruption of business @sult of a labor dispute. We consider our refethip with our employees to be good. In
the U.S., Canada and Philippines, we are not § padny collective bargaining agreements and wdileEuropean subsidiaries are not a
party to a collective-bargaining agreement, theyraguired to comply with certain rules agreed uppmnepresentatives of their industry
(logistics) and unions.

Our success in recruiting, hiring and training &argimbers of skilled employees and obtaining latgabers of hourly employees and
temporary staff during peak periods for distribntand call center operations is critical to outligbio provide high quality distribution and
support services. Call center representatives atdbaition personnel receive feedback on theifqgrerance
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on a regular basis and, as appropriate, are revegyfior superior performance or given additionaining. Generally, our clients provide
specific product training for our customer serviepresentatives and, in certain instances, orchet personnel to provide specific technical
support. To maintain good employee relations armditomize employee turnover, we strive to offer gaatitive pay, hire primarily full-time
employees who are eligible to receive a full ranflemployee benefits, and provide employees wigaglvisible career paths.

Internet Access to Reports

We maintain an Internet website, www.pfsweb.comr. @nual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, and current
reports on Form 8-K (and amendments, if any, te¢heports filed or furnished pursuant to Secti®@)lLor 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) are made available, free of chargeubh the investor relations section of this webai soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnigtto, the Securities and Exchange Com mission.ififtgmation on this website is not
incorporated in this report.

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal, state, local and foremmsumer protection laws, including laws protegtime privacy of our customers’
personally identifiable information and other nawbfic information and regulations prohibiting unfand deceptive trade practices.
Furthermore, the growth and demand for online commbas and may continue to result in more stringensumer protection laws that
impose additional compliance burdens and greatgalfies on online companies. Moreover, there igad to ward regulations requiring
companies to provide consumers with greater inftionaegarding, and greater control over, how tpeirsonal data is used, and requiring
notification when unauthorized access to such detars. For example, many states currently requer® notify each of our customers who
are affected by any data security breach in whichraauthorized person, such as a computer hadi&ins such customer’s name and one or
more of the customer’s social security number,atitvlicense number, credit or debit card numbestber similar personal information. In
addition, several jurisdictions, including foreigountries, have adopted privacy-related laws thstrict or prohibit unsolicited email
promotions, commonly known as “spam,” and that isgsignificant monetary and other penalties folations. One such law, the CAN-
SPAM Act of 2003 and the recent anti-spam legistapassed in Canada impose complex, burdensomeftamdambiguous requirements in
connection with our sending commercial email to customers and potential customers. Moreover, ieffomt to comply with these laws,
Internet service providers may increasingly blaagitimate marketing emails. These consumer prated¢tiws may become more stringent in
the future and could result in substantial comgi@aoosts and could interfere with the conduct aflusiness.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and operatingulés could be adversely affected by any or alheffollowing factors, in which event
the trading price of our common stock could de¢lared you could lose part or all of your investment

General Risks Related to Our Business

Our business and future growth depend on our contéd access to bank and commercial financing. An eni&in or recessed economy
may negatively impact our business, results of ggems, financial condition or liquidity.

Our business and future growth currently dependwrability to access bank, vendor and commertiablof credit. We currently
depend on line of credit facilities provided by ieais banks and commercial lenders that providedmoaggregate of up to approximately357
million in available financing as of December 3013. These lines of credit currently mature ataasidates through March 2016 and are
secured by substantially all our assets. Our ghidittenew our lines of credit depends upon varfagtors, including the availability of bank
loans and commercial credit in general, as wetlasfinancial condition and prospects. Therefore,oannot guarantee that these credit
facilities will continue to be available beyond itheurrent maturities on reasonable terms or aiGallr inability to renew or replace our credit
facilities or find alternative financing would maitdly adversely affect our business, financial dition, operating results and cash flow. An
uncertain or recessed economy could also adversglgct our customers’ operations or ability to ntaiim liquidity, which may negatively
impact our business and results of operations.

We anticipate incurring significant expenses in tliereseeable future, which may reduce our abilityachieve or maintain profitability.

To reach our business growth objectives, we manease our operating and marketing expenses, assvelipital expenditures. To
offset these expenses, we will need to generatiéi@utl profitable business. If our revenue groleer than either we anticipate or our
clients’ projections indicate, or declines, orifr@perating and marketing expenses exceed oucttfmns or cannot be reduced to an
appropriate level, we may not generate sufficienenue to be profitable or be able to susta imenease
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profitability on a quarterly or annual basis in to&ure. Additionally, if our revenue grows slowban either we anticipate or our clients’
projections indicate, we may incur unnecessargdundant costs and our operating results couldibersely affected.

We have a large investment in fulfillment and comjeu technology equipment as well as long term builglleases. A reduction in our
clients’ ecommerce business or our inability to re@se service fee revenue from new or existingraecould negatively impact our
operating results.

We seek to maintain sufficient capacity in ourifinfent operations and computer technology systenssipport growth in our clients’
business and service those clients during seagohahe increases. A reduction in our clients’ besgor our inability to increase service fee
revenue from new or existing clients could resulan underutilization in our invested assets. Faurttore, we have three building leases with
lease terms long enough to secure competitive ledss, but which require early termination payraémthe event we elect to terminate the
leases prior to their scheduled expiration, thamitiihng our flexibility to reduce fixed capacity nesponse to reduced revenue.

We operate with significant levels of indebtedna@ssl are required to comply with certain financiaha non-financial covenants; we are
required to maintain a minimum level of subordinaddoans to our subsidiary Supplies Distributors; dnve have guaranteed certain
indebtedness and obligations of our subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2013, our total credit fa@btioutstanding, including debt, capital lease altibgs and our vendor accounts
payable related to financing of Ricoh product ineey was approximately $21 million. Certain of ttredit facilities have maturity dates in
calendar year 2015 or beyond, but are classifiemiagnt liabilities in our consolidated financ&atements given the underlying nature of the
credit facility. We cannot provide assurance thateyedit facilities will be renewed by the lendipgrties. Additionally, these credit facilities
include both financial and non-financial covenantany of which also include cross default provisiapplicable to other agreements. These
covenants also restrict our ability to transferdsimmong our various subsidiaries, which may aeleeffect the ability of our subsidiaries to
operate their businesses or comply with their retdpeloan covenants. We cannot provide assurdratente will be able to maintain
compliance with these covenants. A non-renewahuwefinder or acceleration of any of our crediilfées could have a material adverse
impact upon our business and financial conditiaraddition we have provided $3.5 million of suboated indebtedness to Supplies
Distributors as of December 31, 2013. The maximewell of this subordinated indebtedness to Supplisgibutors that may be provided
without approval from our lenders is $5.0 millidrhe restrictions on increasing this amount witheater approval may limit our ability to
comply with certain loan covenants or further gramwd develop Supplies Distributors’ business. Weetgaranteed most of the indebtedness
of Supplies Distributors. Furthermore, we are adtligl to repay any over-advance made to Suppligstitors by its lenders to the extent
Supplies Distributors is unable to do so. We hdse guaranteed Retail Connex$2.0 million credit line, as well as certain @fvendor trad
payables.

We are dependent on our key personnel, and we rieddre and retain skilled personnel to sustain obusiness.

Our performance is highly dependent on the condraezvices of our executive officers and other gessonnel, the loss of any of
whom could materially adversely affect our businéssddition, we need to attract and retain ottighly-skilled, technical and managerial
personnel for whom there is intense competition.dAtenot assure you we will be able to attract ataim the personnel neces sary for the
continuing growth of our business. Our inabilityatitract and retain qualified technical and managpersonnel could materially adversely
affect our ability to maintain and grow our busissgnificantly.
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We are subject to risks associated with our intetioaal operations.

We currently operate a distribution complex in lagegelgium with approximately 200,000 square fant] a distribution center in
Richmond Hill, Ontario, Canada with approximate#y;(®0 square feet. We also operate a facility énRhilippines with approximately 7,000
square feet to provide technology development andrzistrative support. We cannot assure you welvélsuccessful in expanding in these
or any additional international markets. In additio the u ncertainty regarding our ability to gette revenue from foreign operations and
expand our international presence, there are higlerent in doing business internationally, inchgli

® changing regulatory requiremen

® legal uncertainty regarding foreign laws, tariffelaother trade barrier
®  political instability;

*  potentially adverse tax consequent

e  foreign currency fluctuations; ar

. cultural differences

Any one or more of these factors could materiatlyeasely affect our business in a number of waysh &s increased costs, operati
difficulties and reductions in revenue.

We are uncertain about our need for and the avaiilitly of additional funds.

Our future capital needs are difficult to predidte may require additional capital to take advantafgepportunities, including strategic
alliances and acquisitions, and to fund capitakexjitures, or to respond to changing business tiondiand unanticipated competitive
pressures. We may also require additional fundimémce operating losses. Should these circumssaantge, our existing cash balance and
credit facilities may be insufficient and we mayedéo raise additional funds either by borrowingneyor issuing additional equity or both.
We cannot assure you that such resources will bguede or available for all of our future financimgeds. Our inability to finance our
growth, either internally or externally, may linoitir growth potential and our ability to execute business strategy. If we are successful in
completing an additional equity financing, this kbresult in further dilution to our shareholdessinership or reduce the market value of our
common stock.

We may engage in future strategic alliances or aggijtions that could dilute our existing shareholdgrownership, cause us to incur
significant expenses or harm our busine:

We may review strategic alliance or acquisition apnities that would complement our current bussner enhance our technological
capabilities. Integrating any newly acquired busses, technologies or services may be expensivéraaeconsuming. To finance any
acquisitions, it may be necessary for us to raightianal funds through bor rowing money or comiplgtpublic or private financings.
Additional funds may not be available on terms #ratfavorable to us and, in the case of equignfaings, may result in dilution to our
shareholders’ ownership. We may not be able toaipeany acquired businesses profitably or otherimigdement our growth strategy
successfully. If we are unable to integrate anylpewquired entities or technologies effectivelyr operating results could suffer. Future
acquisitions could also result in incremental exggsrand the incurrence of debt and contingentitiabi any of which could harm our
operating results. We may also incur costs in cotime with potential strategic opportunities theg aot consummated. Although we require
potential strategic partners to agree to confiddititiand nondisclosure provisions, the use orld&ae of our confidential or proprietary
information by such parties in violation of theardidentiality and nondisclosure obligations cob&dm our business.
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Delivery of our and our client’ products could be delayed or disrupted by factbesyond our control, and we could lose customersian
clients as a result.

We rely upon third party carriers for timely deliyeof our and our clients’ product shipments. Agsult, we are subject to carrier
disruptions and increased costs due to factorsatieabeyond our control, including employee strilkleslement weather and increased fuel
costs. Any failure to deliver products to our amdl dients’ customers in a tim ely and accurate mesmay damage our reputation and brand,
and could cause us to lose customers and cliergafhot be sure that our relationships with thady carriers will continue on terms
favorable to us, if at all. If our relationship wiany of these third party carriers is terminatedrgaired, or if any of these third parties is
unable to deliver products, we would be requiredse alternative carriers for the shipment of awt aur clients’ products to customers. We
may be unable to engage alternative carriers anelyt basis or on favorable terms, if at all. Péi@radverse consequences include:

* reduced visibility of order status and packagekirag;
® delays in order processing and product deliv
® increased cost of delivery, resulting in reducedgims; anc

* reduced shipment quality, which may result in daegbgroducts and customer dissatisfact

Our profitability could be adversely affected ifétoperation of our facilities were interrupted ohst down as the result of a natural
disaster.

We operate a majority of our distribution facilgien and around the Memphis, Tennessee area arttbadquarters and call center
operations are centered in the Dallas, Texas #eaalso maintain facilities in Canada, Europe dnedRhilippines. Any natural disaster or
other serious disruption to our facilities dueite,ftornado, flood or any other cause would sutighy disrupt our operations and would
impair our ability to adequately service our custosn In addition, we could incur significantly heghcosts during the time it takes for us to
reopen or replace any one or more of our facilittgsich may or may not be reimbursed by insuraAsea result, disruption at one or more of
our facilities could adversely affect our profittiyi

A breach of our eCommerce security measures co@duce demand for our services. Credit card frauddasther fraud could adversel
affect our business.

A requirement of the continued growth of eCommasdbe secure transmission of confidential infoliorabver public networks. A
party who is able to circumvent our security measurould misappropriate proprietary informationnderrupt our operations. Any
compromise or elimination of our security co ulduee demand for our services.

We may be required to expend significant capital atther resources to protect against security besaor to address any problem they
may cause. Because our activities involve the geead transmission of proprietary information hsas credit card numbers, security
breaches could damage our reputation, cause osdclients, impact our ability to attract new ieigeand we could be exposed to litigation
and possible liability. Our security measures matypre vent security breaches, and failure to presecurity breaches may disrupt our
operations. In certain circumstances, we do noydasurance against the risk of credit card frand other fraud, so the failure to adequately
control fraudulent transactions on either our bebabur client’s behalf could increase our expense

We may be liable for misappropriation of our custens’ and our clients’ customers’ personal informai.

Data security laws are becoming more stringenténUnited States and abroad. Third parties aregamgén increased cyber-attacks
against companies doing business on the Intermkinaividuals are increasingly subjected to idgraind credit card theft on the Internet. If
third parties or unauthorized employees are ab feehetrate our network security or otherwise npsagriate our customers’ or our clients’
customers’ personal information or credit card infation, or if we give third parties or our emplegémproper access to customgrsisona
information or credit card information, we could $ughject to liability. This liability could includelaims for unauthorized purchases with
credit card information, impersonation or otherismfraud claims. This liability could also incladtlaims for other misuses of personal
information, including unauthorized marketing pusps. Liability for misappropriation of this inforti@n could decrease our profitability. In
such circumstances, we also could be liable féinfato provide timely notice of a data securitgéach affecting certain types of personal
information. In addition, the Federal Trade Commoissand state agencies have brought numerous enfiertt actions against Internet
companies for alleged deficiencies in those congsmirivacy and data security practices, and thay ocontinue to bring such actions. We
could incur additional expenses if new regulatimegarding the collection, use or storage of pefisof@rmation are introduced or if
government agencies investigate our privacy orrigqoractices.
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We rely on encryption and authentication technolliggnsed from third parties to provide the seguaitd authentication necessary to
effect secure transmission of sensitive custonfernmation such as customer credit card numbersaAdes in computer capabilities, new
discoveries in the field of cryptography or otheeets or developments may result in a compromidweaach of the algorithms that we use to
protect customer transaction data. If any such comfse of security were to occur, it could subjesto liability, damage our reputation and
diminish the value of our branthme. A party who is able to circumvent the segumieasures could misappropriate proprietary infadioneor
cause interruptions in operations. We may be reduim expend significant capital and other resautogrotect against such security
breaches or to alleviate problems caused by swedrhes. Our security measures are designed tonpise@urity breaches, but our failure to
prevent such security breaches could subject lighitity, damage our reputation and diminish ttedue of our brand-name.

We also may provide non-secured channels for cust®be communicate. Despite the increased seaiskty, customers may use such
channels to send personal information and othesithemdata. In addition, “phishing” incidents ame the rise. Phishing involves an online
company’s customers being tricked into providingitticredit card numbers or account informationdmeone pretending to be the online
compa ny’s representative. Such incidents haventgcgiven rise to litigation against online compamnfor failing to take sufficient steps to
police against such activities by third parties] amy discourage customers from using online sesvic

Specific Risks Related to Our Business Process Oatgcing Business

Our service fee revenue and gross margin is dependgon our clients’ business and transaction vol@siand our costs; we may incur
financial penalties if we fail to meet contractuakrvice levels under certain client service agreeise

Our service fee revenue is primarily transactiosellaand fluctuates with the volume of transactmmisvel of sales of the products by
our clients for whom we provide transaction managetnservices. If we are unable to retain existiments or attract new clients, or if we
dedicate significant resources to clients whoséniegs does not generate sufficient revenue or wpiasiicts do not generate substantial
customer sales, our business may be materiallyrselyeaffected. Moreover, our ability to estimagevice fee revenue for future periods is
substantially dependent upon our clients’ and aum projections, the accuracy of which has been,véilidcontinue to be, unpredictable.
Therefore, our planning for client activity andgeted goals for service fee revenue and gross margy be materially adversely affected by
incomplete, delayed or inaccurate projections.ddition, most of our service agreements with oients are non-exclusive and we cannot
assure you any of our clients will continue to ase services for any period of time. The loss sfgmificant amount of service fee revenue
due to client terminations or material reductiamshie services provided to one or more clientsetbalve a material adverse effect on our
ability to cover our costs and thus on our profltgh Many of our client service agreements contaiinimum service level requirements and
impose financial penalties if we fail to meet suefuirements. The imposition of a substantial anhofisuch penalties could have a material
adverse effect on our business and operations.

We or our clients may be a party to litigation inwing our eCommerce intellectual property rightd. third parties claim we or our clients
are infringing their intellectual property rightswe could incur significant litigation costs, be reged to pay damages, or change our
business or incur licensing expenses.

Third parties have asserted, and may in the fugasert, that our business or the technologies wénéringe on their intellectual
property rights. As a result, we or our clients rbaysubject to intellectual property legal procegdiand claims in the ordinary course of
business. We cannot predict whether third partiisagsert claims of infringement in the futurevainether any future claims will prevent us
from offering popular products or services. If weoar clients are found to infringe, we may be iieggito pay monetary damages, which
could include treble damages and attorneys’ feearig infringement that is found to be willful, aedher be enjoined or required to pay
ongoing royalties with respect to any technolodiesd to infringe. Further, as a result of infringent claims either against us or our clients,
we may be required, or deem it advisable, to dgvelminfringing technology, which could be costly anché consuming, or enter into co
royalty or licensing agreements. Such royalty oerdising agreements, if required, may be unavailatlerms that are acceptable, or at all. If
a third party successfully asserts an infringeneéaiim against us or our clients and we are enjooragquired to pay monetary damages or
royalties or we are unable to develop suitable inérirnging alternatives or license the infringedsimilar technology on reasonable terms
timely basis, our business, results of operatigmkfanancial condition could be materially harmed.

We rely on third party providers for a portion ofuo client services, and we are subject to varioigks and liabilities if we are unable to
continue our relationship with such providers, sugitoviders do not provide the third party serviaasprovide them in a manner that does
not meet required service levels.

We currently, and may in the future, rely on thpatty providers to provide a portion of our endetwd solution service offering.
Generally, under the terms of our contracts withend-to-end solution service clients, we remaiblk to provide such third party services
and may be liable for the actions and omissiorsuoh third party providers. In certain instances,end-to-end
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solution service clients prepay in advance a ponibthe service fees payable in respect of the {harty services, and, under certain
circumstances, including our breach or the bregobubo third party provider of our or their respgetiobligations, we are liable to refund al

a portion of such prepaid fees. Consequently,eénetrent our third party provider fails to providhe third party services in compliance with
required services levels, or otherwise breachesbiligations, or discontinues its business, whedéisethe result of bankruptcy, insolvency or
otherwise, we may be required to provide such sesvat a higher cost to us and may otherwise bkelfar various costs and expenses rel
to such event. In addition, any such failure mayage our reputation and otherwise result in a rizdtedverse affect upon our business and
financial condition.

We may incur liability for indemnification obligattns under our contracts with our clients and bussgpartners which may have a
material adverse effect upon our business, resolt®perations and financial condition.

We include indemnification provisions in the cogtsawe enter into with our clients and businessngas. Generally, the provisions
require us to defend claims arising out of ouringfement of third-party intellectual property righbreach of contractual obligations and/or
unlawful or otherwise cul pable conduct, includimgach of data security. The indemnity obligatigaserally cover damages, costs and
attorneys’ fees arising out of such claims. In mensgances, our indemnification obligations to olients include the actions or omissions of
our third-party service providers. Although we séekmit our total liability under such provisions either a portion of the value of the
contract or a specified, agreed-upon amount, inesomses our total liability under such provisionarnlimited. Although in most cases our
third party service providers indemnify us for thettions and omissions, such providers may dispube unable to satisfy their
indemnification obligation to us. In addition, aademnification obligation to our clients may beader in scope, or may be subject to larger
limitations of liability, than the indemnificationbligation of our third party service providersu®. In most cases, the term of the indemnity
provision is perpetual. If we are required to indéfyna claim in a material amount, or if a seriésnalemnification claims are in the aggreg
a material amount, we may be required to expenufgignt resources to defend the claims, which fmaye a material adverse effect upon
business, results of operations and financial ¢amdi

Our business is subject to the risk of customer applier concentration.

For 2013, two clients in the aggregate represeappdoximately 14% of our service fee revenue (gdicg pass-through revenue) and
8% of consolidated revenue. We currently anticiphaéd both of these clients and other clients mitluce the level of services or have
terminated their relationship with us so that, eale/e are able to increase our service fee revieomneother existing or new clients or adjust
our operating costs, such reduction or terminatioservices will have a material adverse effectrupor business, results of operation and
financial condition.

The majority of our Supplies Distributors produetenue is generated by sales of product purchasset distributor agreements with
Ricoh. These agreements are terminable at willnemna@ssurance can be given that Ricoh will conttheadistributor agreements with Supp
Distributors. Supplies Distributors does not haseivn sales force and relies upon Ricoh’s saleefand product demand generation
activities for its sale of Ricoh product. As a resdi certain operational restructuring of its messs, Ricoh has implemented, and will continue
to implement, certain changes in the sale andilligion of Ricoh products. The changes have redu#ad are expected to continue to result,
in reduced revenues and profitability for Supplstributors in 2012 and 2013. Further reductiothié Ricoh business may have a material
adverse effect on Supplies Distributors’ busineggbraay adversely affect our overall financial cadiod.

Sales by Supplies Distributors to two customerthéaggregate accounted for approximately 28% ppies Distributors’ total
product revenue for the year ended December 31 26d 10% of consolidated net revenue. The lossefor both of such customers, or
non-payment of any material amount by these oradhgr customer, would have a material adverse teffgan Supplies Distributors’
business, results of operations and financial ¢amdi

Our operating results are materially impacted byratlient mix and the seasonality of their business.

Our business is materially impacted by our client amd the seasonality of their business. Based @po current client mix and their
current projected business volumes, we anticipateun rate service fee revenue business activiiyow at its highest in thedurth quarter ¢
our fiscal year. We are unable to predict how #msenality of future clients’ business may affaat guarterly revenue and whether the
seasonality may change due to modifications tdemits business. As such, we believe results ofatfms for a quarterly period may not be
indicative of the results for any other quartefasrthe full year.

Our systems may not accommodate significant growtlour number of clients.

Our success depends on our ability to handle & langnber of transactions for many different cliéntgarious product categories. We
expect the volume of transactions will increasaificantly as we expand our operations. In additidient marketing
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programs, such as “secret sales”, “flash salesibtiday related promotions often result in sigrafit shortterm spikes in transaction volum
When this occurs, additional stress is placed wpometwork hardware and software and our abiditgfficiently manage our operations, and
we cannot assure you of our ability to efficientianage a large number of transactions. If we aralsle to maintain an appropriate level of
operating performance, we may be in breach of bemtocontractual obligations, develop a negatigutation, and impair existing and
prospective client relationships and our businesslevbe materially adversely affected.

We may not be able to recover all or a portion afrstart-up costs associated with one or more of clients.

We generally incur start-up costs in connectiorhwlie planning and implementation of business m®selutions for our clients.
Although we generally attempt to recover thesescfysim the client in the early stages of the cliefationship, or upon contract terminatio
the client terminates without cause prior to fullatization of these costs, there is a risk thatdlient contract may not fully cover the stapt-
costs or that the client will terminate the contrfac cause and withhold pa yment of any unamodtiziart-up costs. To the extent start-up
costs exceed the start-up fees received, certagssxcosts will be expensed as incurred. Additipgnial connection with new client contracts
we generally incur capital expenditures associaii#ltl assets whose primary use is related to temtcKolution. There is a risk that the
contract may end before expected and we may noveecthe full amount of our capital costs.

Our revenue and margins may be materially impactadclient transaction volumes that differ from clit projections and business
assumptions.

Our pricing for client transaction services, sustcall center and fulfillment, is often based upofume projections and business
assumptions provided by the client and our anttegpp@osts to perform such work. In the event thieaddevel of activity or cost is
substantially different from the projections orwasgtions, we may have insufficient or excess stgffincremental costs or other assets
dedicated for such clien t that may negatively iotgaur margins and business relationship with sliemt. In the event we are unable to meet
the service levels expected by the client, outticeiahip with the client will suffer and may resintfinancial penalties and/or the termination
of the client contract.

We face competition from many sources that couldrarsely affect our business; growth in our clientstommerce business may make it
more efficient for the client to perform our sengs themselves.

Many companies offer, on an individual basis, onmore of the same services we do, and we face etitiop from many different
sources depending upon the type and range of servéguested by a potential client. Our competitariside vertical outsourcers, which are
companies that offer a single function, such akocesiters, public warehouses or credit card prares$Ve compete against transportation
logistics providers who offer product managementfions as an ancillary service to their primagnsportation services. We also compete
against other business process outsourcing prayiddro perform many similar services as us. Manhe$e companies have greater
capabilities than we do for the single or multiflactions they provide. In many instances, our cetitipn is the in-house operations of
potential clients themselves. The in-house operatad potential clients often believe they can perfthe same services we do, while others
are reluctant to outsource business functionsitivatve direct customer contact. We cannot be aexte will be able to compete successfi
against these or other competitors in the future.

In addition, growth in our clients’ ecommerce besises may cause a client to consider making tressary investments to process
their ecommerce operations in-house. In such eveigss we can provide a more cost-effective smiutid the client, the client may choose to
terminate our services. There is no assurancevhatill be able to provide a more cost-effectiveuion, or that any such solution will not
reduce our profitability or be accepted by thentlie

Our sales and implementation cycles are highly \adrie and our ability to finalize pending contractsay cause our operating results to
vary widely.

The sales cycle for our services is variable, @gihjcanging between several months to up to a ge&nger from initial contact with
the potential client to the signing of a contr&tcasionally the sales cycle requires substantiatlye time. Delays in signin g and executing
client contracts may affect our revenue and caus®perating results to vary widely. A potentiakol’s decision to purchase our services is
discretionary, involves a significant commitmentiod client’s resources and is influenced by ingeingernal and external pricing and
operating comparisons. To successfully sell owises, we generally must educate our potentiahtdieegarding the use and benefit of our
services, which can require significant time argbueces. Consequently, the period between initiatacct and the purchase of our services is
often long and subject to delays associated wigHehgthy approval and competitive evaluation psses that typically accompany signific
operational decisions. Additionally, the time reqdito finalize pending contracts and to implenmntsystems and integrate a new client
range from several weeks to many months. Delaggmng and integrating new clients may affect mwenue and cause our operating
results to vary widely.
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Our business could be adversely affected by a syster equipment failure, whether ours or our client

Our operations are dependent upon our ability eoget our distribution facilities, customer servaanters, computer and
telecommunications equipment and software systgamst damage and failures. Damage or failuresdo@dult from fire, power loss,
equipment malfunctions, system failures, naturshsiiers and other causes. If our business isupted either from accidents or th e
intentional acts of others, our business could b&enally adversely affected. In addition, in theet of widespread damage or failures at our
facilities, our short-term disaster recovery andtomency plans and insurance coverage may natffieisnt.

Our clients’ businesses may also be harmed fromsgstem or equipment failures we experience. Ihalant, our relationship with
these clients may be adversely affected, we maythosse clients, our ability to attract new clieamtsy be adversely affected and we could be
exposed to liability.

Interruptions could also result from the intentibaets of others, like hackers. If our systemspameetrated by computer hackers, or if
computer viruses infect our systems, our computevsd fail or proprietary information could be nmigmopriated.

If our clients suffer similar interruptions in theiperations, for any of the reasons discussedeabpfor others, our business could also
be adversely affected. Many of our clients’ compsiestems interface with our systems. If our cBesuffer interruptions in their systems, the
link to our systems could be severed and saleseotltent’s products could be slowed or stopped.

We may be subject to sales tax in one or more gigsons which adversely affect our business.

We collect sales or other similar taxes for shipteef goods in certain states and jurisdictionse ®nmore local, state or foreign
jurisdictions may seek to impose sales tax colbactibligations on us and other -of-state companies that engage in online comméfrce.
sales tax obligations are successfully imposed wgsdoy a state or other jurisdiction, we could kgosed to substantial tax liabilities for past
sales and fines and penalties for failure to cobatesaxes and we could suffer decreased sales inttitatar jurisdiction as the effective ¢
of purchasing goods from us increases for thoddingsin that state or jurisdiction. In additiorgwa legislation or regulation, the application
of laws and regulations from jurisdictions whos&dalo not currently apply to our business or thaliaation of existing laws and regulations
to the Internet and commercial online servicesa@oesult in significant additional taxes or regafgtrestrictions on our business. These taxes
could have an adverse effect on our cash flowsasults of operations. Furthermore, there is aipitigg that we may be subject to
significant fines or other payments for any pastifas to comply with these requirements.

Risks Related to the Business Process Outsourcingdustry
If the trend toward outsourcing does not continuayr business could be adversely affect

Our business could be materially adversely affeiftéte trend toward outsourcing declines or regsy®r if corporations bring
previously outsourced functions back in-house.i@agrly during general economic downturns, bussessnay bring in-house previously
outsourced functions to avoid or delay layoffs.

Our market is subject to rapid technological changad to compete we must continually enhance ourteyss to comply with evolving
standards.

To remain competitive, we must continue to enhamekimprove the responsiveness, functionality @adufres of our services and the
underlying network infrastructure. If we are unatdeadapt to changing market conditions, clienunements or emerging industry standa
our business could be adversely affected. Theriateand eCommerce environments are characterizeably technological change, chan ges
in user requirements and preferences, frequentmeduct and service introductions embodying newrietogies and the emergence of new
industry standards and practices that could reodetechnology and systems obsolete. Our succédisdepiend, in part, on our ability to both
internally develop and license leading technologiesnhance our existing services and develop eewvices. We must continue to address
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs otbents and respond to technological advances aretgng industry standards and practices
on a cost-effective and timely basis. The develamtroéproprietary technology involves significaathnical and business risks. We may falil
to develop new technologies effectively or to adaptproprietary technology and systems to cliequirements or emerging industry
standards.
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Risks Related to Our Stock

The market price of our common stock may be vokatiYou may not be able to sell your shares at opabthe price at which you
purchased such share

The trading price of our common stock may be sulifewide fluctuations in response to quarter-testier fluctuations in operating
results, announcements of material adverse evgetigral conditions in our industry or the publicrkegplace and other events or factors,
including the thin trading of our common stockaldition, stock markets have expe rienced extremice pnd trading volume volatility in
recent years. This volatility has had a substaefialct on the market prices of securities of megynology-related companies for reasons
frequently unrelated to the operating performarfdb® specific companies. These broad market fatains may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock. In addition, if our ogiémng results differ from our announced guidanctherexpectations of equity research
analysts or investors, the price of our commonistmeild decrease significantly.

Our stock price could decline if a significant nuneb of shares become available for sale.

As of December 31, 2013 , we have an aggregate8ahillion stock options outstanding to employedigectors and others with a
weighted average exercise price of $4.90 per sfitne shares of common stock that may be issued expemise of these options may be
resold into the public market. In addition, basediee Company’s 2013 financial results, the aggeegeaximum number of common stock
that may be issued for 2013 under our executivg-tenm incentive plan is approximately 598,000wbich approximately 150,000 are fully
vested. We have issued an aggregate of approxin@8900 deferred stock units to members of ourrBad Directors under our outside
director compensation program. Sales of substariaunts of common stock in the public market assalt of these issuances, or the
perception that future sales of these shares amddr, could reduce the market price of our comstook and make it more difficult to sell
equity securities in the future.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, outsreholder rights plan and Delaware law make it fidult for a third party to acquire us,
despite the possible benefit to our shareholders.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation, dylaws, our shareholder rights plan and Delawanedould make it more difficult for
a third party to acquire us, even if doing so wddbeneficial to our shareholders. For examplecettificate of incorporation permits our
Board of Directors to issue one or more seriegefegpred stock, which may have rights and prefegsmstiperior to those of the common
stock. The ability to issue preferred stockubd have the effect of delaying or preventing adtparty from acquiring us. We have also ado
a shareholder rights plan. These provisions coigicbdirage takeover attempts and could materialpely affect the price of our stock. In
addition, because we are incorporated in Delawegeare governed by the provisions of Section 20B®Delaware General Corporation
Law, which may prohibit large shareholders fromaianmating a merger with, or acquisition of us. Ehgvisions may prevent a mergel
acquisition that would be attractive to sharehaderd could limit the price investors would be indlto pay in the future for our common
stock.

There are limitations on the liabilities of our dactors and executive officers.

Pursuant to our bylaws and under Delaware lawdoectors are not liable to us or our shareholflarsnonetary damages for breacl
fiduciary duty, except for liability for breach afdirector’s duty of loyalty, acts or omissionsagirector not in good faith or w hich involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation ofviaor any transaction in which a director has dsttian improper personal benefit.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in Allen, Texas, éaBaluburb.

In the U.S., we operate a distribution facilityNtemphis, Tennessee, with aggregate space of maned#h0,000 square feet. We also
operate two additional distribution facilities tt@ an aggregate of approximately 540,000 squeseih Southaven, Mississippi. These
facilities are located approximately ten miles frita Memphis International Airport. We also manage other facilities: a distribution
facility in Grapevine, Texas with approximately 2000 square feet and a DTC facility in Memphis, fessee with approximately 205,000
square feet.
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Internationally, we operate a distribution compiex.iége, Belgium with approximately 200,000 squfeet, which contains advanced
distribution systems and equipment. We operatetailalition center in Richmond Hill, Ontario, Canarith approximately 34,000 square
feet. We also operate a facility in the Philippiméth approximately 7,000 square feet to providengrily technology development and
administrative support.

Except for the Grapevine, Texas facility and thed¥&cility in Memphis, Tennessee, which we manageur clients’behalf, all of ou
facilities are leased and the lease agreementsajneontain one or more renewal options.

We operate customer service centers in our faslith Dallas, Texas, Belgium, Canada and the Rimigs. Our call center technology
permits the automatic routing of calls to availatilistomer service representatives in several otallcenters.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
We are not party to any legal proceedings other thatine claims and lawsuits arising in the ordynezourse of our business. We do

not believe such claims and lawsuits, individualhin the aggregate, will have a material adveffeeeon our busines s.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed, and currently tradesthe NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “PF3Whe following table sets
forth for the period indicated the high and lowesatice for the common stock as reported by NASDAQ:

Price
High Low

Year Ended December 31, 20

First Quarte! $ 431 $ 2.4¢

Second Quarte $ 44 $ 231

Third Quartel $ 320 $§ 2.3C

Fourth Quarte $ 321 $§ 214
Year Ended December 31, 20

First Quartel $ 424 $ 2.7¢

Second Quarte $ 468 $ 3.4C

Third Quartel $ 6.1C $ 3.91

Fourth Quarte $ 93¢ $ 5.91

As of March 5, 2014, there were approximately 3,208reholders, of which 128 were record holdeth@tommon stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oo@umon stock and do not anticipate the paymenash dividends on our
common stock in the foreseeable future. We arerakstoicted from paying dividends under our delseagents without the prior approval of
our lenders. The payment of any future cash divddesill be at the discretion of our Board of Direrst and will depend upon, among other
things, future earnings, operations, capital rexmagnts, the general financial condition of the Canypand general business conditions and
the approval of our lenders. See “Management’'su3ision and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaf Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”

The following table summarizes information withpest to equity compensation plans under which gagturities of the Company
are authorized for issuance as of December 31,:2013

Number of
Number of securities Weighted-average securities
to be issued upon exercise price of remaining
exercise of outstanding available for
Plan category (1) outstanding options options future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by shareho 1,818,59. $ 4.9C 1,174,67.

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentaore detailed information regarding the Conmy’s equity compensation plar

Iltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da
None
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

We believe the following discussion and analysisviotes information that is relevant to an assest¢rard understanding of our
consolidated results of operations and financiaidition. The discussion and analysis should be ieambnjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto appg elsewhere in this Form -K. This Management’s Discussion and Analysis hélp
you understand

® The impact of forward looking statemer

®  Ourfinancial structure, including our historicaldncial presentatiot

®*  Qurresults of operations for the previous two ges well as certain projections for the futi

®  Certain of our relationships with our subsidiar

®  Qur liquidity and capital resource

®*  The impact of seasonality, inflation and recenglguied accounting standards on our financial statemanc

®  Our critical accounting policies and estima

Forward-Looking Information

We have made forward-looking statements in thisdRegn Form 10-K. These statements are subjedsks and uncertainties, and
there can be no guarantee that these statemehfzovie to be correct. Forward-looking statementdude assumptions as to how we may
perform in the future. When we use words like “st&dtrive,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “pedict,” “potential,” “continue,” “will,”
“may,” “could,” “intend,” “plan,” “target” and “estnate” or similar expressions, we are making fordsooking statements. You should
understand that the following important factorsaduition to the Risk Factors set forth above sewhere in this Report on Form 10-K, could
cause our results to differ materially from thozpressed in our forward-looking statements. Thas®ofs include:

®  our ability to retain and expand relationships vefisting clients and attract and implement newentk;

®  our reliance on the fees generated by the tramgactilume or product sales of our clier

® our reliance on our clier’ projections, transaction volume or product sé

®  our dependence upon our agreements with InterredtiBusiness Machines Corporatic‘IBM”) and Ricoh:

®  our dependence upon our agreements with our migors;

®  our client mix, their business volumes and the aeality of their busines:

®  our ability to finalize pending client and custoneentracts

* the impact of strategic alliances and acquisitit

* trends in eCommerce, outsourcing, government réigalaboth foreign and domestic, and the markebfarservices
* whether we can continue and manage gro

® increased competitiol

®  our ability to generate more revenue and achiegtasable profitability

e effects of changes in profit margir

® the customer and supplier concentration of ourrtmss;

® the reliance on thir-party subcontracted service

* the unknown effects of possible system failuresrapil changes in technolog

e  foreign currency risks and other risks of operatmépreign countries

®  potential litigation;

®* our dependence upon key person

* the impact of new accounting standards and changedsting accounting rules or the interpretatiohghose rules

®  our ability to raise additional capital or obtaiidétional financing:
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®  our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries,ldorrow under current financing arrangements aathtain compliance with debt
covenants

®  our relationship with, and our guarantees of, eedéthe liabilities and indebtedness of our sdlzsies; anc

® taxation on the sale of our products and provisibour services

We have based these statements on our currenttaipas about future events. Although we believeedgkpectations reflected in our
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we dagusrantee these expectations will actually béeaeld. In addition, some forward-
looking statements are based upon assumptionsfasite events that may not prove to be accurdterdfore, actual outcomes and results
may differ materially from what is expected or fomsted in such forward-looking statements. We uallemo obligation to update publicly
any forward-looking statement for any reason, @f/@ew information becomes available or other esattcur in the future. There may be
additional risks we do not currently view as matkor that are not presently known. In evaluatimgse statements, you should consider
various factors, including the risks set forthhie section entitled “Risk Factors.”

Overview

We are an international business process outsauptovider of end-to-end eCommerce solutions. Wide these solutions to major
brand name companies and others seeking to optiiméresupply chain and to enhance their traditi@ma online business channels and
initiatives. W e derive our revenues from providagroad range of services as we process indivinlusihess transactions on our clients’
behalf using three different seller services finahmodels: 1) the Service Fee model, 2) the AgenElash) model and 3) the Retail model.

We refer to the standard PFSweb seller servicasifial model as the Service Fee model. In this maode clients own the inventory
and are the merchants of record and engage us\taprvarious business process outsourcing seriicagpport of their business operations.
We derive our service fee revenues by providingoad range of service offerings that include digitarketing, eCommerce technologies,
order management, customer care, logistics anifirfught, financial management and professional atiimgy. We offer our services as an
integrated solution, which enables our clientsutsource their complete infrastructure needs toglessource and to focus on their core
competencies. We currently provide infrastructurd distribution solutions to clients that operateirange of vertical markets, including
technology manufacturing, computer products, comsdragile goods, contemporary home furnishirggarel, aviation,
telecommunications, consumer electronics and coaspackaged goods, among others.

In this model, we typically charge for our servicgsa cost-plus basis, a percent of shipped revbasis or a petransaction basis, su
as a per-labor hour basis for web-enabled custooract center services and a per-item basis filtrhent services. Additional fees are
billed for other services. We price our servicesdshon a variety of factors, including the deptti aamplexity of the services provided, the
amount of capital exp enditures or systems custaiiiz required, the length of contract and othetdfies.

Many of our service fee contracts involve third{parendors who provide additional services, suchakage delivery. The costs we
are charged by these thipdwty vendors for these services are often passéd our clients. Our billings for reimbursementdhese costs ar
other ‘out-of-pocket’ expenses include travel, gitig and handling costs and telecommunication @sasagd are included in pass-through
reven ue.

As an additional service, we offer our second mgaithel Agent, or Flash, financial model, in whichr alients maintain ownership of t
product inventory stored at our locations as inSbevice Fee model . When a customer orders thauptdrom our clients, a “flash” sale
transaction passes product ownership to us for eatdr and we in turn immediately re-sell the picido the customer. The “flash”
ownership exchange establishes us as the merchagtosd, which enables us to use our existing tramtinfrastructure to process sales to
end customers, removing the need for the clientgstablish these business processes internallypdrutitting them to control the sales
process to end customers. In this model, baseleotetms of our current client arrangements, werteproduct revenue net of cost of
product revenue as a component of service fee vevienour consolidated statement of operations.
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Finally, our Retail model allows us to purchaseeimory from the client . In this model, we place thitial and replenishment purchase
orders with the client and take ownership of thedpict upon delivery to our facility. In this moddkpending on the terms of our client
arrangements, we may own the inventory and thewstsaeceivable arising from our product sales.ddrile Retail model, depending upon
the product category and sales characteristicsnayerequire the client to provide product pricetpotion as well as product purchase
payment terms, right of return, and obsolescenceeption appropriate to the product sales proflepending on the terms of our client
arrangements in the Retail model, we record eithegproduct revenue as a component of product rexvesr 2) product revenue net of cost of
product revenue as a component of service fee uevienour consolidated statement of operationdghteosts billed to customers are
reflected as components of product revenue. Thégbass model generally requires significant worldagital, for which we have credit
available either through credit terms provided by dients or under senior credit facilities.

In general, we provide the Service Fee and Ageanl@sh) models through our PFS and Supplies Digiors subsidiaries and the
Retail model through our Supplies Distributors &ftBweb Retail Connect subsidiaries.

Growth is a key element to achieving our futurelgioacluding achieving and maintaining sustaingiigfitability. Growth in our
Service Feand Agent models is driven by two main elements: okent relationships and organic growth from é&rig clients. We focus ot
sales efforts on larger contracts with brand-naompanies within four primary target markets, healtd beauty, home goods and
collectibles, fashion and consumer packaged gawlish, by nature, require a longer duration to elbat also have the potential to be higher
quality and longer duration engagements.

Currently, we anticipate any growth within our Rietaodel would be through relationships with cligmthereby the terms would allow
us to record service fee revenue (product reveptiefrproduct cost of revenue) in our consolidatedement of operations. These
relationships are often driven by the sales andeting efforts of the manufacturers and third padies partners. As a result of certain
operational restructuring of its business, Ricos ingplemented, and will continue to implement, @erchanges in the sale and distribution of
Ricoh products. The changes have resulted, anexgexted to continue to result, in reduced prodexgnues and profitability under our
Retail model in 2013 and beyond as compared ta pears.

We continue to monitor and control our costs taigon profitability. While we are targeting our nearvice fee contracts to yield
incremental gross profit, we also expect to inogrémental investments in technology developmesdrational and support management
sales and marketing expenses to help generatelgrowt

Our expenses comprise primarily four categoriesok} of product revenue, 2) cost of service feemae, 3) cost of pass-through
revenue and 4) selling, general and administrakpenses.

Cost of product revenueconsists of the purchase price of product sotbfegight costs, which are reduced by certain reirséble
expenses. These reimbursable expenses includefpasgh customer marketing programs, direct costsrred in passing on any price
decreases offered by vendors to cover price pioteand certain special bids, the cost of prodpotsided to replace defective product
returned by customers and certain other expensdésfim@d under the distributor agreements.

Cost of service fee revengeonsists primarily of compensation and relatgueeses for our web-enabled customer contact center
services, international fulfillment and distributigservices and professional consulting services odimer fixed and variable expenses directly
related to providing services under the terms eflfased contracts, including certain occupancyirsfodmnation technology costs and
depreciation and amortization expenses.

Cost of pass-through revendéhe related reimbursable costs for pass-througkraditures are reflected as cost of pass-through
revenue.

Selling, General and Administrative expensednsist of expenses such as compensation arnidd&gpenses for sales and marketing
staff, distribution costs (excluding freight) amalble to the Supplies Distributors business andrettail model, executive, management and
administrative personnel and other overhead cimetlsiding certain occupancy and information tecbnylcosts and depreciation and
amortization expenses.

Monitoring and controlling our available cash ba&las and our expenses continues to be a primarg.f@ur cash and liquidity
positions are important components of our finan@hpoth current operations and our targeted groWwshimprove our cash and liquidity
position, in May 2013, we sold an aggregate ofr8ilfon shares of our Common Stock at $4.57 persshasulting in net proceeds of $14.1
million.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2012

The following table discloses certain financialamhation for the periods presented, expressedinstef dollars, dollar change,
percentage change and as a percentage of totaluey millions).

% of Total
Change Revenue
2013 2012 $ % 2013 2012
Revenues
Product revenue, n $ 91.C $ 1197 $ (28.9) (24.0% 37.1% 42.5%
Service fee revent 113.C 120.4 (7.4 (6.2)% 46.8% 42.8%
Pas-through revenu 37.€ 41.¢ (3.9 (9.1)% 15.5% 14.1%
Total net revenue 241.¢ 281.t (39.9) (14.2% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of Revenue
Cost of product revent 85.5 110.z (24.9 (22.0% 93.7%(1) 92.(%
Cost of service fee reven 77.2 89.2 (12.0 (13.5% 68.2%(2) 74.1%
Pas-through cost of revent 37.€ 41.4 (3.9 (9.)% 100.(%(3) 100.(%
Total cost of revenue 200.1 240.¢ (40.7) (16.9% 82.8% 85.5%
Product revenue gross prc 5.7 9.t (3.9 (39.9% 6.2%(1) 8.C%
Service fee gross prot 35.¢ 31.2 4.€ 14.%% 31.7%(2) 25.%%
Pas-through gross prof — — —
Total gross profi 41.F 40.7 0.8 2.(% 17.2% 14.5%
Selling, General and Administrative Expen 46.2 40.€ 5.4 13.8% 19.1% 14.4%
Income (loss) from operatiol (4.7) 0.1 (4.8) (3962.0% 1.% 0.1%
Interest expense, n 0.7 1.C 0.2 (31.9% 0.2% 0.4%
Loss from operations before income ta (5.9 (0.9 (4.5 517.% (2.2% (0.39%
Income tax expense, n 0.5 0.€ 0.1 (16.9% 0.2% 0.2%
Net loss $ B9 $ (15H3$ 49 (289.9% (2.9% (0.5%

(1) Represents the percent of Product revenue
(2) Represents the percent of Service fee reve
(3) Represents the percent of F-through revenue

Product revenue, neRroduct revenue decreased $ 28.7 million, or 24i0%013 as compared to the prior year. This redodh
revenue is primarily due to the operational redtmieg by Ricoh of its business, which has resylgedi will continue to result, in changes in
the sale and distribution of Ricoh products anddoproduct revenue. We currently expect productmere to continue to decline by
approximately 20% to approximately $70 million t65$million in 2014.

Service fee revenuérhe decrease in service fee revenue for thegmded December 31, 2013 as compared to the pramwas
primarily due to decreased service fees relatédea@onclusion or reduction of operations of sevarent programs during 2013 (including
certain clients that accounted for more than 10%unfservice fee revenue in 2012), partially offsgthe impact of expanded and new client
relationships that began in 2013.

The change in service fee revenue, excluding gassigh revenue, is shown below ($ millions):

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 120.4
New service contract relationshi 8.2
Change in existing client service fe (15.7)
Terminated clients not included in 2013 reve (0.9

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 113.(

When considering client relationships, we definexristing client to be a client from whom we earnedenue in both the current and
prior years, we define a new client to be a clfemn whom we only earned revenue in the current,\eead we define a terminated client as a
client form whom we only earned revenue in themyiar. On an annual compari son basis, our sefeie revenue will continue to be
negatively impacted by the conclusion or anticigaeduction of operations of several client proggahiowever, based on current client
projections, we expect the reduction in revenuéddrfrom these client programs to be more than
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offset by new service fee revenue generated byarexpanded client opportunities in 2014. For 204€ are currently targeting an increase
in service fee revenues of approximately 10% aspaoed to 2013.

Cost of Product Revenu€ost of product revenue decreased by $24.9 milbo22.6%, to $85.3 million in 2013 as compareth®
prior year. The resulting gross profit margin was7$million or 6.3% of product revenue for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and $9.5
million or 8.0% of product revenue for 2012. Thesg profit has been negatively impacted by redpceduct revenue primarily attributable
to the Ricoh restructuring activities, which we egpto continue in 2014 and beyond, and the groxf# pargin declined due to a higher
percentage of our product revenue generated framarlgross margin product categories and certaientory adjustments. The gross profit
margin for 2013 and 2012 includes the impact oféneental gross margin earned on product salegtirgsfilom certain product price
increases and the impact of certain incrementaritory cost reductions. We currently expect oudpod revenue gross profit margin to be
approximately 6% in 2014.

Cost of Service Fee Revenugross profit as a percentage of service feesddiab in 2013 and 25.9% in 2012. The gross profit
percentage increase is primarily due to a changfeeiclient mix, an increased level of higher mangiofessional and technology services,
including project activity, and improved operateficiencies. Additionally, 2013 included an ingrental benefit of $1.2 million applicable
to certain client transition related agreements.

We target to earn an overall average gross profdwr service fee activity of 25-30% on existingl arew service fee contracts, but we
have accepted, and may continue to accept, lovesisgnargin percentages on certain contracts damgndicontract scope and other factors,
including projected volumes. Gross margins on ewise fee business are expected to be withinargeted range of 25-30% for 2014. We
are focused on continuing to increase our levéigiier margin service fee activity, including ouofessional and technology services, to
offset other lower margin activities.

Selling, General and Administrative Expens&glling, general and administrative expenses %et@.2 million, or 19.1% of total net
revenues in the 2013 period and $40.6 million,/A% of total net revenues in the prior year. Tieease in expenses is attributable to
multiple factors, including an increase in depréoimand amortization expense, certain facilitatet! expenses, a $1.2 million increase in
stock compensation expense compared to 2012 atarcestructuring related charges of approxima$@y million in 2013. In 2012 we
incurred approximately $0.5 million of lease teration costs and approximately $0.9 million of reltion related costs relating to our facility
relocations and expansions due to investmentsgpastigrowth in our service fee business. Exclgdire restructuring related charges, lease
termination costs and relocation related cost9iB2and 2012, selling, general and administratiygerses were 18.1% and 14.0% of tota
revenue in 2013 and 2012, respectively. The irer@@ercentage in 2013 is primarily due to a sicgmift reduction in product revenue
between years which did not result in a correspantiivel of selling, general and administrativeenge decreases and due to increased cost
to support our service fee business, including elgiption and amortization expense as well as fac#ilated costs. We currently expect our
selling, general and administrative expenses fa420 be comparable to 2013 results, excludinguestring related charges.

Income TaxedNe recorded a tax provision associated primarihstate income taxes, our subsidiary Suppliegibigbrs’ Canadian
and European operations, and our Philippines dpesatA valuation allowance has been providedHerrajority of our net deferred tax
assets, which are primarily related to our net afieg loss carryforwards and certain foreign defétiax assets. We expect we will contint
record an income tax provision associated witrestatome taxes, Supplies Distributors’ CanadianEumapean results of operations and our
Philippines operations.

Supplies Distributors and its Subsidiaries

We conduct a portion of our Retail business mogerations through Supplies Distributors and itssgdibries, which act as distributs
of various Ricoh and other products. We conductdhservices through transaction management seaggesments under which PFS
provides transaction management and fulfillmentises to Supplies Distributors and its subsidiariesddition to our equity investm ent in
Supplies Distributors, we have also provided Sgspldistributors with a subordinated loan that, fd3exember 31, 2013, had an outstanding
balance of $3.5 million.

Supplies Distributors paid us dividends of $1.5lioril and $1.0 million in 2013 and 2012, respectiv8upplies Distributors has
received lender approval to pay dividends of apionaxely $1.8 million in 2014, but pursuant to tleents of its amended credit agreements, is
restricted from paying further cash dividends withthe prior approval of its lenders. In addition, distribution may be made if, after giving
effect thereto, Supplies Distributors or its sulzsigs are in noncompliance with its financial coaets under its current facilities.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the year ended December 31, 2013, we gexte®8.8 million of cash from operating activitiagyich resulted primarily due to

- $10.5 million decrease in inventories primarily Bgable to reduced Ricoh related business volunaesl

- $2.5 million decrease in prepaid expenses, dmer geceivables and other assets in part dueniadiof receipts and reduced
product revenue related activit

- $7.0 million of cash income from operations befaaking capital changes

These sources of cash were partially offset by a:
- $9.3 million increase in accounts receivable apylie to:

0 increased activity for certain new and expandeghtlielationships in which we own the resultingtooser trade
receivable (through our Agent or Retail mode

0 the timing of client receipts applicable to serviee activity,
0 Both of the above partially offset by the impactefluced Ricoh related business.

- $3.6 million decrease in accounts payable, deflerevenue, accrued expenses and other liabilitipart due to reduced inventory
purchases as a result of a reduction in produemes.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, our accounts payafaexccrued expenses were higher than normaltoetavels due to the timing
of various vendor and client reimbursement payments

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we gexe&28.6 million of cash from operating activitiedich resulted primarily due to

- $7.3 million decrease in accounts receivable piigneglated to reduced Ricoh related product reeeactivity, and
- $5.7 million reduction in inventories primarily a#&d to reduced Ricoh related product revenueisgtiv
- $5.3 million increase in deferred rent relatedetoaint improvement allowances at certain new fastit

- %$4.4 million decrease in prepaid expenses, and odlceivables and other assets primarily relateahtimg of receipts and a
reduction of valu-added tax receivable at our European subsidiaryeauuted Ricoh related product revenue acti

- $9.3 million of cash income from continuing opevat before working capital changes.

- These sources of cash were partially offset $8.8 million decrease in accounts payable, dedemgenue, accrued expenses and
other liabilities primarily related to reduced puntirevenue activity and the timing of paymentsmake for products and services,
payment processing and related transactions ¢

In 2013, we incurred capital expenditures of $r8illion, exclusive of $1.8 million of property arejuipment acquired under debt and
capital lease financing, which consisted primaoilypayments for capitalized software costs andggent purchases. We also received net
proceeds of $15.9 million from the issuance of camratock, consisting of $1.8 million related to éoyee stock option exercises and $14.1
million from a private placement completed in May.

In 2012, we incurred $14.7 million of capital expéares, exclusive of $7.3 million of property asguipment acquired under debt and
capital lease financing, primarily related to saftes costs and costs applicable to our new corpbestdquarters and call center facility, wk
were primarily financed by the facility landlordedugh tenant allowances.

Cash used for payments on debt and capital leaseef any proceeds from debt and a decreasetiticted cash, was $12.3 million
and $12.1 million, during 2013 and 2012, respebtive

Capital expenditures have historically consistémharily of additions to upgrade our managementrimfation systems, development of
customized technology solutions to support andgiatie with our service fee clients and general egiom and upgrades to our facilities, both
domestic and foreign. We expect to incur capitglemditures to support new contracts an d anticipfattere growth opportunities. Based on
our current client business activity and our taggegrowth plans, we anticipate our total investnienipgrades and additions to facilities and
information technology solutions and services far ipcoming twelve months, including costs to imm@at new clients, will be
approximately $9 million to $12 million, althouglditional capital expenditures may be necessasypport the infrastructure requirements
of new clients. To maintain our current operatiaglcposition, a portion
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of these expenditures may be financed throughtal@mbursements, debt, operating or capital leaseslditional equity. We may elect to
modify or defer a portion of such anticipated irtmasnts in the event that we do not obtain the fiiremresults necessary to support such
investments.

During 2013, our working capital increased to #2aillion from $15.4 million at December 31, 202imarily due to net proceeds of
$15.9 million from issuance of our common stockadie®d above partially offset by the pay-down dbidfacilities, capital expenditures and
the impact of certain restructuring and personelelted accruals. To obtain additional financinghia future, in addition to our current cash
position, we plan to evaluate various financingmatives including the sale of equity, utilizingpéal or operating leases, borrowing under
our credit facilities, expanding our current crdditilities or entering into new debt agreements.asdsurances can be given we will be
successful in obtaining any additional financingta terms thereof. We currently believe our cassitipn, financing available under our
credit facilities and funds generated from operatiwill satisfy our presently known operating casleds, our working capital and capital
expenditure requirements, our current debt andlehgations, and additional loans to our subsi€é if necessary, for at least the next
twelve months.

As described above, we have provided collateralgaeatantees to secure the repayment of certaioradubsidiaries’ credit facilities.
Many of these facilities include both financial ameh-financial covenants, and also include cro$autieprovisions applicable to other credit
facilities and agreements. Th ese covenants includeng others, minimum levels of net worth, paeddility and cash flow (as defined) and
the restrictions on the ability of the borrower sidiaries to advance funds to other borrower sidnsas. As a result, it is possible for one or
more of these borrower subsidiaries to fail to nikeir respective covenants even if another borraubsidiary otherwise has available
excess funds which, if not restricted, could bedusecure the default. To the extent we fail to pbnwith our debt covenants, including the
monthly financial covenant requirements and ouuiregl level of shareholders’ equity and we arealié to obtain a waiver, the lenders
would be entitled to accelerate the repayment gfautstanding credit facility obligations, and ecise all other rights and remedies, incluc
sale of collateral and enforcement of payment undeiparent guarantee. A requirement to accelé¢hateepayment of the credit facility
obligations may have a material adverse impactwrfinancial condition and results of operationse ¥an provide no assurance we will have
the financial ability to repay all of such obligats. As of December 31, 2013, we were in compliavite all debt covenants. Further, any
non-renewal of any of our credit facilities may bavmaterial adverse impact on our business aaddial condition. We do not have any
other material financial commitments, although fatalient contracts may require capital expend#uned lease commitments to support the
services provided to such clients.

In the future, we may attempt to acquire other fesses or seek an equity or strategic partnentergte capital or expand our services
or capabilities in connection with our efforts t@y our business. Acquisitions involve certain sigkad uncertainties and may require
additional financing. Therefore, we can give nauassce with respect to whether we will be succéssfidentifying businesses to acquire or
an equity or strategic partner, whether we or tglyb e able to obtain financing to complete angaction, or whether we or they will be
successful in operating the acquired business.

We receive municipal tax abatements in certaintlona. In prior years we received notice from a roipality that we did not satisfy
certain criteria necessary to maintain the abatésreard that the municipal authority planned to makedjustment to our tax abatement. We
disputed the adjustment and such dispute has le¢edswith the municipality. However, the amourftaditional property taxes to be
assessed against us and the timing of the relatgdgnts has not been finalized. As of DecembeB313, we believe we have adequately
accrued for the expected assessment.

In April 2010, a sales employee of eCOST.com, (te&COST,"the former name of Retail Connect), was chargeld witlating various
federal criminal statutes in connection with thiesaf eCOST products to certain customers, andoappately $620,000 held in an eCOST
deposit account was seized and turned over to thee®@f the U.S. Attorney in connection with suattivity. In August 2012, the employee
pleaded guilty to a misdemeanor. Neither the Compam eCOST have been charged with any crimin@iagtand we are seeking the
recovery of the funds, which are currently classifas other receivables in the December 31, 20&Bdial statements. Based on the
information available to date, we are unable t@deine the amount of the loss, if any, relatinghe seizure of such funds. No assurance can
be given, however, that the seizure of such fuadsur inability to recover such funds or any sfigaint portion thereof, or any costs and
expenses we may incur in connection with such mafitenot have a material adverse effect uponfmancial condition or results of
operations.

Supplies Distributors Financing

To finance its distribution of Ricoh products irett.S., Supplies Distributors has a short-termitfadility with IBM Credit LLC
(“IBM Credit”) that provides financing for up to #5.0 million. We have provided a collateralized igueee to secure the repayment of this
credit facility. The IBM Credit facility does notkie a stated maturity and both parties have tHiyatoi exit the facility following a 90-day
notice. The Company has direct vendor credit tesitts Ricoh to finance Supplies Distributors Europeabsidiary’s inventory purchases.
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Supplies Distributors also has a loan and secagtgement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatf'Wells Fargo”) to provide
financing for up to $ 12.0 million of eligible aagots receivables in the United States and CanddaWells Fargo facility expires on the
earlier of March 2016 or the date on which theiparto the Ricoh distributor agreement no longearage under the terms of such agreement
and/or Ricoh no longer supplies products pursumstth agreement.

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary hasctoféing agreement with BNP Paribas Fortis FactBNP Paribas”) to provide
factoring for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximaté 10.3 million at December 31, 2013) of eligiblecounts receivables through March
2015.

These credit facilities contain cross default psawis, various restrictions upon the ability of Bligs Distributors and its subsidiaries
to, among other things, merge, consolidate, sebtasincur indebtedness, make loans, investmadtpayments to related parties (including
entities directly or indirectly owned by PFSwel)pyide guarantees, make investments and loangy@lesset s, make changes to capital
stock ownership structure and pay dividends, asasdinancial covenants, such as cash flow froeratons, annualized revenue to working
capital, net profit after tax to revenue, minimugt worth and total liabilities to tangible net wras defined, and are secured by all of the
assets of Supplies Distributors, as well as a wtidized guaranty of PFSweb. Additionally, we srguired to maintain a subordinated loa
Supplies Distributors of no less than $2.5 milliant maintain restricted cash of more than $5.0anil are restricted with regard to
transactions with related parties, indebtednesschadges to capital stock ownership structure améhanum shareholders’ equity of at least
$18.0 million. Furthermore, we are obligated toaypny over-advance made to Supplies Distributoits subsidiaries under these facilities
if they are unable to do so. We have also provalgdarantee of substantially all of the obligatiohSupplies Distributors and its subsidia
to IBM and Ricoh.

PFS Financing

Our PFS subsidiary has a Loan and Security Agree(f@omerica Agreement”) with Comerica Bank (“Cornoar’), which provides
for up to $20.0 million ($17.0 million during cemianon-seasonal peak months) of eligible accowtsivable financing through March 2016.
The Comerica Agreement also provides for up to $&lllon of additional eligible equipment financirfEquipment Advances”) through
March 2015. Outstanding Equipment Advances hawesh haturity date of April 15, 2016. We enteretbithis Comerica Agreement to
supplement our existing cash position, and profudeling for our current and future operations, unlthg our targeted growth. The Comerica
Agreement contains cross default provisions, vari@strictions upon our ability to, among othengfs, merge, consolidate, sell assets, incur
indebtedness, make loans and payments to subseiliaffiliates and related parties (including ésidirectly or indirectly owned by
PFSweb), make capital expenditures, make invessraamd loans, pledge assets, make changes to capitklownership structure, as well as
financial covenants of a minimum tangible net wart!$20.0 million, as defined, a minimum earningédoe interest and taxes, plus
depreciation, amortization and non-cash compensatoruals, if any, as defined, and a minimum Hgyiratio, as defined. The Comerica
Agreement also limits PFS’ ability to increase siudordinated loan to Supplies Distributors to nthes $5.0 million and permits PFS to
advance incremental amounts to certain of its slidr$es and/or affiliates subject to certain fin@hcovenants, as defined. The Comerica
Agreement is secured by all of the assets of PE®iedl as a guarantee of PFSweb.

Retail Connect Financing

Retail Connect has an asset-based line of crediityeof up to $2 .0 million with Wells Fargo, wti is collateralized by substantially
all of Retail Connect’s assets and expires in May42 Based on our current borrowing needs, we dexgect to renew this facility upon its
maturity. Borrowings under the facility and lettdrcredit availability are limited to a percentagfeaccounts receivable and inventory, up to
specified amounts. As of December 31, 2013, R€wmilnect had no borrowings or letters of credit taunding and no available credit under
this facility. The credit facility restricts Retallonnect'’s ability to, among other things, mergmsolidate, sell assets, incur indebtedness,
make loans, investments and payments to subsisliafiliates and related parties, make investmantsloans, pledge assets, make changes
to capital stock ownership structure, as well asramum tangible net worth for Retail Connect of &8 defined. PFSweb has guaranteed all
current and future obligations of Retail Connedlenthis line of credit.

Private Placement

In May 2013, we sold 3.2 million shares of our coomstock in a private transaction at $4.57 pereshasulting in net proceeds of
approximately $14.1 million after deducting expense

Restricted Net Assets

Certain of our credit facilities contain variousdncial covenants and include covenants that cesuir ability to incur additional
indebtedness, create or permit liens on assetagerig mergers or consolidations, and place résimig on the transfer of
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assets or the payment of dividends between us ansubsidiaries. At December 31, 2013 and 201X adkrestricted net assets of
approximately $26.9 million and $20.7 million, resfively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no off-balance sheet arrangements thiatdraare reasonably likely to have a current turkieffect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity jtedyexpenditures or capital resources that is
material to investors.

Inventory Management

In our Retail model, we manage our inventories l@ldale by maintaining sufficient quantities ebguct to achieve high order fill
rates while at the same time maximizing inventampover rates. Inventory balances will fluctuaten@sadd new product lines. To reduce the
risk of loss due to supplier price reductions, SiggpDistributors’ distributor agreement provides fprice protection under which it receives
credits if the supplier lowers prices on previoyslychased inventory.

Seasonality

The seasonality of our service fee business isribp# upon the seasonality of our clients’ busirsgbssales of their products.
Accordingly, we must rely upon the projections af clients in assessing quarterly variability. Wiidve that with our current client mix and
their current business volumes, our run rate serfidge business activity, which is dependent uperbtisiness volume of our clients, will be
generally highest during the quarter ended Dece®bewe believe our historical reven ue pattern esakdifficult to predict the effect of
seasonality on our future revenues and resultpefations.

We believe that results of operations for a qubrigeriod may not be indicative of the resultsdor other quarter or for the full year.

Inflation

Management believes inflation has not had a mateffiect on our operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have begpapee in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United
States of America. These accounting principlesireqis to make estimates and assumptions thatt dfffeceported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of our financial statemesutsl the reported amounts of revenues and expduosieg the reporting period. While we do
not believe the reported amounts would be matgriifferent, application of these policies involwbe exercise of judgment and the use of
assumptions as to future uncertainties and, asudtractual results could differ from these estasalf there is a significant unfavorable
change to current conditions, it would likely re¢sala material adverse impact to our businessadipg results and financial condition. We
evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an angasis. We base our estimates on experience awarimus other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstandesf dur significant accounting policies are disstd in the notes to our consolidated
financial statements.

We have defined a critical accounting estimatersstbat is both important to the portrayal of doafcial condition and results of
operations and requires us to make difficult, sctbje or complex judgments or estimates about matteat are uncertain. During the past
three fiscal years, we have not made any matdrages in accounting methodology used to estathleskritical accounting estimates
discussed below. The following represent certaiticat accounting policies that require us to ei@our business judgment or make
significant estimates. In addition, there are ofteans within our consolidated financial statemeht require estimation but are not deemed
critical as defined above.

Product Revenue Recognition
Sales are recognized when the title and risk af &3e passed to the customer, there is persuasdenee of an arrangement for the
sale, delivery has occurred and/or services haga bendered, the sales price is fixed or deternfénatd collectability is rea sonably assured.

Sales are reported net of estimated returns aodiatices which are estimated based upon histogtalrr information. Management
also considers any other current information aadds in making estimates. If actual sales retwlimyances and discounts are greater than
estimated by management, additional expense mayheed.
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Cost of Service Fee Revenue

Our service fee revenue primarily relates to ostrifiution services and order management/custoarerservices and professial anc
technology services. Distribution services relatmarily to inventory management, product receiyvingrehousing and fulfillment (i.e.,
picking, packing and shipping product on our clgiehalf). Order management/customer care servidate primarily to taking customer
orders for our clients’ products via various chdamseich as telephone call-center, electronic asifiaite. These services also entail addressing
customer questions related to orders, as well@seselling/up-selling activities. Professional &chnology services relate primarily to
service and support of eCommerce platforms, websitgtions and quality control for our clients.

Our cost of service fee revenue represents theagsbvide the services described above, primadlppensation and related expenses
and other fixed and variable expenses directlytedlto providing the services. These also incluttamn occupancy and information
technology costs and depreciation and amortizaiqgenses. Certain of these costs are allocateddesraral and administrative expenses.
For these allocations, we estimate the amountrettiexpenses based on client-specific informasach as the number of transactions
processed. We believe our allocation methodologgasonable, however a change in assumptions wesidt in a different gross profit in
our statement of operations, yet no change todsglting net income or loss.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The determination of the collectability of amoudtse from our customers requires us to use estinaagsnake judgments regarding
future events and trends, including monitoring customers’ payment history and current credit wogbs to determine that collectability is
reasonably assured, as well as consideration aibiall business climate in which our clients andtomers operate. Inherently, these
uncertainties require us to make frequent judgmandsestimates regarding our clients and custo’rabilty to pay amounts due us to
determine the appropriate amount of valuation aloges required for doubtful accounts. Provisionglfabtful accounts are recorded when
it becomes evident the client or customer will matke the required payments at either contractualdates or in the future.

In our Retail model, we also maintain an allowafureuncollectible vendor receivables, which arigenf inventory returns to vendors,
vendor rebates, price protections and other pramstiWe determine the sufficiency of the vendoeneable allowance based upon various
factors, including payment history. Amounts recdiftom vendors may vary from amounts recorded bezaf potential non-compliance
with certain elements of vendor programs. If ouriested allowances for uncollectible accountsemdor receivables subsequently prove
insufficient, additional allowance maybe required.

Allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $0.4 mifliand $0.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 20dshectively. We believe our
allowances for doubtful accounts are adequate tercanticipated losses under current conditionsidwer, uncertainties regarding change
the financial condition of our clients and custos&ither adverse or positive, could impact thewmand timing of any additional provisic
for doubtful accounts that may be required.

Inventory Reserves

Inventories (merchandise, held for resale, all bicl are finished goods) are stated at the lowevesfihted average cost or market.
Supplies Distributors and its subsidiaries assugspansibility for slow-moving inventory under cémtdistributor agreements, subject to
certain termination rights, but have the rightéturn product rendered obsolete by engineeringggsgras defined. We review inventories for
impairment on a periodic basis, but at a minimunmuelly. Recoverability of the inventory on handrieasured by comparisons of the
carrying value to the fair value of the inventofis requires us to record provisions and maintagerves for excess or obsolete inventory. If
write-downs of inventories are necessary, the loasis of that inventory is adjusted. The providmmexcess and obsolete inventory was $0.1
million and $0.4 million in the years ended Decemiis 2013 and 2012, respectively. To determieselreserve amounts, we regularly
review inventory quantities on hand and comparetteestimates of future product demand and madeditions. These estimates and
forecasts inherently include uncertainties and irequs to make judgments regarding potential ougnmt December 31, 2013 and 2012,
reserve for slow moving inventory was $1.0 millamd $1.8 million, respectively. We believe our rges are adequate to cover anticipated
losses under current conditions. Significant omticgpated changes to our estimates and forecgiit®r adverse or positive, could impact the
amount and timing of any additional provisions éarcess or obsolete inventory that may be required.

Stock Compensation

We utilize our Employee Stock and Incentive Plad Blon-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (colleely, the “Plans”) to help
attract, retain and incentivize qualified execusiieey employees and non-employee directors te@ser our shareholder value and help build
and sustain growth. As of December 31, 2013, aneggde of 4,142,341 shares of common stock have dne¢horized for issuance under the
Plans, of which 1,174,674 shares remain availailéuture grants. The Plans provide for the grantf
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incentive awards in a variety of forms such asativard of an option, stock appreciation right, ietd stock award, restricted stock unit,
deferred stock unit, among other stock-based awards

From the service inception date to the grant deéerecognize compensation cost for all share-bpaghents based on the reporting
date fair value of the award. After the grant datenpensation cost is measured based on the ganfadr value. Depending on the
conditions associated with the vesting of the awanthpensation cost is recognized on a straigktdingraded basis, net of estimated
forfeitures, over the requisite service period afeaward. .

We estimate the fair value of each option granthendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidoipy model. For certain of the
awards that have a performance condition, we esgith@ compensation cost using a Monte-Carlo sitionlaThe estimated fair value for
awards involves assumptions for expected divideeldl ystock price volatility, risk-free interestea and the expected life of the award.

If, in the future, we determine that another methbdstimating an award’s fair value is more readda, or, if another method for
calculating these input assumptions is prescrilyeduthoritative guidance, and, therefore, shoulddel to estimate expected volatility or
expected term, the fair value calcu lated for daclsbased compensation could change significantly.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used for determining oucdome taxes, under which current and deferred #doiliies and assets are recorded in
accordance with enacted tax laws and rates. Uhdentethod, the amounts of deferred tax liabilides assets at the end of each period are
determined using the tax rate expected to be ateffhen taxes are actually paid or recovered. ateln allowances are established to reduce
def erred tax assets to their net realizable vatduen it is more likely than not that some portiorab of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. In determining the need for valuationwHlnces, we have considered and made judgmentsstinthtes regarding estimated future
taxable income. These estimates and judgmentsdecame degree of uncertainty and changes in gstiseates and assumptions could
require us to adjust the valuation allowances fordeferred tax assets. The ultimate realizatioounfdeferred tax assets depends on the
generation of sufficient taxable income in the &alile taxing jurisdictions. Although we believer@stimates and judgments are reasonable,
actual results may differ, which could be material.

Because we operate in multiple countries, we dbgesuto the jurisdiction of multiple domestic afatleign tax authorities.
Determination of taxable income in any jurisdicti@guires the interpretation of the related taxsland regulations and the use of estimat es
and assumptions regarding significant future eveath as the amount, timing and character of dehs;tpermissible revenue recognition
methods under the tax law and the sources andatkaif income and tax credits. Changes in tax |aegulations, foreign currency excha
restrictions or our level of operations or profitéy in each taxing jurisdiction could have an iagh on the amount of income taxes that we
provide during any given year.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk
Not Applicable.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of PFSweb, Inc. (a Delaware corporatind)subsidiaries (the “Companyd3
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the relatedbtidaged statements of operations and compreheissge shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the two years in the period enBedember 31, 2013. These financial statementtharesponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait afuithe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarge significant estimates made by managememtelss evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of PFSweb,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 a8&d,2and the results of their operations and tesh flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity \&itbounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2014
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 22,41¢ $ 19,62¢
Restricted cas 13C 282
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubgittounts of $382 and $450 at December 31, 2013
2012, respectivel 55,29: 45,68
Inventories, net of reserves of $962 and $1,7&%aember 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti 14,16¢ 24,65¢
Other receivable 5,241 7,67¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,71 4,34¢
Total current asse 101,96: 102,26!
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, ne 27,19( 27,91°
OTHER ASSETS 2,88: 3,28¢
Total asset $ 132,03t $ 133,47
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of lon-term debt and capital lease obligati $ 8,231 $ 16,66(
Trade accounts payak 34,09¢ 40,49:
Deferred revenu 8,181 6,64¢
Accrued expense 25,04t 23,097
Total current liabilities 75,55 86,89¢
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS, less curre portion 2,87¢ 5,40(
DEFERRED REVENUE 7,491 7,56
DEFERRED RENT 5,191 5,56(
Total liabilities 91,11 105,42(
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 1,000,000 stardwrized; none issued and outstant — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 35,000,000 shartmazed;
16,540,904 and 12,812,386 shares issued at Dec&hp2013 and 2012, respectively; and 16,507,43
and 12,788,919 outstanding at December 31, 2012@12, respectivel 17 13
Additional paic-in capital 124,52. 106,01t
Accumulated defici (85,300 (79,409
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,811 1,55¢
Treasury stock at cost, 33,467 she (125) (125)
Total shareholde’ equity 40,92¢ 28,05
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 132,03t $ 133,47:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

2013

2012

REVENUES:
Product revenue, n $ 90,98 $ 119,74
Service fee revent 112,97 120,43:
Pas-through revenu 37,64« 41,39(
Total revenue: 241,60 281,56,
COSTS OF REVENUES
Cost of product revent 85,23’ 110,18:
Cost of service fee reven 77,16( 89,24¢
Cost of pas-through revenu 37,64« 41,39(
Total costs of revenus 200,04: 240,82.
Gross profit 41,56: 40,74
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, inclding stock based compensation expens
$2,574 and $1,325 in the years ended Decembel03B,&nd 2012, respective 46,23¢ 40,62(
Income (loss) from operatiol (4,673 121
INTEREST EXPENSE, ne 67¢ 98¢
Loss from operations before income ta (5,357) (867)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 53¢ 644
NET LOSS $ (5,89) $ (1,517
NET LOSS PER SHARE
Basic $ (039 $ (0.17)
Diluted $ (039 $ (0.12)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDINC
Basic 14,95° 12,77
Diluted 14,957 12,77
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Net Loss $ (5,891) $ (1,51))
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 257 15t
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOS¢ $ (5,639 $ (1,35¢6)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated  Comprehensive — —11€asury Stock  ghareholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount Equity
Balance, December 31,

2011 12,78290 $ 13 $ 104,64 $ (77,899 $ 1,39¢ 18,36 $ (85 $ 28,07
Net loss — — 0 (1,517 — — — (1,517
Stock-based

compensation

expense — — 1,32¢ — — — — 1,32¢
Issuance of common

stock 29,47¢ — 48 — — — — 48
Purchase of treasury

stock — — — — — 15,10¢ (40) (40)
Other comprehensive

loss— foreign

currency

translation

adjustmen — — — — 15E — — 15E

Balance, December 31,

2012 12,812,38 13 106,01¢ (79,409 1,55¢ 33,467 (125) 28,05
Net loss — — — (5,899 — — — (5,897
Stock-based

compensation
expense — — 2,57¢ — — — — 2,57¢
Issuance of common
stock 3,728,51! 4 15,93( — — — — 15,93«
Other comprehensivi
loss— foreign
currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — 257 — — 257
Balance, December 31,
2013 16,540,900 $ 17 $ 12452 $ (85,300 $ 1,811 33,467 $ (125 $ 40,92t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (5,89]) $ (1,517
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,21( 9,24¢
Provision for doubtful accoun 25 (230
Provision for excess and obsolete inven 81 35:
Deferred income taxe 29 (18)
Stocl-based compensation expel 2,57¢ 1,32¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas 28 (76)
Accounts receivabl (9,277) 7,31t
Inventories, ne 10,45¢ 5,65(
Prepaid expenses, other receivables and othes: 2,49¢ 4,42(
Deferred ren (279) 5,27:
Accounts payable, deferred revenue, accrued expemgbother liabilitie (3,63¢) (3,269
Net cash provided by operating activit 6,82¢ 28,58!
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipir (7,977 (14,717)
Net cash used in investing activiti (7,97)) (14,717
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 15,93¢ 48
Purchase of treasury sto — (40)
Decrease in restricted ca 12¢ 62C
Payments on capital lease obligatit (2,680 (2,125
Payments on debt, n (9,729 (10,587
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 3,65¢ (12,079
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALHEN 27¢ 137
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,792 1,931
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of yei 19,62¢ 17,69¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of yezt $ 22,418 $ 19,62
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property and equipment acquired under debt andatdgase obligation $ 1,76¢ $ 7,31(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Overview

PFSweb, Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectivefgrred to as the “Company;” “Supplies Distribstorefers to Supplies Distributors,
Inc. and its subsidiaries; “Retail Connect” referFSweb Retail Connect, Inc.; and “PFSweb” rei@iBFSweb, Inc. and i ts subsidiaries
excluding Supplies Distributors and Retail Connect.

PFSweb Overviey

PFSweb is an international business process owisguprovider of end-to-end eCommerce solutionsméjor brand name companies
seeking to optimize their supply chain and to ewbaheir traditional and online business channedsiaitiatives in the United States, Canz
and Europe. PFSweb offers a broad range of seoffegngs that include digital marketing, eCommet®ehnologies, order management,
customer care, logistics and fulfillment, finanai@anagement and professional consulting.

Supplies Distributors Overvie

Supplies Distributors and PFSweb operate undernilalisbr agreements with Ricoh Company Limited amcbR Production Print
Solutions, a strategic business unit within theoRiEamily Group of Companies (collectively hereafeferred to as “Ricoh”) , under which
Supplies Distributors acts as a distributor of @asi Ricoh products. Substantially all of Suppliéstiibutors’ revenue is generated by its sale
of product purchased from Ricoh.

Supplies Distributors has obtained financing (se&ehl 3 and 4) that allows it to fund the workingita requirements for the sale of
primarily Ricoh products. Pursuant to the transascthanagement services agreements between PFS@é&upplies Distributors, PFSweb
provides to Supplies Distributors transaction mamagnt and fulfillment services, such as managedhwesting and maintenance,
procurement support, web-enabled customer conéatecservices, ¢ ustomer relationship managerfiraticial services including billing
and collection services, information managemenrd,iaternational distribution services. Suppliestiilimitors does not have its own sales
force and relies upon Ricoh’s sales force and ppbdemand generation activities for its sale ofoRiproducts. Supplies Distributors sells its
products in the United States, Canada and Europe.

All of the agreements between PFSweb and Suppisiliutors were made in the context of a relatadyprelationship and were
negotiated in the overall context of PFSweb’s angplies Distributors’ arrangement with Ricoh. Altilgh management believes the terms of
these agreements are generally consistent witlmfaiket values, there can be no assurance thatites charged to or by each company
under these arrangements are not higher or lowaerttie prices that may be charged by, or to, Uizaéfd third parties for similar services. .
of these transactions are eliminated upon congalinla

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior
All intercompany accounts and transactions have leiminated in consolidation.

Investment in Affiliates

Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. (“PFS”), a whplowned subsidiary of PFSweb, has made advanc8splies Distributors that are
evidenced by a Subordinated Demand Note (the “Slihated Note”). Under the terms of certain of tr@rpany’s debt facilities, the
outstanding balance of the Subordinated Note camnaaicreased to motkan $5.0 million or decreased to less than $2lBomiwithout prior
approval of certain of the Company’s lenders (setebl3 and 4). As of both December 31, 2013 an@,20& outstanding balance of the
Subordinated Note was $3.5 million. The SubordimNadée is eliminated in the Company’s consolidaiedricial statements.

PFS has also made advances to Retail Connect, whgtegated $11.1 million as of both December 8132nd 2012. Certain terms
of the Company’s debt facilities provide that tbtat advances to Retail Connect may not be less$8a0 million without prior approval of
Retail Connect’s lender, if needed. PFS has reddive approval of its lender to advance incremeartadunts to certain of its subsidiaries
and/or affiliates, in cluding Retail Connect, ifated, subject to certain financial covenants, éisel PFSweb, Inc. has also advanced to
Retail Connect an additional $8.5 million and $8\#lion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respelsti\As of December 31, 2013,
PFSweb, Inc. has approximately $10.7 million adéao be advanced to Retail Connect and/or otfiidiates. All of these advances are
eliminated upon consolidation.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemeant related disclosures in conformity with acdimgnprinciples generally accepted
in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) req@mmanagement to make judgments, estimates and jpggnathat affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exgseasd disclosure of contingent assets and liglsiliThe recognition and allocation of
certain revenues and selling, general and adméiigér expenses in these consolidated financiatstants also require management estimates
and assumptions.

Estimates and assumptions about future eventshamdeffects cannot be determined with certaintye Company bases its estimates
on historical experience and various other assumgtbelieved to be applicable and reasonable uhdarircumstances. These estites may
change as new events occur, as additional infoomasi obtained and as the operating environmentgd®m These changes have been
included in the consolidated financial statemestsadn as they became known. In addition, managempariodically faced with
uncertainties, the outcomes of which are not wittsircontrol and will not be known for prolongedipes of time. Based on a critical
assessment of accounting policies and the undgrjyislgments and uncertainties affecting the apptinaof those policies, management
believes the Company’s consolidated financial stetas are fairly stated in accordance with US GA&R] provide a fair presentation of the
Company’s financial position and results of openadi

Revenue and Cost Recognitic

Depending on the terms of the customer arrangerSepplies Distributors recognizes product revemee@oduct cost either upon the
shipment of product to customers or when the custaeteives the product. Supplies Distributors psrits customers to return product for
credit against other purchases, which include nstéwr defective products (that Supplies Distribsitihen returns to the manufacturer) and
incorrect shipments. Supplies Distributors providesserve for estimated returns an d allowanceo#ars terms to its customers that it
believes are standard for its industry.

Freight costs billed to customers are reflectedomsponents of product revenue. Freight costs ieduare recorded as a component of
cost of goods sold.

Under its distributor agreements (see Note 6), BegpPistributors bills Ricoh for reimbursementsceftain expenses, including: pass-
through customer marketing programs, including t&band coop funds; certain freight costs; direstsincurred in pas sing on any price
decreases offered by Ricoh to Supplies Distributoiiss customers to cover price protection andageispecial bids; the cost of products
provided to replace defective product returnedust@mers; and certain other expenses as definpgli€si Distributors includes these
reimbursable amounts as they are incurred withrieesponding reduction in either inventory or cdsprmduct revenue. Supplies Distributors
also reflects pass-through customer marketing progras a reduction of both product revenue andoégsbduct revenue.

The Company’s service fee revenue relates to $tsildiution services, order management/customersamsaces, professional and
technology services and the reimbursement of oytecket and third-party expenses. The Company &jlgicharges its service fee revenue
on either a cogblus basis, a percent of shipped revenue basiper tiansaction basis, such as a per item basfalfiiment services or a pe
labor hour basis for web-enabled customer contattee services. Additional fees are billed for otbervices. The Company evaluates its
contractual arrangements to determine whether othey include multiple service elements. Revemrmaegnition is determined for the
separate service elements of the contract in aaocedwith the requirements of Accounting Stand&@uiification 605, “Revenue
Recognition.”

Distribution services relate primarily to inventananagement, product receiving, warehousing arfitiugnt (i.e., picking, packing
and shipping) and facilities and operations managgnservice fee revenue for these activitiesdegaized as earned, which is either (i) ¢
per transaction basis or (ii) at the time of pradulfillment, which occurs at the completion oftli stribution services.

Order management/customer care services relataplynto taking customer orders for the Companyierts’ products. These servic
also entail addressing customer questions relatedders, as well as cross-selling/up-selling éttis. Service fee revenue for this activity is
recognized as the services are rendered. Feesechi@rghe client are on a per transaction basisdoas either (i) a pre-determined fee per
order or fee per telephone minutes incurred, (peadedic ated agent fee, or (iii) are includethim product fulfilment service fees that are
recognized on product shipment.

Professional consulting and technology service mags primarily relate to service and support of m@erce platforms, webs
solutions and quality control for the Company’®nlis. Additionally, the Company provides digitgeacy services that
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enable client marketing programs to attract newarners, convert buyers and increase website vdloese fees are typically charged
either a per labor hour basis, a dedicated resauarel, or a percent of merchandise shipped b8siszice fee revenue for this activity
generally recognized as the services are rendered.

The Company'’s billings for reimbursement of outpafeket expenses, including travel and certain thadty vendor expenses such as
shipping and handling costs and telecommunicati@rges , are included in pagseough revenue. The related reimbursable costeeélertec
as cost of pass-through revenue.

The Companys cost of service fee revenue, representing thietegsovide the services described above, is neizeg as incurred. Cc
of service fee revenue also includes certain asteciated with technology collaboration and ongééthnology support that include
maintenance, web hosting and other ongoing progiamattivities. These activities are primarily perhed to support the distribution and
order management/customer care services and argnieed as incurred.

The Company recognizes revenue and records tradeats receivable, pursuant to the methods desteabeve, when collectability is
reasonably assured. Collectability is evaluateithénaggregate and on an individual customer ontchasis taking into consideration payment
due date, historical payment trends, current firerposition, results of independent credit evatrat and payment terms. Related reserve
determined by either using percentages applieértaio aged receivable categories based on hiatagsults, reevaluated and adjusted as
additional information is received, or a specifientification method. After all attempts to collecteceivable have failed, the receivable is
written off against the allowance for doubtful agcots.

The Company primarily performs its services undattiple year contracts, certain of which includelg#ermination provisions. In
conjunction with these long-term contracts, the @any sometimes receives start-up fees to coveanjiementation costs, including certain
technology infrastructure and development costs. Company defers the start-up fees received, anckthted costs, and recognizes them
over the contract term. The amortization of defémevenue is included as a component of servicesfesnue. The amortization of deferred
implementation costs is included as a cost of serfée revenue. To the extent implementation dostson-technology infrastructure and
development exceed the corresponding fees recetive@xcess costs are expensed as incurred. Towifad summarizes the deferred
implementation revenues and costs, excluding tdoggand development costs that are included ipgnty and equipment (in thousands):

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Deferred implementation revenu
Current $ 8,181 $ 6,57:
Non-current 7,491 7,56z
$ 15,67 $ 14,13t
Deferred implementation cos
Current $ 1971 $ 1,83¢
Non-current 1,78( 1,834

$ 3,751 $ 3,661

Current and non-current deferred implementatiotss@xcluding technology and development costsaa@mponent of prepaid
expenses and other current assets and other assgisctively. Current and non-current deferredémentation revenues may precede the
timing of when the related implementation costsiacerred, and thus deferred.
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Concentration of Business and Credit Risk

No product revenue customer or service fee cliglationship represented more than 10% of the Cogipaonsolidated total net
revenue during the years ended December 31, 20231@®. One client exceeded 10% of the Companyewds receivable at December 31,
2013. A summary of the customer and client conegioins is as follows:

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Product Revenue (as a percentage of total ProdaaRie, net)
Customer ! 16% 15%
Customer - 12% 12%
Service Fee Revenue (as a percentage of totalc8dreie Revenue
Client 1 7% 15%
Client 2 7% 14%

The Company currently anticipates that its prodeeenue and service fee revenue from the custoamerslients identified above will
decline during the next twelve months and the emttral relationship with Client 1 ended during 2013

The Company has provided certain collateralizedantaes of its subsidiaries’ financings and cradiangements. These subsidiaries’
ability to obtain financing on similar terms woudé significantly impacted without these guarantees.

The Company has multiple arrangements with Intésnat Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”) and &h¢ and is dependent upon
the continuation of such arrangements. These agraagts, which are critical to the Company’s ongaipgrations, include Supplies
Distributors’ distributor agreements and certairsapplies Distributors’ working capital financingraements. Substantially all of Supplies
Distributors’ revenue is generated by its salerofipct purchased from Ricoh. Supplies Distributds® relies upon Ricoh’s sales force and
product demand generation activities and the diswaance of such services would have a materiahthppon Supplies Distributors’
business. In addition, Supplies Distributors hamlpct sales to IBM and Ricoh business affiliates.

As a result of certain operational restructuringt®business, Ricoh has implemented, and williooltto implement, certain changes
in the sale and distribution of Ricoh products. Thanges have resulted, and are expected to certbrmesult, in reduced revenues and
profitability for Supplies Distributors in 201 3 dveyond.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term higdplyd investments with original maturities, whemaired, of three months or less.

Other Receivables

Other receivables include $1illion and $6.5 million as of December 31, 2018 @012, respectively, primarily for amounts dueri
Ricoh for costs incurred by the Company under fbidutor agreements (see Note 6). In additiohepteceivables include $0.7 million and
$0.6 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,aetyely, applicable to value added tax receivables

Inventories

Inventories (all of which are finished goods) aaed at the lower of weighted average cost or gtafkhe Company establishes
inventory reserves based upon estimates of dedhnesues due to inventories that are slow movingbsolete, excess levels of inventory or
values assessed at lower than cost.

Supplies Distributors assumes responsibility fomsmoving inventory under its Ricoh distributor agments, subject to certain
termination rights, but has the right to returnduct rendered obsolete by engineering changesfaeed (see Note 6). In the event PFSweb,
Supplies Distributors and Ricoh terminate the diator agreements, the agreements provide for dinéées to mutually agree on a plan of
disposition of Supplies Distributors’ then existiimgentory.

Supplies Distributors’ inventories include merchiaedn-transit that has not been received by the@amy but that has been shipped
and invoiced by Supplies Distributors’ vendors. Theresponding payable for inventories in-trarsinicluded in accounts payable in the acc
ompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The Company reviews inventory for impairment oreagdic basis, but at a minimum annually. The psmn for excess and obsolete
inventory in the years ended December 31, 201284@ was $0.1 million and $0 .4 million, respedijveRecoverability of the inventory on
hand is measured by comparison of the carryingevafithe inventory to the fair value of the invagtarhe reserve for slow moving or exc
inventory was $1.0 million and $1.8 million as ot&mber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Property and Equipmen

The components of property and equipment as of Bbee 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows (in thougands

December 31 December 31 Depreciable

2013 2012 Life
Purchased and capitalized software c $ 39,82¢ $ 35,02« 1-5 year:
Furniture and fixture 23,15¢ 22,37¢ 2-10 year
Computer equipmet 11,05( 14,03t 3-5 year:
Leasehold improvemen 13,64¢ 13,22¢ 3-10 year
Other 2,52( 2,95: 3-5 year
90,20t 87,61¢
Less-accumulated depreciation and amortiza (63,01%) (59,707)
Property and equipment, r $ 27,19C $ 27,91

The Company makes judgments and estimates in cctigarwith the carrying value of these assetsuidicl amounts to be
capitalized, depreciation and amortization methartts useful lives. Additionally, the Company revidasg-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibatcarrying amount of an asset may not be reablee The Company records
impairment losses, if any, in the period in whibb Company determines the carrying amount is roiverable. Recoverabili ty of any assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparisthre afarrying amount of an asset to future net dasis expected to be generated by the
asset. This may require the Company to make judtsmegarding longerm forecasts of future revenues and costs retatdte assets subje
to review. During 2013 and 2012, no impairment miperty and equipment was identified or recorded.

Property and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated using the straight-line method oveetitamated useful lives of the
respective assets. Capitalized implementation @stslepreciated over the respective client conteam. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the useful life & telated asset or the remaining lease term. Digpi@t and amortization expense related to
property and equipment, excluding capital leasesnd 2013 and 2012 was $7.6 million and $7.0 wonil)irespectively.

The Company’s property held under capital leasesuanto approximately $4.0 million and $5.1 millioret of accumulated
amortization of approximately $4.4 million and $2n@lion, at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respelgtii@epreciation and amortization
expense related to capital leases during 2013 @bhd &as $2.6 million and $2.2 million, respectivdly addition, during 2012, PFS incurred
approximately $6.0 million of leasehold improventeat certain of its leased facilities that is beamgortized over the shorter of the asset's
useful lives or the lease terms and were priméirignced via tenant allowances that are also baingrtized over the lease terms.

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain real estate for itsheaiee, call center and corporate offices, as veetleatain equipment under non-
cancelable operating leases that expire at vadates through 2024. Management expects that, inahmal course of business, leases that
expire will be renewed or replaced by other simié@ses. The Company recognizes escalating legseepés on a straight-line basis over the
term of each respective lease, with the differdreteveen cash payments and rent expense recogrezegirecorded as deferred rent in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

For the Company’s Canadian and European operatioa$ocal currency is the functional currency. @dksets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the étitegeriod, and income and expense items arsl&i@d at the average exchange rates on a
mo nthly basis.

44




PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

The Company includes currency gains and lossesam-term intercompany advances in the determinaifnet income and loss. The
Company reports gains and losses on intercomparigfocurrency transactions that are of a long-tenastment nature as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses stock-based compensation, inglstiick options, deferred stock units and otheskstimsed awards to provide
long-term performance incentives for its executikey employees and non-employee directors. Franséhvice inception date to the grant
date, the Company recognizes compensation coatlfsihare-based payments based on the reportiegalavalue of the award. After the
grant date, compe nsation cost is measured bastx @mant date fair value. Depending on the dmrd associated with the vesting of the
award, compensation cost is recognized on a strliighor graded basis, net of estimated forfegumver the requisite service period of each
award. The Company records compensation costasiponent of selling, general and administrativeesses in the consolidated statem
of operations.

The Company estimates the fair value of each ogfiant on the date of grant using the Black-Schopg®n-pricing model and
estimates the compensation cost for certain oth&rds that have a performance condition using até4Garlo simulation. The estimated 1
value for awards involves assumptions for expedteidiend yield, sto ck price volatility, risk-fraaterest rates and the expected life of the
award.

Income Taxes

For federal income tax purposes, tax years thaaiesubject to examination include years1®0through 2013. However, the utilizat
of net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards thabse prior to 2010 remain subject to examinationugh the years such carryforwards are
utilized. For Europe, tax years that remain subiieetxamination include years 2011 to 2013. Howgether utilization of NOL carryforwards
that arose prior to 2011 remain subject to exarn@ndhrough the years such carryforwards are etliZor Canada, tax years that remain
subject to examination include years 2005 to 2d&pending on the subsidiary. For state income tagqgses, the tax years that remain
subject to examination include years 2009 to 2d&pending upon the jurisdiction in which the Comp#iles tax returns. The Company and
its subsidiaries have various income tax returrthénprocess of examination. The Company doesxpatat these examinations will result in
unrecognized tax benefits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe future tax consequences attributable tiedifices between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabdities and their respective tax bases. Defetagdassets and liabilities are measured t
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxableriada the years in which those temporary differsrare expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilitfes change in tax rates is recognized in inconmt@énperiod that includes the enactment date.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the amount rik@dg than not to be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrbtatcertain tax positions in income tax expense.

Self Insurance

The Company is self-insured in the U.S. for medigalirance benefits up to certain stop-loss lin8tsch costs are accrued based on
known claims and an estimate of incurred, but apbrted (“IBNR”) claims. IBNR claims are estimatgging historical lag information and
other data provided by claims administrators.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial iostents, which include cash and cash equivalentsuats receivable, accounts
payable, debt and capital lease obligations, apprate their fair values based on short terms tauritgtor current market prices and interest
rates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ahangquity (net assets) of a business enterptisagla period from transactions
and other events and circumstances from non-ovmecss. Comprehensive income (loss) consists dhoneme (loss) and foreign currency
translation adjustments.
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Net Loss Per Common Sha

Basic and diluted net loss per share are computeliviling net loss by the weighted-average nundfeommon shares outstanding
for the reporting period. Stock options not incldde the calculation of diluted net loss per sHarghe years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, were 1.8 million and 2.1 million, respectiyeds the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Cash Paid For Interest and Taxes During Year

The Company made payments for interest of appraeiyn&0.7 million and $1.0 million in the years eadDecember 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively (see Notes 3 and 4). Incompagments of approximately $0.5 million and $0.6lionl were made during each of the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgcdtbes Note 8)

3. Vendor Financing

Supplies Distributors has a short-term credit fgciith IBM Credit LLC (“IBM Credit”) to finance its distribution of Ricoh product:
the United States, providing financing for eligilité&coh inventory and certain receivables up to @20illion. The agreement has no stated
maturity date and provides either party the abtlitgxit the facility following a 90-day notice. %én the structure of this facility, the
Company has classified the outstanding amountsruhiefacility, which were $9.8 million and $11n8illion as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, as accounts payable in theotioiated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2Bdgplies Distributors had $2.2 million
available credit under this facility. The creditifidy contains cross default provisions, varioastrictions upon the ability of Supplies
Distributors to, among others, merge, consolidsg#,assets, incur indebtedness, make loans amdgrdy to related parties (including enti
directly or indirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), pider guarantees, make investments and loans, pbesiggts, make changes to capital stock
ownership structure and pay dividends, as wellr@ntial covenants, such as annualized revenuetking capital, net profit after tax to
revenue, and total liabilities to tangible net viipis defined, and are secured by certain of thetssf Supplies Distributors, as well as a
collateralized guaranty of PFSweb. Additionally, SPE required to maintain a minimum SubordinateteNeceivable balance from Supplies
Distributors of $3.5 million and the Company isu&gd to maintain a minimum shareholders’ equit$®8.0 million. Borrowings under the
credit facility accrue interest, after a definegefifinancing period, at prime rate plus 0.5% (3.2%6f both December 31, 2013 and 2012).
The facility also includes a monthly service fee.

On March 28, 2014, Supplies Distributors enterg¢d &am amended credit facility with IBM Credit, whiceduces the maximum
financing under the facility from $20 million to $nillion, reduces the minimum Subordinated Notiahee to $2.5 million and modifies
certain financial covenants.

4. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations:

Outstanding debt and capital lease obligationsisbo&the following (in thousands):

December 31  December 31

2013 2012

Loan and security agreements, United Stz
Supplies Distributor $ 3,77¢ $ 3,26¢
PFS 1,47: 11,07:
Master lease agreemel 4,97: 6,64¢
Other 88t 1,071
Total 11,107 22,06(
Less current portion of lo-term debt 8,231 16,66(
Long-term debt, less current porti $ 2,87¢ $ 5,40(

Loan and Security Agreemet— Supplies Distributors

Supplies Distributors has a loan and security agess with Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatioWglls Fargo”) to provide
financing for up to $25 million of eligible accowmeceivable in the United States and Canada. Asoémber 31, 2013, Supplies
Distributors had $2.3 million of available creditder this agreement. The Wells Fargo facility eapion the earlier of Miach 2014 or the da
on which the parties to the Ricoh distributor agreat (see Note 6) no longer operate under the tefrmsch agreement and/or Ricoh no
longer supplies products pursuant to such agreeBentowings under the Wells Fargo facility accimierest at prime rate plus 0.25% to
0.75% (3.75% as of December 31, 2013) or Eurododie plus 2.5% to 3.0%, dependent on excess aildjlaand subject to a minimum of
3.0%, as defined. The interest rate as of DeceR®be2013 was 3.75% for $3.8
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million of outstanding borrowings. As of Decembédr, 2012, the interest rate was 3.75% for $1.3 amlind 3.0% for $2.0 million of
outstanding borrowings. This agreement containsscdefault provisions, various restrictions upandbility of Supplies Distributors to,
among other things, merge, consolidate, sell assets indebtedness, make loans and paymentdatedeparties (including entities directly
or indirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), provide gudeas, make investments and loans, pledge assake,changes to capital stock owner:
structure and pay dividends, as well as finan@akoants, such as a fixed charge coverage rationamchum net worth, as defined, and is
secured by all of the assets of Supplies Distritsitas well as a collateralized guarantee of PFSieditionally, PFS is required to maintain
a Subordinated Note receivable balance from Supplistributors of no less than $3.5 million and may maintain restricted cash of more
than $5.0 million, and is restricted with regardremsactions with related parties, indebtednedschanges to capital stock ownership
structure. Supplies Distributors has entered ildoked account agreements with its banks and VWeltgo pursuant to which a security
interest was granted to Wells Fargo for all U.S1 @anadian customer remittances received in spddifank accounts. At December 31, 2
and 2012, these bank accounts held $0.1 million®n2 million, respectively, which was restricted payment to Wells Fargo.

On March 282014, Supplies Distributors amended the Wells Fagyeement, which extends the termination dateugiiraviarch 201¢
reduces the maximum financing from $25 million i®$nillion and reduces the minimum Subordinate Natiance to $2.5 million.

Loan and Security Agreemel— PFSweb

PFS has a Loan and Security Agreement (“Comerigaékgent”) with Comerica Bank (“Comerica”). The Caioa Agreement
provides for up to $12.5 million ($10.0 million ding certain non-seasonal peak months) of eligibmants receivable financing (“Working
Capital Advances”) through March 2014. The Comefigeeement also provide d for up to $3.0 millioretifjible equipment purchases
(“Equipment Advances”) through January 2013, witingipal payments due through April 2015. As of Bexber 31, 2013, PFS had $12.4
million of available credit under the Working Cagdifdvance portion of this facility and no remaigiavailability for Equipment Advances.
Borrowings under the Working Capital Advance partad this Comerica Agreement accrue interest am@niate plus 2% (5.25% at both
December, 31, 2013 and 2012), while the Equipmeaiviafices accrue interest at prime rate plus 2.258¢4%t both December 31, 2013 and
2012). The Comerica Agreement contains cross dgfaovisions, various restrictions upon PFS’s &piid, among other things, merge,
consolidate, sell assets, incur indebtedness, foaks and payments to related parties (includingiendirectly or indirectly owned by
PFSweb, Inc.), make capital expenditures, makestnvents and loans, pledge assets, make changagital stock ownership structure, as
well as financial covenants of a minimum tangibé worth of $20 million, as defined, a minimum eéags before interest and taxes, plus
depreciation, amortization and non-cash compensatoruals, if any, as defined, and a minimum Hgyiratio, as defined. The Comerica
Agreement restricts the amount of the Subordinhiete receivable from Supplies Distributors to a mmaxn of $5.0 million. The Comerica
Agreement is secured by all of the assets of PE®edl as a guarantee of PFSweb, Inc.

On March 31, 2014, PFS amended the Comerica Agmeemwhich extends the termination date throughdd@016, increases the
maximum financing amount to $20.0 million ($17.0limn during certain non-peak months), providesiddal equipment financing
opportunities of $2.0 million and modifies certéimancial covenants.

Factoring Agreement

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary hasctoféing agreement with BNP Paribas Fortis FactBNP Paribas”) that provides
factoring for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximaté10.3 million at December 31, 2013) of eligibkeaunts receivables through March 2(
This factoring agreement is accounted for as areddoorrowing. There were no outstanding borrowimgef December 31, 2013 or
2012. As of December 31, 2013, Supplies DistritaitBuropean subsidiary had approximately 0.7 omllEurogapproximately $1.0 millior
of available credit under this agreement. Borrowiagcrue interest at Euribor plus 0.7% (0.9% atebdaer 31, 2013).

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary renethedfactoring agreement with BNP Paribas effediagch 31, 2014, which extends
the termination date through March 2015.

Credit Facility — Retail Connect

Retail Connect has an asset-based line of crediityeof up to $2 .0 million from Wells Fargo thugh May 2014, which is
collateralized by substantially all of Retail Contig assets. Borrowings under the facility are fedito a percentage of eligible accounts
receivable and inventory, up to a specified amoDuntstanding borrowings under the facility beaeiast at prime rate plus 1% or Eurodollar
rate plus 3.5%. There were no outstanding borrosvagjof December 31, 2013 or 2012. As of Decembe?@®1 3, Retail Connect had no
available credit under this facility. In connectioith the line of credit, Retail Connect enteretbia cash management arrangement whereby
Retail Connect’s operating accounts are considergtticted and swept and used to repay
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outstanding amounts under the line of credit, if.arhe credit facility restricts Retail Connectlsilty to, among other things, merge,
consolidate, sell assets, incur indebtedness, toake, investments and payments to subsidiariékatas and related parties (including
entities directly or indirectly owned by PFSwel:.)n make investments and loans, pledge asset® aienges to capital stock ownership
structure, and requires a minimum tangible net it Retail Connect of $0, as defined. PFSwebduasanteed all current and future
obligations of Retail Connect under this line addit. Based on current borrowing needs, the Compaeg not anticipate renewing this credit
facility upon its maturity.

Debt Covenant:

To the extent the Company or any of its subsidiafad to comply with its covenants applicable t/odebt or vendor financing
obligations, including the monthly financial covehaequirements, such as profitability and castvfland required level of shareholders’
equity or net worth (as defined), the Company wdddequired to obtain a waiver from the lendetherlender would be entitled to
accelerate the repaym ent of any outstanding cfadllity obligations, and exercise all other riglind remedies, including sale of collateral
and enforcement of payment under the Company pguertintee. Any acceleration of the repaymentettedit facilities may have a
material adverse impact on the Comparfynancial condition and results of operations ao@ssurance can be given that the Company v
have the financial ability to repay all of suchightions. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Compan restricted net assets of
approximately $26.9 million and $20.7 million, resfively. As of December 31, 2013, the Company wammpliance with all debt
covenants.

Master Lease Agreemen

The Company has various agreements that providedsing or financing transactions of equipment ether assets and will continue
to enter into such arrangements as needed to frthiecpurchasing or leasing of certain equipmewtioer assets. Borrowings under these
agreements, which generally have terms of thré@vioyears, are generally secured by the relatgdpenent, and in certain cases, by a
Company parent guarantee.

Debt and Capital Lease Maturitie
The Company’s aggregate maturities of debt subsgdqaddecember 31, 2013 are as follows (in thousand

Fiscal year ended December

2014 $ 6,07¢
2015 1,022
2016 15C
Thereaftel —
Total $ 7,24¢

The following is a schedule of the Company’s futomi@imum lease payments under the capital leasgsther with the present value
of the net minimum lease payments as of Decemhe2@®l3 (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended December

2014 $  2,29(
2015 1,09¢
2016 504
2017 141
2018 41
Thereaftel —
Total minimum lease paymer $ 4,07t
Less amount representing interest at rates rariging4.5% to 4.75% (219
Present value of net minimum lease paym 3,861
Less: Current portio (2,159
Long-term capital lease obligatiol $ 1,704
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5. Stock and Stock Options

In May 2013, the Company completed a private plaggrpursuant to which the Company sold an aggrexgfe8e¢?2 million shares of
common stock, par value $0.001 per share, at $geB8hare, resulting in net proceeds, after dedlycffering expense, of approximately
$14.1 million.

Preferred Stock Purchase Righ

On June 8, 2000, and as amended, the Company’sl Bbé&irectors declared a dividend distributionooie preferred stock purchase
right (a “Right”) for each share of the Companytsanmon stock outstanding on July 6, 2000 and eaateséf common stock issued
thereafter. Each Right entitles the registere dedtw@ders to purchase from the Company onetboaesandth of a share of preferred stock
exercise price of $314.90, subject to adjustmené Rights are not currently exercisable, but winddome exercisable if certain events
occurred relating to a person or group acquiringtmpting to acquire 23 percent or more of themm@any’s outstanding shares of common
stock. The Rights expire on July 6, 2015, unledseened, exchanged or extended by the Company.

Stock Compensation Plar

The Company has an Employee Stock and Incentive (fi@ “Employee Plan”) and a Non-Employee Dire&twck Option and
Retainer Plan (the “Director Plan”), each as amdratal restated (collectively, the “Plans”) undeicliran aggregate of 4,142,341 shares of
common stock have been authorized for issuancePTres provide for the granting of incentive awaaldirectors, executive management,
key employees, and outside consultants of the Coynjmea variety of forms such as the award of atioop stock appreciation right, restrict
stock award, restricted stock unit, deferred stotk, among other stock-based awards. The Compsey newly issued shares of common
stock to satisfy awards under the Plans.

From the service inception date to the grant dage2Company recognizes compensation cost for aleshased payments based on the
reporting date fair value of the award. After thiarg date compensation cost is measured basee @naht date fair value. Depending on the
conditions associated with the vesting of the awenthpensation cost is recognized on a straighktdingraded basis, net of estimated
forfeitures, over the requisite service period aleaward.

Total stock-based compensation expense was $ #iémand $1.3 million for the years ended Decentkier2013 and 2012,
respectively, and was included as a componentlirigegeneral and administrative expenses in thesolidated statements of operations. As
of December 31, 2013, there was $4.2 million ddltanrecognized compensation costs related to ested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Plans, which isceegbéo be recognized over a weighted averagegefiapproximately 2.6 years. This
expected cost does not include the impact of atwrdustock-based compensation awards.

As of December 31, 2013, there were 1,174,674 sharailable for future grants under the Plans.hEaack option or stock
appreciation right award granted reduces the sitates available for grant by one share, while eacrd granted other than in the form of a
stock option or stock appreciation right reducesshares available for grant by 1.22 shares.

Stock Options

The rights to purchase shares under employee sfmiakn agreements issued under the Plans typiealyover a three-year period,
one-twelfth each quarter. Stock options must beatsed within 10 years from the date of grant. Btogtions are generally issued such that
the exercise price is equal to the market valubh@Company’s common stock at the date of grant.
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The following table summarizes stock option acjivinder the Plans:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Life (in Value (in
Shares Price Per Share Price years) millions)
Outstanding, December 31, 20 2,100,18° $1.0—%$13.91 $ 4.5t
Grantec 310,50 $4.0—-%7.89 $ 5.3¢
Exercisec (514,149 $1.01—%8.04 $ 3.62
Cancelec (77,94) $1.4¢6—$12.08 $ 5.2¢
Outstanding, December 31, 20 1,818,59: $1.0—$13.91 $ 4.9C
Exercisable, December 31, 20 1,498,09 $1.0—%$13.91 $ 4.8 56 $ 6.7
Exercisable and expected to vest, December 31, 1,788,88. $1.0—%$1391 $ 4.9C 6.2 $ 7.8

The weighted average fair value per share of optgranted during the years ended December 31,2812012 was $ 3.72 and $1.84,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiaercised under the Stock Option Plans was $1 lfomilluring the year ended December 31,
2013.

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidaipy model with the following
assumptions used for grants of options under thesP|

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Expected dividend yiel — —
Expected stock price volatilit 80%- 82%  82%- 83%
Weighted average stock price volatil 82% 83%
Risk-free interest rat 1.0%-2.1% 0.9%-1.1%
Expected life of options (year 6 6

The Black-Scholes option valuation model requikesinput of highly subjective assumptions, inclaggihe expected life of the stock-
based award and stock-price volatility. The assionptlisted above represent management’s bestasmbut these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of manzant judgment. As a result, if other assumpti@dsiteen used, the Company'’s recorded
and pro forma stock-based compensation expensd bauk been different. In addition, the Compamgdiired to estimate the expected
forfeiture rate and only recognize expense forétaigares expected to vest. If the Company’s aftitfgiture rate is materially different from
its estimate, the share-based compensation expengkbe materially different. The expected lifeoptions has been computed using the
simplified method.

Performance Share

On May 22, 2013, pursuant to the Employee PlanCibrapany issued Performance-Based Share Awardd¢fRence Shares”, as
defined in the Employee Plan) to certain of the @any’s executives. The number of Performance Shhat¢®ach such individual may
receive is subject to, and calculated by referéocthe achievement by the Company of certain ZDkcial targets. Based on the
Company'’s 2013 fi nancial results, the aggregateimmam number of Performance Shares that may bedsgr 2013 is approximately
598,000. The issuance of the Performance Shasebjsct to four year vesting (beginning with fisgahr 2013) based upon continued
employment and the comparative market performameef) annual and cumulative basis) of the Compagrismon stock on NASDAQ
compared to the Russell Micro Cap Index. The dctumber of shares issued on each annual vestitegcdald range from zero to 100%,
depending on satisfaction of the vesting conditions

The compensation cost for the market conditionipomf the Performance Shares was estimated basadjmant date valuation usin
Monte-Carlo simulation, which resulted in a ranfestimated fair values of $5.29 - $ 9.07 for thewal performance market condition and
$7.34 - $9.07 for the cumulative performance mackeidition. The estimated fair values used forReeformance Shares were computed
assuming a risk-free interest rate of 0.8% andxgeeted volatility of 52.6%.

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate intrinsigevaf the vested and unvested Performance Shag$Ww6 million and $3.8
million, respectively.
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6. Distributor Agreements

Supplies Distributors, PFSweb and Ricoh have edterte distributor agreements under which Supliesributors acts as a distribu
of various products, primarily Ricoh products, &fSweb provides transaction management and fudfilinrservices to Supplies Distributors.
The dis tributor agreements are subject to periogtiewals, the next of which is in December 201ddés the distributor agreements, Ricoh
sells product to Supplies Distributors and reimbarSupplies Distributors for certain freight coslisgect costs incurred in passing on any
decreases offered by Ricoh to Supplies Distributoiiss customers to cover price protection andageispecial bids, the cost of products
provided to replace defective product returnedust@mers and other certain expenses as definegli€pistributors can return to Ricoh
product rendered obsolete by Ricoh engineeringgdmafter customer demand ends. Ricoh determines wiproduct is obsolete. Ricoh and
Supplies Distributors also have agreements und@hwRicoh reimburses or collects from Supplies iisitors amounts calculated in certain
inventory cost adjustments. Supplies Distribufzasses through to customers marketing program#igpelsy Ricoh and administers such
programs according to Ricoh guidelines.

7. Supplies Distributors

Pursuant to a credit agreement, Supplies Distrilsugorestricted from making any distributions tSweb if, after giving affect theret
Supplies Distributors’ would be in noncompliancehnits financial covenants. Under the terms o&itseended credit agreements, Supplies
Distributors is restricted from paying annual cdshidends without the prior approval of its lendésse Notes 3 and 4). Supplies Distributors
has received lender approval to pay approximatdly8$nillion of dividends in 2014. Supplies Distitbrs paid dividends to PFSweb of $1.5
million and $1.0 million in 2013 and 2012, respeely.

8. Income Taxes

The consolidated income (loss) from continuing agiens before income taxes, by domestic and foreigities, is as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Domestic $ (6,049 $ (492
Foreign 691 (375
Total $ (5,359 $ (867)

A reconciliation of the difference between the estpd income tax expense from continuing operatairibe U.S. federal statutory
corporate tax rate of 34%, and the Company’s dffec¢tx rate is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Income tax benefit computed at statutory | $ 1,820 $ (29%)
Foreign dividends receive 45 171
Items not deductible for tax purpos 41 78C
Change in valuation reser 1,65¢ 1,97¢
State taxe 367 492
Impact of foreign taxatio 94 9€
Foreign exchange rate differer 104 (76)
Net operating loss adjustmel (220 (1,616
Prior year retur-to-provision tru-up 567 (665)
Other (299 (219
Provision for income taxe $ 53¢ $ 644
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Current and deferred income tax expense (bensfitliinmarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Current
State $ 40€ $ 537
Foreign 104 12t
Total current 51C 662
Deferred
State (107) —
Foreign 13€ (18)
Total deferrec 29 (18)
Total $ 53¢ $ 644
The components of the deferred tax asset (liabéitg as follows (in thousands):
December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 6l€ $ 63¢
Inventory reservi 347 63C
Accrued expense 2,10¢ 1,48t
Net operating loss carryforwar 20,89: 20,61"
Other 4,19:; 3,191
28,15: 26,56:
Less— Valuation allowanct 26,56¢ 24,91«
Total deferred tax ass 1,58¢ 1,64¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (931) (1,23¢)
Other — (46)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (931) (1,289
Deferred tax assets, r $ 65: §$ 364

Management believes that PFSweb has not establéskeflicient history of earnings, on a stand-albasis, to support the more likely
than not realization of certain deferred tax assegxcess of existing taxable temporary differan@evaluation allowance has been provided
for the majority of these net deferred income tssets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The rergaiet deferred tax assets at both
December 31, 2013 and 2012 primarily relate toGbhepany’s European operations and certain stateenasfits. At December 31, 2013, net
operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards relate to thl@losses of PFSweb’s European subsidiary tota@puayoximately $0.4 million, PFSwed’
Canadian subsidiary totaling approximately $6.0iarland PFSweb’s U.S. subsidiaries totaling apjpnexely $56.7 million that expire at
various dates from 2014 through 2033. The U.S. N@iyforward includes approximately $4.9 milliotiating to tax benefits of stock optit
exercises and, if utilized, will be recorded agbadditional paid-in capital upon utilization ratttban as an adjustment to income tax expense
from continuing operations. The U.S. NOL also inlga approximately $20.3 million of NOL acquireddref February 2006, which is subject
to annual limits of $1.2 million and $16.0 milliaf NOL created before February 2006 subject to ahlimits of $1.4 million under IRS
Section 382,

The Company evaluates its tax positions for poathitibilities associated with unrecognized taxdféa. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, no unrecognized tax benefits, penaltiesterdést were identified or recorded. The Companysdwm expect to record unrecognized tax
benefits in the next twelve months .

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases facilities, warehouse and offieee and transportation and other equipment wpirating leases expiring in
various years through February 28 , 2024. In masés, management expects that, in the normal cofimesiness, leases will be renewed or
replaced by other similar leases. The Companyititiateases generally contain one or more reneypdions.
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Minimum future annual rental payments under ganecelable operating leases having original temexcess of one year are as foll¢
(in thousands):

Operating
Lease

Payments
Fiscal year ended December
2014 $ 6,281
2015 6,20:
2016 5,452
2017 4,51(
2018 4,39:¢
Thereaftel 18,571
Total $ 45,41¢

Minimum rental payments under operating leasesem@gnized on a straight-line basis over the terth@lease including any periods
of free rent. Any differences between cash rerdghpents made and straight-line rent expense isdedas deferred rent on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Tot&lrexpense under operating leases approximate@l Biion and $6.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgci@eitain landlord required deposits are secuyelgters of credit

In 2012 , the Company incurred approximately $6illan of leasehold improvements at certain ofléased facilities that will be
amortized over the shorter of the assets liveh@tdase terms and were primarily financed vianeahowances that will also be amortized
over the lease terms.

The Company received municipal tax abatementsriiaiodlocations. In prior years, the Company reedinotice from a municipality
that it did not satisfy certain criteria necesdarynaintain the abatements and that the municigihlogity planned to make an adjustment to
the Company’s tax abatement. The Company dispbddjustment and such dispute has been settladheitmunicipality. However, the
amount of additional property taxes to be asseagathst the Company and the timing of the relasanents has not been finalized. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company believes it hasuadely accrued for the expected assessment.

In April 2010, a sales employee of eCOST.com, (teCOST”", the former name of Retail Connect) was charged wiglating various
federal criminal statutes in connection with thiesaf eCOST products to certain customers, andoappately $620,000 held in an eCOST
deposit account was seized and turned over to thee®@f the U.S. Attorney in connection with suattivity. In August 2012, the employee
pleaded guilty to a misdemeanor. Neither the Compam eCOST have been charged with any crimin@iagtand the Company is seeking
the recovery or reimbursement of the funds whiehcarrrently classified as other receivables orlxbeember 31, 2013 financial statements.
Based on the information available to date, the @amy is unable to determine the amount of the basy, relating to the seizure of such
funds. No assurance can be given, however, thatdizere of such funds, or the inability of the @amy to recover such funds or any
significant portion thereof, or any costs and exgasnincurred by the Company in connection with iédter, will not have a material adverse
effect upon the Company’s financial condition csuks of operations.

The Company is subject to claims in the ordinamyrse of business, including claims of alleged ingement by the Company or its
subsidiaries of the patents, trademarks and otieltéctual property rights of third parties. PESjenerally required to indemnify its service
fee clients against any third party claims allegimgingement by PFS of the patents, trademarksadher intellectual property rights of third
parties.
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10. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is currently organized into two primapgrating segments, which generally align withdbiporate organization
structure. In the first segment, PFSweb is an matigonal provider of various business process autsiog solutions and operates as a service
fee business. In th e second operating segmenisifiBss and Retail Connect”), subsidiaries of thm@any purchase inventory from clients

and resell the inventory to client customers. s fegment, the Company generally recognizes ptaoduenue.

Revenues (in thousand:
PFSwek
Business and Retail Conne
Eliminations

Income (loss) from operations (in thousan
PFSwek
Business and Retail Connge

Depreciation and amortization (in thousant
PFSwelk
Business and Retail Conng¢

Capital expenditures (in thousanc
PFSwelk
Business and Retail Conne

Assets (in thousands
PFSwek
Business and Retail Conne
Eliminations
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Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
$ 152,33t % 167,22(

100,96( 120,41

(11,695 (6,076

$ 241,60: $ 281,56.

$ (5,859 $ (2,030)

1,18¢ 2,151

$ (4,679 $ 121
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

$ 10,05 $ 9,14

15¢ 101

$ 10,21( % 9,24¢
December 31 December 31

2013 2012

$ 7,87¢ $ 14,44¢

9t 262

$ 7,971 $ 14,71

$ 98,74 % 94,94(

47,11¢ 52,64¢

(13,825 (14,117

$ 132,03t $ 133,47:
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Geographic areas in which the Company operatesdedhe United States, Europe (primarily Belgiuamg Canada. The following is
geographic information by area. Revenues are atgibbased on the Company’s domicile.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Revenues (in thousand:
United State: $ 192,52. $ 225,59:
Europe 44, 77( 51,58
Canade 5,98¢ 5,811
Inter-segment elimination (1,677) (1,427%)

$ 241,60 $ 281,56:

Other lon¢-lived assets (in thousand

United State: $ 25,54¢ % 25,82¢
Europe 4,16¢ 4,92¢
Canad:e 35¢€ 44¢

$ 30,07 $ 31,20:

11. Employee Savings Plan

The Company has a defined contribution employe@gawplan under Section 401(k) of the Internal RexeCode. Substantially all
full-time and part-time U.S. employees are eligitugarticipate in the plan. The Company, at iscdition, may match employee
contributions to the plan and also make an additioratching contribution in the form of profit sivag in recognition of the Company’s
performance. The Company contributed approximak8l® million during each of the years ended Decerhe2013 and 2012, to match an
approved percentage of employee contributions.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a comprehensive set of disclosure otsnénd procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15¢()15d15(e) under the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). As ofd@mber 31, 201 3, an evaluation of the effectiveé®ur disclosure controls and
procedures was carried out under the supervisidnéth the participation of our management, inchgdour Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer. Based upon that evaluatitie Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financidfi€r concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this report, these disclosargrols and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the year ended December 31, 2013, therenwahange in internal control over financial repayt(as defined in Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that imaserially affected, or is reasonably likely to erally affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal mrdver financial reporting is designed, under shpervision of our principle executive
and principle financial officers, and effected hy 8oard of Directors, management and other perdptmprovide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdkpurposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica (GAAP). Our internal control over finaakreporting includes those policies and
procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenanaeodrds that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositi
of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assuraratdridnsactions are recorded as necessary to panepiaration of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that our receipts aneedjiures are being made only in accordance withoaizations of our management and
Board of Directors; and (iii) provide reasonablewaance regarding prevention or timely detectionr@uthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on the financial statements.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessiointernal control over financial reporting asi¥cember 31, 2013 . This
evaluation was based on the framework in “Inte@@ahtrol—Integrated Framework” issued by the Comeeitbf Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) in 1992. All intégantrol systems, no matter how well designed ghiaterent limitations. Therefore,
even those systems determined to be effective imande only reasonable assurance regarding thegibty of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with GAAP. Also, projectiohary evaluation of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting to futyseriods are subject to the risk that the contmdy become inadequate because of changes ir
conditions, or that the degree of compliance withpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Based on our evaluation under the frameworktarnal Control—Integrated Frameworlour Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that internal contrgeofinancial reporting was effective as of Decentiie 2013.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of our independent registered public acdagrfirm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report wassubject to attestation by our independent remgst public accounting firm pursuant to
the exemption provided to issuers that are nogdaaccelerated filers” or “accelerated filers” unthe Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act of 2010.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Gowance

Reference is made to the information to be sehfiorthe section entitled “Board of Directors” di@ommittees of the Board” in the
definitive proxy statement in connection with ounrial Meeting of Shareholders (the “Proxy Stateff)ewhich section is incorporated
herein by reference. Our Proxy Statement will ledfivith the Securities and Exchang e Commissidnater than 120 days after the last day
of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

Information required by Part Ill, Item 11, will lirecluded in the section entitled “Executive Compaim” of our Proxy Statement
relating to our annual meeting of shareholdersiaicorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners attanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

Information required by Part Ill, Item 12, will liecluded in the Sections entitled “Election of iters” and “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” of ourxipiStatement relating to our annual meeting ofedalders and is incorporated herein
by reference.

The following table summarizes information withpest to equity compensation plans under which gagturities of the Company
are authorized for issuance as of December 31,:2013

Number of
Number of securities Weighted-average securities
to be issued upon exercise price of remaining
exercise of outstanding available for
Plan category (1) outstanding options options future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by shareho 1,818,59: $ 4.9C 1,174,67.

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentaore detailed information regarding the Comy’'s equity compensation plar

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abatector Independence

Information regarding certain of our relationshipel related transactions will be included in thetisa entitled “Certain Relationship
and Related Transactions” of our Proxy Statemdating to our annual meeting of shareholders aridcgrporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

Information required by Part I, Item 14, will iecluded in the section entitled “Ratification oppointment of Independent Auditors
of our Proxy Statement relating to our annual nmeetif shareholders and is incorporated herein f@reace.

56




Iltem 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(@) The following documents are filed as part of thepart:

All other schedules are omitted because the redjimfermation is not present in amounts sufficientequire submission of the

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2000, bettteeGompany and ChaseMellon Shareholder Senlit&s,
Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of 845 2008 between the Company and Mellon InveSawvices LLC

Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement, dated as of 4 2010 between the Company and Mellon InveSawvices LLC
Amendment No. 3 to Rights Agreement, dated as lgf2u2010 between the Company and Mellon InveSemvices LLC,

Amendment No. 4 to Rights Agreement, dated as of M8 2013 between the Company and Computershae&hner
Services LLC (formerly known as Mellon Investor Bees LLC,) as successor to ChaseMellon Shareh&derices,

1. Financial Statement
PFSweb, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityGomprehensive Loss
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information ofifteant
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
schedule or because the information required isidted in the financial statements or notes thereto.
2. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits
3.1(2) Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRFSweb, Inc
3.1.1 (20) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir
3.1.2 (32) Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of PFSweb, Inc
3.1.3(36) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir
3.1.4 (53) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir
3.2(2) Amended and Restated Byla
3.2.1 (26) Amendment to the Amended and Restate-Laws of PFSweb, Inc
3.2.2 (39) Amendment to the Amended and Restate-Laws of PFSweb, Inc
3.2.3 (53) Amendment to the Amended and Restate-Laws of PFSweb, Inc
4.1 (30)
4.1 (31)
as successor to ChaseMellon Shareholder Servide§;.l as rights agen
4.1 (38)
as successor to ChaseMellon Shareholder Servide§;.l as rights agen
4.1 (39)
as successor to ChaseMellon Shareholder Servide§;.l as rights agen
4.1 (49)
L.L.C., as rights agen
10.1 (18) Amendment 3 to Loan and Security Agreem
10.2 (18) Amendment 6 to Agreement for Inventory Financi
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10.3 (18
10.4 (16
10.5 (16
10.6 (16
10.7 (1)
10.8 (1)
10.9 (2)
10.11 (5)

)
)
)
)

10.12 (5)

10.13 (5)
10.14 (5)

10.15 (5)
10.16 (5)
10.17 (5)

10.18 (5)

10.19 (5)
10.20 (5)

10.21 (6)

10.21.1 (33
10.21.2 (33
10.21.3 (39)

10.22 (7)

10.23 (7)
10.24 (7)

10.25 (8)
10.26 (8)

Amendment 1 to First Amended and Restated LoarSaedrity Agreemen

Amendment 5 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢eaeinent

Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Amendment No. 5 to Agreement for Inventory Finagc

Industrial Lease Agreement between Shelby Drivep@a@tion and Priority Fulfillment Services, Ir
Lease Contract between Transports Weerts and fyrieulfillment Services Europe B.)

Form of Change of Control Agreement between the @om and each of its executive offic

Agreement for Inventory Financing by and among Bess Supplies Distributors Holdings, LLC, Supplestributors,
Inc., Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., PFSwébc., Inventory Financing Partners, LLC and IBM @iteCorporatior

Amended and Restated Collateralized Guaranty bybahsleen Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. andMEredit
Corporation

Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Credit Cotmrdy PFSweb, Inc

Amended and Restated Platinum Plan Agreement (withice Discounting) by and among Supplies Distiils, S.A.,
Business Supplies Distributors Europe B.V., PFS&ah, and IBM Belgium Financial Services S.

Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Belgium Firsi8ervices S.A. by PFSweb, Ir
Subordinated Demand Note by and between Supplisiliitors, Inc. and Priority Fulfillment Servicésc.

Notes Payable Subordination Agreement between @sadtinancial Corporation (Southwest) and Pridtitifillment
Services, Inc

Guarantee in favor of Congress Financial Corponatgouthwest) by Business Supplies Distributorsditgys, LLC,
Priority Fulfilment Services, Inc. and PFSweb, .|

General Security Agreement by Priority Fulfillmegrvices, Inc. in favor of Congress Financial Coagion (Southwest

Inducement Letter by Priority Fulfillment Servicése. and PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Congress Finarn€orporation
(Southwest)

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between timp@ny and each of its executive office
Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreen
Form of Amendment to Change in Control Severancedment

Severance, Nondisclosure, Nonsolicitation and Nonmete Agreement dated July 2, 2010 between the @oyngnd
Cynthia Almond.

Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing by among Business Supplies Distributors HoldindsC LSupplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Servicekc., PFSweb, Inc., Inventory Financing PartnetsCland IBM Credit
Corporation

Amendment to Amended and Restated Platinum Plarekgent (with Invoice Discounting) by and among Siegp
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBrgope B.V., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Finan@alrvices S.A

Amendment to Factoring agreement dated March 292 B@tween Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortismm@ercial
Finance N.V

Unconditional Guaranty of PFSweb, Inc. to ComeBeak- California

Security Agreement of PFSweb, Inc. to Comerica E- California
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Intellectual Property Security Agreement betwednri®y Fulfillment Services, Inc. and Comerica Bank
California

Amendment 2 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢eaeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and among8ies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBry., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SepscS.A.

Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing byl among Business Supplies Distributors Holdings LSupplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Servicekic., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

Amendment to factoring agreement dated April 3@3Between Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortism@ercial Financ
N.V.

Loan and Security Agreement by and between Congiiesscial Corporation (Southwest), as Lender amgp8es
Distributors, Inc., as Borrower dated March 29, 2(

General Security Agreement — Business Suppliesibigors Holdings, LLC in favor of Congress FinaddCorporation
(Southwest

Stock Pledge Agreement between Supplies Distributac. and Congress Financial Corporation (Sousiy

First Amendment to General Security Agreement bgrRy Fulfillment Services, Inc. in favor of Corggs Financial
Corporation (Southwes

Industrial Lease Agreement between New York Lifeurance Company and Daisytek, |

First Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement betwidew York Life Insurance Company, Daisytek, laed Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

Second Amendment to Industrial Lease AgreementdssiviProLogis North Carolina Limited Partnership Bnidrity
Fulfillment Services, Inc

Modification, Ratification and Extension of Leasetween Shelby Drive Corporation and Priority Futiignt Services, Inc

Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing byl among Business Supplies Distributors Holdings; LSupplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Servicekc., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

Amendment 4 to Amended and Restated Platinum Pgaaeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and amongSies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBr¥., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SepscS.A.

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementriy lsetween Congress Financial Corporation (Southwes Lender
and Supplies Distributors, Inc., as Borrow

Form of Modification to Executive Severance Agream

Industrial Lease Agreement by and between Indufdeaelopments International, Inc. and Priority fifuhent Services,
Inc.

Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Industrial Bieypments International, In

First Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ageeetry and between Comerica Bank and Priority Hulkéint
Services, Inc

Amendment to factoring agreement dated Decembe2d5 between Supplies Distributors S.A. and F@tsmmercial
Finance N.V

Amendment 7 to Agreement for Inventory Financi
Amendment 6 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢eaeinent
Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeainidybetween eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Capitalrice
Corporation (Western

Amendment 4 to Loan and Security Agreem
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Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc., in favor of Wachovia @dgtinance Corporation (Wester

Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated aodrsecurity Agreement by and between Comerick Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Amendment 8 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

Fourth Amendment to the Loan and Security Agreerbgraind between eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Qdpitance
Corporation (Western

Amendment 5 to Loan and Security Agreem
Amendment 7 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢gaeient
Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Fifth Amendment to First Amended and Restated Lanath Security Agreement by and between Comerica BadkPriority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

Second Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreemennbyb@tween Industrial Property Fund VI, LLC ancbRty
Fulfillment Services, Inc

Amendment 9 to Agreement for Inventory Financi
Amendment 8 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢gaeinent
Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Sixth Amendment to First Amended and Restated laoghSecurity Agreement by and between Comerica Badk
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Sixth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementdidsmuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and Supplie
Distributors, Inc.

Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementdatnuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and eC©OSiTlac.
Amendment 10 to Agreement for Inventory Financ

Amendment 9 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢gaeient

Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Seventh Amendment to First Amended and Restated and Security Agreement by and between Comericé Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Amended and Restated 2005 Employee Stock and iaedpian of PFSweb, In
Amended and Restated M-Employee Director Stock Option and Retainer PlaRESweb, Inc

Eighth Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subtiatinagreement by and between Priority Fulfilm&srvices, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpdoat

Amendment 11 to Agreement for Inventory Financ
Amendment 10 to Amended and Restated Platinum ARjagement
Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedul

Eighth Amendment to First Amended and Restated lamahSecurity Agreement by and between Comerick Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Factoring Agreement by and between BNP ParibussHeaictor and Supplies Distributors, S

Amendment 12 to Agreement for Inventory Financ
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Amendment 11 to Amended and Restated Platinum &Rja@emen
Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plardice Discounting Schedu

Ninth Amendment to First Amended and Restated lavahSecurity Agreement by and between Comerica Rad
Priority Fulfillment services, Inc

Seventh Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeetdinuary 6, 2009 between Wells Fargo Bank apgl&s
Distributors, Inc.

Seventh Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeetdinuary 6, 2009 by and between Wells Fargo Béatonal
Association and PFSweb Retail Connect,

Tenth Amendment to First Amended and Restated boanSecurity Agreement dated November 10, 201 Indybatween
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., and Comericarik

Lease agreement by and between Binyan Realty LAPdadty Fulfillment Services, Inc

Lease Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of BinyaalRy LP

Lease Agreement dated December 8, 2011, betwee-Millennium, L.P. and Priority Fulfillment Servicebyc.
Guaranty of PFSweb, Inc. to C-Millennium, L.P.

Eleventh Amendment to First Amended and Restatechlamd Security Agreement by and between Prioritfillment
Services, Inc., and Comerica Bg

Amendment 13 to Agreement for Inventory Financ

Twelfth Amendment to First Amended and Restatedhlarad Security Agreement dated May 14, 2012 byletdeen
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., and Comericarik.

Eighth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemergdidanuary 6, 2009 by and between Wells Fargo Bedaional
Association and PFSweb Retail Connect,

Fourteenth Amendment to First Amended and Restatad and Security Agreement between Priority Huléint Services
Inc. and Comerica Ban

Amendment to Executive Severance Agreement datedhvis, 2013 between PFSweb, Inc., and Mark Lay
Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 20ti8=ba the Company and transcosmos,
Registration Rights Agreement dated May 15, 201@&en the Company and transcosmos,

First Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement ddagt 7, 2013 by and between US Industrial REITnidl #@riority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2013, by and am&i®web, Inc. and Privet Fund LP, Privet Fund ManaagerhL.C,
Ryan Levenson and Benjamin Rosenzw

Form of Performan«-Based Cash Award Agreeme
Form of Performance Shares Award Agreem

Ninth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementdidday 31, 2013, by and between Wells Fargo BankioNal
Association and PFSweb Retail Connect,

Modification, Ratification and Extension of Leassed February 28, 2014 between Southpark Distohuienter Inc.,
(successt-in-interest to Shelby Drive Corporation) and Priofiyffillment Services, Inc

Subsidiary Listing

Consent of GRANT THORNTON, LLP, Independent RegistePublic Accounting Firr
Certifications of Principal Executive Officer Puegu to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!
Certifications of Principal Financial Officer Puemt to 18 U.S.C. Section 13
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XBRL Instance Documen

Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.

Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1280Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schemr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba:
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbas

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbe

Regisin Statement on Forn-1 (Commission File No. 3:-87657).
For-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2(
For-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30,L:
For-K for the transition period ended December 31, Z
For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2I

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, :
Repoform K filed on November 10, 20C

For-K for the year ended December 31, 2I

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, !
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Repofform K filed on June 14, 200!

For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2!
Currayort on Form-K filed on November 30, 200!
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Currayort on Form-K filed on June 2, 200¢

For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Repofform K filed on November 13, 200

For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Repofform K filed on May 2, 2008

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Regfisin Statement on Forn-A filed on June 14, 200!
Repoform 8K filed on May 30, 200

Repofform K filed on June 2, 200¢

Repofform K filed on January 6, 200!

Repofform K filed on January 9, 200!

For-Q filed on May 15, 200¢

For-Q filed on August 14, 200!

For-Q filed on May 17, 201(

Repoform K filed on May 25, 2010

Repofform K filed on July 2, 2010

Repofform K filed on February 23, 201.

Incorporatecby reference from PFSweb, Inc. Forn-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
(4 3) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.

For-Q filed on May 16, 201

For-Q filed on August 15, 201:

For-Q filed on November 14, 201

For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
For-Q filed on May 15, 201z

For-Q filed on November 14, 201
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(48) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoform K filed on March 29, 201:
(49) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repofform K filed on May 15, 2013
(50) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q filed on May 15, 201z

(51) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoftorm K filed on May 20, 2013
(52) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoftorm K filed on May 29, 2013
(53) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repofform K filed on July 18, 2013
(54) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q filed on August 14, 201:
(55)Filed herewith
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SCHEDULE |

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
BALANCE SHEETS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
(In thousands)

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivale $ 10,72: $ 5,40¢
Receivable from subsidiarie 25,25: 14,41¢
Investment in subsidiarie 4,951 8,22¢
Total asset $ 40,92 $ 28,05
LIABILITIES:
Total liabilities $ — 3 —

SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stoc —
Common stocl 17 13

Additional paic-in capital 124,52. 106,01¢
Accumulated defici (85,300 (79,409
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,811 1,55¢
Treasury stocl (125) (125)
Total shareholde’ equity 40,92¢ 28,05!
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 40,92F $ 28,05!

The condensed financial statements should be reeghjunction with the consolidated financial sta¢éts and notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE |

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2013 2012
EQUITY IN NET LOSS OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIE $ (589]) $ (1,51))
NET LOSS $ (5,89) $ (1,511)

The condensed financial statements should be reeghjunction with the consolidated financial sta¢éts and notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE |

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (5,891 $ (1,51))
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby operating activitie
Equity in net loss of consolidated subsidia 5,891 1,511
Net cash provided by operating activit — —
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common st 15,93« 48
Purchase of treasury sto — (40)
Increase in receivable from subsidiaries, (10,620 (47€)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 5,31« (46°8)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI 5,31¢ (46%)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 5,40¢ 5,87¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $ 10,72 $ 5,40¢

The condensed financial statements should be reaghjunction with the consolidated financial sta¢mts and notes thereto.
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Year Ended December 31, 20:
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Year Ended December 31, 20:
Allowance for doubtful accoun

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Amounts in thousands)

SCHEDULE II

Additions
Charges Balance
Balance at to Cost Charges at End
Beginning and to Other of
of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
$ 662 (131) — (82 $ 45C
$ 45( (25) — (43 $ 382
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

By: /s/IThomas J. Madde

Thomas J. Maddel

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

Title

Date

/s/Michael Willoughby

Michael Willoughby
/s/IThomas J. Madden

Thomas J. Madden

/slJames F. Reilly

James F. Reill

/s/Neil Jacob:

Dr. Neil Jacob:

/s/David |. Beatsor

David |. Beatsor

/s/Benjamin Rosenzwei

Benjamin Rosenzwei

/sIShinichi Nagakure

Shinichi Nagakuri

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offige

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial and
Accounting Officer (Principal Financial and Accoungt
Officer)

Chairman of the Boar

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 10.10%
THIRD MODIFICATION, RATIFICATION AND EXTENSION OF L  EASE

THIS THIRD MODIFICATION, RATIFICATION AND EXTENSIONOF LEASE (the “ Third Amendmeri} is made as of the 28th
day of February, 2014, by and between SOUTHPARKIRIBUTION CENTER, INC., a Maryland corporation, sisccessor-in-interest to
TIAA Realty, Inc., a Delaware corporation, as swste-in-interest to Shelby Drive Corporation, arida corporation (“ Landlord), and
PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES, INC. , a Delaware mgmration (“_Tenant).

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into thataterindustrial Lease Agreement dated August 3191@8e “Base Lease”) as
modified, ratified and extended by that certain Miodtion, Ratification and Extension of Lease dbiBecember 19, 2003 (the “First
Amendment”) and by that certain Second ModificatiRatification and Extension of Lease dated Jurg088 (the “Second Amendment, and
collectively with the Base Lease and the First Admeant, the “ Leas®, regarding the leasing by Landlord to Tenanapproximately
442,184 square feet comprising all of the buildipgce located at 4650 Shelby Drive, Memphis, Tesagslso known as Southpark
Building N (the_‘Demised Premiség; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant now desire to furthedify, ratify and extend the Lease on the ternts@mnditions set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratibe receipt and sufficiency of which is herebiremvledged, the
undersigned hereby agree to modify, ratify andrexthe Lease as follows:

1. Modification of Base RenEffective as of March 1, 2014, paragraphs 1(d) K@) of the Base Lease are hereby deleted ir
entirety and replaced with the following:
(d) Annual Base Rent:
Rate Per
Period Square Foot Annual Base Rent
March 1, 201+ June 30, 201 Free Ren Free Ren
July 1, 2014 February 28, 201 $ 278 $ 810,670.61
March 1, 2015 February 29, 201 $ 2801 $ 1,238,502.1
March 1, 201¢ February 28, 201 $ 285: % 1,261,414.4
March 1, 201% February 28, 201 $ 290t $ 1,284,750.5
March 1, 201¢ February 28, 201 $ 2.95¢ $ 1,308,518.4
March 1, 201¢ February 29, 202 $ 3.01« % 1,332,726.0
March 1, 202(- February 28, 202 $ 3.07C $ 1,357,381.4
March 1, 202:- February 28, 202 $ 3.127 % 1,382,493.0
March 1, 202:- February 28, 202 $ 3.18 % 1,408,069.1
March 1, 202:- February 29, 202 $ 3.24: % 1,434,118.4
1 As prorated for the partial year from July 1, 2@lrbugh February 28, 201
(e) Monthly Base Rent Installments:

Period Monthly Base Rent
March 1, 201+ June 30, 201 Free Ren
July 1, 2014 February 28, 201 $ 101,333.8
March 1, 2015 February 29, 201 $ 103,208.5
March 1, 201¢ February 28, 201 $ 105,117.8
March 1, 201°- February 28, 201 $ 107,062.5
March 1, 201¢- February 28, 201 $ 109,043.2
March 1, 201¢ February 29, 202 $ 111,060.5
March 1, 202(- February 28, 202 $ 113,115.1
March 1, 2027- February 28, 202 $ 115,207.7
March 1, 202:- February 28, 202 $ 117,339.1
March 1, 202:- February 29, 202 $ 119,509.8




2. Extension of TermParagraph 1(h) and 1(i) of the Base Lease ambliateleted in their entirety and replaced with the
following:

(h) Expiration Date: February 29, 2024

0] Term: 24 years and 6 months (294 months

3. Address for Notice Paragraph 1(m) of the Base Lease is herebyetkietits entirety and replaced with the following:
(m) Address for notice:
Landlord Southpark Distribution Center, In
3090 Olive Stree
Suite 30C

Dallas, Texas 7521
Attn: Toby Rogers

Tenant Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc
505 Millennium Drive
Allen, TX 5013
Attn: Chief Financial Office
4, Address for Rental PaymentRaragraph 1(n) of the Base Lease is herebyedkletits entirety and replaced with the
following:
(n) Address for rental payments:

Southpark Distribution Center, In
3090 Olive Stree

Suite 30C

Dallas, Texas 7521

5. Assignment and Subleasing.

0] The following is hereby added to thesfisentence of Section 29 of the Base Lease:

provided, however, that Landlord’s prior expresgtem consent shall not be required, and therd bleaho splitting of profits, in
connection with an assignment of the Lease or &aab of all or any portion of the Leased Premigesparent, subsidiary or affiliate
of Tenant.

(ii) The following is hereby added to thedeof Section 29 of the Base Lease:
Any excess rents resulting from a sublease, afwrdeducting brokerage, advertising, subtenaptravement allowances, costs of
improvements made on behalf of the subtenant, asbleent abatements and credits, and other cabesxpenses of the sublease

transaction, shall be shared equally between Lad@od Tenant.

6. Termination OptionsTenant has not exercised any previous optiotsrininate under the Lease and any previous terioimat
options under the Lease are expired. The follovisritereby added as Section 41 to the Base Lease:

€) Effective as of June 30, 2020, Tenaatldhave a right to terminate the Lease, proviithed Tenant delivers to Landlord
no later than June 30, 2019: (i) written noticéesmination; and (ii) payment of one half of themiénation fee equal to $385,942. The
remaining half of the termination fee equal to $382 shall be due January 1, 2020.

(b) Effective as of June 30, 2021, Tenaallhave a right to terminate the Lease, provitlhed Tenant delivers to Landlord
no later than June 30, 2020: (i) written noticeéesmination; and (ii) payment of one half of thentenation fee equal to $298,553. The
remaining half of the termination fee equal to $3%8 shall be due January 1, 2021.

(c) Effective as of June 30, 2022, Tendialldhave a right to terminate the Lease, provitied Tenant delivers to Landlord
no later than June 30, 2021: (i) written noticéesmination; and (ii) payment of one half of thenteation fee equal to $203,910. The
remaining half of the termination fee equal to $208 shall be due January 1, 2022.




(d) Effective as of June 30, 2023, Tenaallhave a right to terminate the Lease, provitthed Tenant delivers to Landlord

no later than June 30, 2022: (i) written noticéesmination; and (ii) payment of one half of themienation fee equal to $101,412. The
remaining half of the termination fee equal to $202 shall be due January 1, 2023.

7.

Tenang Work. The following shall be added as Section 42 ofBhse Lease:

42. Tenahd Work. The parties acknowledge and agree that certginowements will be made to the Demised Premises in

accordance with the terms and provisiong of Exi@hitattached hereto and incorporated herein.

8.

Renewal Option Special Stipulation

0] The first sentence of paragraph 10f&xhibit Cto the Base Lease is hereby deleted in its entimetireplaced with the
following:

(@) Landlord hereby grants to Tenant onefition to extend the Term for a period of fivg y8ars, such option to
be exercised by Tenant giving written notice okexercise to Landlord in the manner provided is ttease on or before
the later of March 1, 2023 or the date that is t&€lL.2) months prior to the expiration date of Treem, as it may have
been previously extended.

(ii) The first sentence of paragraph 1@blExhibit Cto the Base Lease is hereby deleted in its entaetireplaced with tt
following:

(b) If Tenant exercises its option to exktéime Term, Landlord shall, within thirty (30) dagier the receipt of
Tenant’s notice of exercise, notify Tenant in wigtiof Landlord’s reasonable determination of theeBRent for the
Demised Premises, which amount shall be the ghewmailing market rental rate for comparable prtpsy determined b
Landlord taking into account all relevant factass $pace of this type in the southeast Memphisnéssee area.

(iii) The following provision is hereby aeld to the end of paragraph 10(b) of ExhibtoGhe Base Lease:

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryyithin such thirty (30) day period Tenant shallidgr notice
(“Tenant’s Arbitration Notice”) to Landlord that Mant desires to arbitrate the Base Rent for theifsirPremises
during the option term, then Tenant shall haveiglat to retract its exercise of the renewal optioid the Base Rent for
the Renewal Term shall be determined in accorduwittethe following provisions:

(i) Within thirty (30) days of Tenant’s delivery @enant’s Arbitration Notice to Landlord (such 88y period,
the “Arbitrator Designation Period”), each partyabldeliver notice to the other designating an ajgar or
real estate broker with at least ten (10) yeaexpgrience valuing or leasing properties comparablee
Building in the Memphis metropolitan area as thsigleating part's arbitrator

(ii) If only one party shall deliver notice desajing its arbitrator within the Arbitrator Desigiat Period, the
determination by such arbitrator of the fair mankeatt for the Demised Premises during the optiom tghall
be conclusive and binding upon the part

(i) If both parties shall timely designate an arbitratithin the Arbitrator Designation Period, the tarbitrators
shall meet and confer and agree upon the thirdratbi for determining the Base Rent. If the twbitaators
shall be unable to reach agreement upon the thaittator within twenty (20) days of the expiratiohthe
Arbitrator Designation Period, either party may tean the nearest office of the American Arbitration
Association (the “Association”) and request that Association pick an independent arbitrator with
qualifications satisfying the requirements settfart clause (i) above. Upon the Association’s desipn of
such arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be deemdaktthe third arbitrator for purposes of this paapgt 10(b).
Landlord and Tenant shall split evenly the fees@xpknses of the Association in selecting the thaihitrato
and shall each pay their own costs and expensger&ing with the Association in connection with buc
selection.

(iv) Upon such date as shall be designated by thedhhbittator by written notice to Landlord and Teng@which
date shall be no sooner than ten (10) businessafdlie delivery of such notice), Tenant’s arbitraind
Landlorc's arbitrator each shall submit to the third arldtréts written determinatio




of the fair market rent for the Demised PremisegHte option term. If only one parsyarbitrator shall subrr
such a written determination by the date designlyetthe third arbitrator, such party’s arbitrator’s
determination of the fair market rent shall be dosiwe and binding upon the parties and shall eeBhse
Rent during the option term. If both parties’ ardibrs shall timely deliver their written determiioas of the
fair market rent for the Demised Premises to threl thrbitrator, the third arbitrator shall seldogt
determination which is closest to the third arltdras own determination of the fair market rent foe
Demised Premises during the option term, and setdrmination shall be the Base Rent for the Demised
Premises during the option term. The third arbitratust select one of the two submitted determinati it
may not select its own determination. The thirdteaitor shall provide notice of its selection tonddord and
Tenant within ten (10) business days of its recefpihe last of the arbitrators’ determinationsntlkord and
Tenant shall split evenly the fees and expenséseatird arbitrator and shall each pay its owrtsasd
expenses of participating in the determinatiorhefBase Rent for the option ter

9. Sublease Special StipulatioBection 11 of Exhibit C to the Base Lease i€bgdeleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

11. Intentionally Omitted
10. PILOT Program Section 12 of Exhibit C to the Base Lease ighgideleted in its entirety and replaced with tlWing:
12. Intentionally Omitted
11. SNDA Promptly following the final execution and deliy of this Third Amendment, Landlord shall deliterTenant at lea
two (2) original counterparts of the Subordinatibion-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement annexadth as Lease Exhibit H (the
“SNDA”") executed (and notarized as required) bydlard. Pursuant to paragraph 24 of the Base Léasgllord shall use reasonable efforts
to cause its lender to enter into the SNDA, anonugpmplete execution by all parties of the SNDAndlord shall promptly record the
SNDA with the Shelby County Register of Deeds.

12. ADA / Code Compliance Special Stipolat Section 15 of Exhibit C to the Base Lease i€bgmadded as follows:

15. ADA / Code ComplianceExcept for the Tenant-provided items set fontlthie following paragraph, Landlord at
its sole cost and expense shall perform such &éltesaand improvements to the Demised PremiseshenBuilding
Appurtenance Area so that upon the substantial tatiop of the Work (as defined in Exhibit G to thisase) the Demised
Premises shall comply with the requirements ofAheericans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA"), 40.S.C. § 12101 et seq.,
and any applicable local codes. After the substhotimpletion of the Work, Tenant shall be resploliesior compliance with
ADA and any applicable local codes.

Tenant shall be responsible for providing certainstimable items (e.g. fire extinguishers) and fowiding certain tenant-
specific items, including, but not limited to, veidata wiring, security systems, any required patt: lighting or fire alarm
modifications associated with Tenant's materiadsagie or racking equipment, and re-keying all lomkghe Demised Premises
after completion of the Work.

13. Broker Landlord and Tenant each represents and wanatig other that it has dealt with no brokerdénor other person
entitled to receive a commission, finder’s fee tireo like compensation in connection with this @Mtmendment other than for Commercial
Advisors, LLC (the “Broker”). Landlord shall payelBroker any commission and other compensatiortfiRi8roker in connection with this
Third Amendment pursuant to a separate writteneageat. Landlord and Tenant each agree to indenuhéfignd and hold harmless the other
against any liability, demand, claim, action, caokaction, loss, damage, cost and/or expenselingsfrom or relating to its breach of any
representations, warranties and/or covenants géatifothis Paragraph 13.

14. Surrender Notwithstanding anything in Paragraph 18 of Base Lease, or any other provision of the Leasthgaontrary,
Tenant shall have no obligation to remove any efWork upon Tenant’s surrender of possession of #fased Premises or upon the sooner
expiration or termination of the Term of the Ledseaddition and supplementing Paragraph 13 ofil&t Amendment, Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge and agree that the Starter fixturémprovements include the tri-level “blue rack” kamitto the Building and the conveyor
equipment servicing and/or located therein.

15. Counterparts This Third Amendment may be executed in one orencounterparts, each of which shall be deemeatigimal,
and all such counterparts together shall constdngeand the same agreement.




16. Governing Law This Third Amendment shall be governed by amistrmed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee.

17. Full Force and Effect; Defined TermExcept as expressly modified hereby, the Leas@d shall remain in full force and
effect in accordance with its original terms andditions; provided, however, that to the extent #rey terms and conditions of the Lease
conflict or are inconsistent with the terms andvisions hereof, this Third Amendment shall contaiotl govern. All capitalized terms used
not otherwise defined in this Third Amendment shaWe the definitions set forth in the Lease.

18. Binding Effect This Third Amendment shall be binding upon amaré to the benefit of the parties hereto, theicsasors ar
assigns.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank —
Signatures on Following Page(s)]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeatthis Third Amendment (or caused it to be execbtetheir respective duly
authorized officers) to be effective on the date wear first above written.

SOUTHPARK DISTRIBUTION CENTER,
INC., a Maryland corporatio

By:
Title:

PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES,
INC ., a Delaware corporatic

By:
Title:




EXHIBIT G to the Base Lease

Tenant Improvements; Allowance

Acceptance of PremisesExcept as set forth in this Exhibit,denant accepts the Demised Premises in th&8-1S ” condition on the
Commencement Date.

1. Space Plans.

Preparation and Delivery By March 30, 2014, Tenant shall meet with a@glesonsultant selected by Landlord (the “Architgtd
discuss the nature and extent of all improvemérasTenant proposes to install in the Demised Presniand, at such meeting, provide the
Architect with all necessary data and informationaerning Tenant’s proposed improvements thateaqaasted by the Architect sufficiently
in advance of the meeting for Tenant to have theailable without incurring overtime fees and co3tsnant further shall provide the
Architect after such meeting with any such dateiaf@mation requested by the Architect at or after meeting. On or before April 30, 20
Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a space plan pegpay the Architect depicting improvements totealled in the Demised Premises (the
“Space Plans”). Concurrent with the delivery of 8gace Plans to Tenant, Landlord shall deliverstimate of the Construction Costs.
Furthermore, every time Landlord delivers a revisid the Space Plans, as outlined below, Landlbadl sleliver a Construction Cost
Estimate with those plans. Such Architect’s feedldie included in the Total Construction CostdifdEd below).

Approval Process Tenant shall notify Landlord whether it apprewd the submitted Space Plans within ten (10)rtass days after
Landlord’'s submission thereof. If Tenant disappsowksuch Space Plans, then Tenant shall notifgllond thereof specifying in reasonable
detail the reasons for such disapproval, in whizbed_andlord shall, within fifteen (15) businesgsafter such notice, revise such Space
Plans in accordance with Tenant’s objections atingithe revised Space Plans to Tenant for itsesgdnd approval. Tenant shall notify
Landlord in writing whether it approves of the remitted Space Plans within five (5) business ddigs denant’s receipt thereof. This
process shall be repeated until the Space Plarestie®n finally approved by Tenant and Landlord.dfiant fails to notify Landlord that it
disapproves of the initial Space Plans within tEd) pusiness days (or, in the case of resubmitped&SPlans, within five (5) business days)
after the submission thereof, then Tenant shatldeened to have approved the Space Plans in question

Working Drawings.

Preparation and Delivery On or before the date which is fifteen (15)ibass days following the date on which the Spaea$are
approved (or deemed approved) by Tenant and Lathdlandlord shall cause to be prepared final warkirawings of all improvements to
installed in the Demised Premises and deliver émeesto Tenant for its review and approval (whicprapal shall not be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned). Such workingvadrays shall be prepared by a design consultant®seldy Landlord and reasonably
acceptable to Tenant, and such design consulta#sonable fees shall be included in the Total @action Costs (defined below).

Approval Process Tenant shall notify Landlord whether it apprewd the submitted working drawings within five (@)siness days
after Landlord’s submission thereof. If Tenant giza@ves of such working drawings, then Tenant siatify Landlord thereof specifying in
reasonable detail the reasons for such disappriovahich case Landlord shall, within five (5) busgs days after such notice, revise such
working drawings in accordance with Tenant’s obf@t and submit the revised working drawings todreror its review and approval.
Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing whethemipproves of the resubmitted working drawings witfire (5) business days after its receipt
thereof. This process shall be repeated until theking drawings have been finally approved by Landlland Tenant. If Tenant fails to notify
Landlord that it disapproves of the initial workidgawings within five (5) business days (or, in tase of resubmitted working drawings,
within five (5) business days) after the submisshmreof, then Tenant shall be deemed to have apgrine working drawings in question.




Landlords Approval; Performance of Work If any of Tenant’'s proposed construction woiikk affect the Building’s structure or the
Building’s systems, then the working drawings piertey thereto must be approved by the Landlord.dlemi’s approval of such working
drawings shall not be unreasonably withheld, predithat (a) they comply with all Laws (defined b@Jp(b) the improvements depicted
thereon do not adversely affect (in the reasondisteretion of Landlord) the Building’s structuretbe Building’s systems (including the
Building’s restrooms or mechanical rooms), the eateappearance of the Building, or the appearafi¢be Building’s common areas or
elevator lobby areas, and (c) such working drawargssufficiently detailed to allow constructiontb& improvements in a good and
workmanlike manner. As used herein, “Working Draggihshall mean the final working drawings approbgd_andlord, as amended from
time to time by any approved changes thereto, &viork” shall mean all improvements to be construdtedccordance with and as indicated
on the Working Drawings, together with any workuigd by governmental authorities to be made temdneas of the Building as a result of
the improvements indicated by the Working Drawirigendlord’s approval of the Working Drawings shait be a representation or warranty
of Landlord that such drawings are adequate foruesyor comply with any Law, but shall merely be tlonsent of Landlord thereto. Tenant
shall, at Landlord’s request, sign the Working Dirays to evidence its review and approval theredterithe Working Drawings have been
approved, Landlord shall cause the Work to be peréol in accordance with the Working Drawings anduoh a manner as shall not
unreasonably interfere with Tenamtiormal business operations in the Demised Prermlisadlord acknowledges that Tenant will contitw
conduct its normal business operations in the Dedniaremises while the Work is being performed aadl subject to Tenant’'s payment of
any overtime costs and expenses which are in exdé¢be Construction Allowance, Landlord will coittswith Tenant concerning the
performance of the Work and shall perform the Watrkuch times as Tenant may reasonably requirant@tknowledges that performing
the Work upon the schedule and according to ther@ilisted above may require Landlord to incuiidnal, non-customary costs and
expenses (such as overtime costs, etc.) and dllcasts and expenses shall either be paid by Laehdloder the Construction Allowance or
Tenant to the extent such costs and expenses ettee€&bnstruction Allowance.

Costs of Work. Prior to commencing the Work, Landlord shaliadty an estimate from the Contractor (as definedihgfor the
Work (the “Estimate”) and deliver same to Tenahthé estimated Total Construction Costs (as ddfimerein) are expected to exceed the
Construction Allowance (as defined herein), Tersdrall notify Landlord of (i) any items in the Wonkj Drawings that Tenant desires to
change and/or (ii) any of the Work for which Teneaduires that Landlord solicit additional bidsthim five (5) business days after
Landlord’s submission thereof to Tenant. If Tenant failadtify Landlord of its election within such five)(business day period, Tenant sl
be deemed to have approved the Estimate. Withi{l@nbusiness days following Landlord’s submisdimif enant of the Estimate, Tenant
shall have completed all of the following items): fiaalized with the Landlord the pricing of anygreested revisions to the Estimate for the
Work, and (b) approved in writing any overage ia ffotal Construction Costs in excess of the Constmu Allowance. Tenant shall have the
right upon request to review all bids submittedtfed Work and any general contractor(s) retainezbimection with the Work shall be
retained on a cost-plus basis.

Change Orders. Tenant may initiate changes in the Work. Eaahsihange must receive the prior written appro¥élamdlord, such
approval not to be unreasonably withheld, condétbor delayed; however, if such requested changadraalversely affect (in the reasonable
discretion of Landlord) (1) the Building’s structuor the Building’s systems (including the Buildiagestrooms or mechanical rooms), (2)
exterior appearance of the Building, or (3) theesgwpnce of the Building’s common areas, Landlorg mighhold consent in its sole and
absolute discretion. If Tenant requests any chatggbe Work described in the Space Plans or thekitg Drawings, then such increased
costs and any additional design costs incurresimection therewith as the result of any such caaigll be added to the Total Construction
Costs.

Definitions . As used herein “Substantial Completion,” “Subsitdly Completed,” and any derivations thereof méa Work in the
Demised Premises is substantially completed (asoredly determined by Landlord) in substantial egaoce with the Working Drawings.
Substantial Completion shall have occurred eveaghaninor details of construction, decoration, kraping and mechanical adjustments
remain to be completed by Landlord so long as sumtmpletion shall not interfere with Tenant's @& enjoyment of the Leased Premises
other than to a de minimis extent. As used hefeew” or “Laws” shall mean and refer to all federatate and local laws, ordinances, rules
and regulations, all court orders, governmentadlives and governmental orders.

Walk-Through; Punchlist . When Landlord considers the Work in the DemBesmises to be Substantially Completed, Landloft
notify Tenant and within three (3) business dagsdhfter, Landlord’s representative and Tenanpsasentative shall conduct a walk-through
of the Demised Premises and identify any necedsach-up work, repairs and minor completion itefvest tare necessary for final completion
of the Work. Neither Landlord’s representative fienant’s representative shall unreasonably withh@dr her agreement on punchlist
items. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts t@edhie Contractor performing the Work to compldéitpunchlist items within thirty
(30) calendar days after agreement thereon.
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Excess Costs The entire cost of performing the Work (incluglidesign of the Work and preparation of the SpdaesPand Working
Drawings, costs of construction labor and materglisctrical usage during construction, additigaaltorial services, general tenant signage,
and related taxes and insurance costs, all of wttsks are herein collectively called the “Totah€muction Costs”) in excess of the
Construction Allowance (hereinafter defined) sha&lpaid by Tenant (the “Tenant Improvement Overpddfion approval of the Working
Drawings, Tenant shall promptly execute a work petgreement prepared by Landlord and reasonabgpétatole to Tenant which identifies
such drawings and itemizes the Total Constructiosts; sets forth the Construction Allowance andulates the Tenant Improvement
Overage due from Tenant to Landlord. In additibthé Tenant Improvement Overage is calculatecetmbre than fifty thousand dollars
($50,000), Tenant shall pay to the Landlord, upgpraval of the Working Drawings, 45% of the tot&rknt Improvement Overage. Within
thirty (30) calendar days of Substantial Completibthe Work, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the rammg balance of the Tenant
Improvement Overage (as adjusted for any approkiadges to the Work) less retainage of ten (109hefaggregate amount of the Tenant
Improvement Overage. Upon the final completionlbpanchlist items, Tenant shall promptly (but ia @vent more than thirty (30) days af
Tenant receives notice of such final completion) gpach retainage to Landlord. In the event of diéfafupayment of the Tenant Improvement
Overage, Landlord (in addition to all other remajlighall have the same rights as for an Event &deunder the Lease.

Construction Allowance. Landlord shall provide to Tenant a construcétiowance not to exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,0000)
(the “Construction Allowance”) to be applied towadha& Total Construction Costs, as adjusted foradmanges to the Work. The Construction
Allowance shall not be disbursed to Tenant in chshshall be applied by Landlord to the paymerthefTotal Construction Costs, if, as, and
when the cost of the Work is actually incurred aadl by Landlord. As to any remaining Constructidlowance balance, on or before
October 31, 2014, Tenant must (i) approve in wgitime total costs for and scope of any remainingk/ad (ii) pay to Landlord any
applicable Tenant Improvement Overage, and, if stechs (i) and (ii) are not completed by Tenandxstober 31, 2014, Tenant shall forfeit
any remaining Construction Allowance. The appramalem (i) above shall include, without limitatipienant’s written approval of (or
Tenant being deemed to have approved pursuang tetms hereof) the Space Plans, Working Drawimgsuding execution of a work order
agreement), Estimate and, as applicable, any ogénatipe Total Construction Costs in excess ofGbastruction Allowance.

Construction Management. Landlord or its agent shall supervise the Warkke disbursements required to be made to theamtat
and act as a liaison between the Contractor andiftemnd coordinate the relationship between thek\be Building and the Building’s
systems. In consideration for Landlasdionstruction supervision services, Tenant slalltp Landlord a construction supervision fee et
two percent (2%) of the Total Construction Costiolv supervision fee shall be deducted from thes@aotion Allowance.

Warranty . Tenant shall receive a minimum one-year warrémtyll work performed pursuant to this Exhibit, @ith such warranty
beginning on the date of Substantial Completiontaeitems and materials that are installed asgfahe work contemplated pursuant to
Exhibit G may be warranted by third parties beyond the mininame-year warranty period. Tenant shall receieebgnefit of all warranties
provided by labor and materials suppliers assotiadéh the work performed pursuant to this Exhibit either by Landlord performing the
warranted work at its sole cost and expense ordmdlord assigning such warranties to Tenant. Ifsargh warranties shall prohibit such an
assignment, Landlord shall enforce such warramtiesenant’s behalf at Landlord’s sole cost and espdo the extent allowable.

Construction Representatives Landlord’s and Tenant's representatives for dowation of construction and approval of change
orders will be as follows, provided that eithertpanay change its representative upon written edticthe other:

Landlord’s Representative Southpark Distribution Center, Ir
3090 Olive Street; Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219
Attn: Mike Jones

Tenant’'s Representative Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc.
4650 Shelby Drive
Memphis, Tennessee 38118
Attn: Scott Talley

[Separate Signature Page Attached]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto agree to the terms and conditis set forth in this Exhibit G
LANDLORD:

SOUTHPARK DISTRIBUTION CENTER,
INC ., a Maryland corporatio

By:

Title:

TENANT:

PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES,
INC ., a Delaware corporatic

By:

Title:




LEASE EXHIBIT H

This instrument prepared by:

Galil Livingston Mills

Burr & Forman LLP

420 North 20th Street

Suite 3400

Birmingham, Alabama 35203

SUBORDINATION, NON -DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

This Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornm&gteement (the “ Agreemefitis dated as of the _ day of ,
2014, among SYNOVUS BANK, a Georgia state bankioigparation, whose address is 800 Shades Creek Bygyl8uite 325, Birmingham,
Alabama 35209 (“ Lende), PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES, INC., a Delawamorporation, whose address is 505 Millennium
Drive, Allen, TX 75013 (* Tenant), and SOUTHPARK DISTRIBUTION CENTER, INC., a Mdand corporation., whose address is c/o
Mr. Robert T. Vicente, Executive Vice Presidentiwod Investment Properties, 3090 Olive StreefteS200, Dallas, Texas 75219 (*
Landlord"),

RECITALS

A. Lender has made a mortgage loan (thedn”) to the Landlord with respect to certain realpeay located in the Southpark
Distribution Center in Memphis, Shelby County, Tessee more particularly described in Exhibatéached hereto and made a part hereof
(such property, including the Premises, is herééma&ferred to as the * Propeffy The Loan is secured by that certain Deed osTand
Security Agreement recorded at Instrument No. 19Z2Jon October 2, 2012 with the Register of Dedddhelby County, Tennessee (as
amended from time to time, the * Mortgdeand that certain Assignment of Rents and Leasesrded at Instrument No. 12111973 on
October 2, 2012 with the Register of Deeds of Shé€lbunty, Tennessee (as amended from time to timee, Assignment of Leases and
Rents”). The Mortgage and the Assignment of Leases astRare hereinafter collectively referred to a&s“tBecurity Documents.

B. Pursuant to that certain Industrial le2Agreement dated August 31, 1999, as amendedabgéhtain Modification, Ratificatic
and Extension of Lease dated December 19, 2003¢cehi@in Second Modification, Ratification and &xsion of Lease dated June 3, 2008
and that certain Third Modification, RatificationdaExtension of Lease dated February __, 20140(asoslified and amended, and as same
may be hereinafter modified and amended, the “&8ashe Landlord is leasing to the Tenant a portddthe Property or the improvements
located thereon (the_* PremisBdsfor a term of 24 years and 6 months expiring Felyr@8, 2024, with one (1) option to extend saidséetern
for an additional period of five (5) years so ttied total or aggregate number of possible yearsusaid Lease is a total of twenty nine
(29) years six (6) months, at the rental and upertérms and conditions set forth in said Lease.

C. Lender requires the execution of thige®ement as a condition to Landlord and Tenantiegtéto the Lease.

AGREEMENT
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For mutual consideration, including the mutual cwas and agreements set forth below, the recetpsafficiency of which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agredlas/fo

1. Tenant agrees that the Lease is antil#halibject and subordinate to the lien of thauigcDocuments and to all pres:
or future advances under the obligations securedlly and all renewals, amendments, modificatiomissolidations, replacements and
extensions of the secured obligations and the 8gdwocuments, to the full extent of all amountswed by the Security Documents from
time to time. Said subordination is to have thes#&once and effect as if the Security Documentssuh renewals, modifications,
consolidations, replacements and extensions thaaebbeen executed, acknowledged, delivered awdded prior to the Lease, any
amendments or modifications thereof and any natieesof.

2. Lender agrees that, if the Lender esescany of its rights under the Security Documeént$uding an entry by Lender
pursuant to the Mortgage or a foreclosure of thetygme, Lender shall not disturb Tenanight of quiet possession of the Premises uriok
terms of the Lease so long as Tenant is not inultdi@yond any applicable grace, notice and curge of any term, covenant or condition
of the Lease.

3. Tenant agrees that, in the event ofectosure of the Mortgage by Lender or the acceygtarf a deed in lieu of
foreclosure by Lender or any other succession afleeto fee ownership, Tenant will attorn to antbgmize Lender as its landlord under the
Lease for the remainder of the term of the Leasdyding all extension periods which have beenrer@reafter exercised) upon the same
terms and conditions as are set forth in the Lesms@,Tenant hereby agrees to pay and perform #tleobbligations of Tenant pursuant to the
Lease.

4, Tenant agrees that, in the event Leadeceeds to the interest of Landlord under thed,daender shall not be:

€) liable for any act or omission of amppLandlord (including, without limitation, théaén defaulting Landlord)
which does not continue after Lender so succeetteetoterest of Landlord under the Lease providexder has received notice of such a
omission from Tenant as provided in Section 6 belmw

(b) subject to any defense or offsets wHiehant may have against any prior Landlord (inicigdwithout
limitation, the then defaulting Landlord) for anycé non-continuing defaults of the Landlord undher tease, or

(c) bound by any payment of rent or addi rent which Tenant might have paid for morentbae month in
advance of the due date under the Lease to anyl@aralord (including, without limitation, the thetefaulting Landlord), or

(d) bound by any obligation to make anymamt to Tenant which was required to be made poitie time Lender
succeeded to any prior Landlord’s interest, or

(e) accountable for any monies depositeat amy prior Landlord (including security deposie)cept to the extent
such monies are actually received by Lender, or

) bound by any surrender, terminationeagment or modification of the Lease made withbatdonsent of
Lender, other than for (a) a termination made biyaf¢ pursuant to any right or option of terminatpressly set forth in the Lease or (b) a
termination for any Landlord default that is notexi by Landlord within the applicable cure perigdsforth in the Lease, or under applicable
law or in equity, or by Lender in accordance witk provisions of Paragraph 6 below.

5. Tenant agrees that, notwithstanding@nyision hereof to the contrary, the terms of Martgage shall continue to
govern with respect to the disposition of any iaswwe proceeds or eminent domain awards, and aigatibhs of Landlord to restore the real
estate of which the Premises are a part shallfanss they apply to Lender, be limited to insuepooceeds or eminent domain awards
received by Lender after the deduction of all casts expenses incurred in obtaining such proceedwards.

6. Tenant hereby agrees to give to Lendpies of all notices of Landlord default(s) under Lease in the same manner as,
and whenever, Tenant shall give any such notiaet#ult to Landlord, and, as between Lender anaiiieonly, no such notice of default
shall be deemed given to Landlord unless and armdpy of such notice shall have been so delivierégnder. Lender shall have the right to
remedy any Landlord default under the Lease, oatse any default of Landlord under the Lease teimedied, and for such purpose Tel
hereby grants Lender such additional period of tamenay be reasonable to enable Lender to remedguse to be remedied, any such
default in addition to the period given to Landldod remedying, or causing to be remedied, any slefhult so long (A) as Lender (i) delivi
notice to Tenant within thirty (30) days of Tenandelivery of notice of such default to Lender ehider’s intention to commence such
proceedings, if any, as shall be required to okgaih necessary possession or control of the Ryoaeshall be required for Lender to cure
Landlord’s default, (i) Lender commences such
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proceedings within sixty (60) days of Tenant's dety of notice of such default to Lender and (i@nder thereafter prosecutes such
proceedings to completion with commercially reasdmand diligent efforts, and (B) Tenant’s notiod_ender pursuant to this paragraph
makes a specific reference to the conditions ofdees cure rights set forth in item (A) above. Teinshall accept performance by Lender of
any term, covenant, condition or agreement to bpred by Landlord under the Lease with the samneefand effect as though performed
by Landlord. Lender shall have the right, withoeh@nt's consent, to foreclose the Mortgage or teptca deed in lieu of foreclosure of the
Mortgage or to exercise any other remedies undeB#turity Documents. Notwithstanding anythinghis Agreement to the contrary, upon
the completion of any such foreclosure of the Mageg or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosteaant shall be deemed to have waived
such defaults of the prior Landlord, if any, whate incapable of cure by the Lender.

7. Tenant hereby consents to the Assighwfdreases and Rents from Landlord to Lender imeetion with the Loan.
Tenant acknowledges that the interest of the Laddloder the Lease is to be assigned to Lendelysadesecurity for the purposes specified
in said assignments, and Lender shall have no dabjlity or obligation whatsoever under the Leaseny extension or renewal thereof,
either by virtue of said assignments or by any sgbent receipt or collection of rents thereundeless Lender shall specifically undertake
such liability in writing or unless Lender or itegsignee or nominee becomes, and then only witlect$p periods in which Lender or its
designee or nominee becomes, the fee owner ofréreises. Tenant agrees that upon receipt of aanritotice from Lender of a default by
Landlord under the Loan, Tenant will thereaftereifjuested by Lender, pay rent to Lender in acem@avith the terms of the Lease. Land
agrees that any rent so paid to Lender shall benédé¢o be rent paid to Landlord for all purposethefLease.

8. The Lease shall not be assigned by Tenasdified, amended or terminated (except a teation or assignment that is
permitted in the Lease without Landlord’s consevithout Lender’s prior written consent in each amste. Lender agrees not to unreasonably
withhold, condition or delay its consent to anylspecoposed modification, amendment or assignmelurasas the same does not reduce the
rent or other payments due under the Lease, sfpetage of the Premises, or remaining term of thade.

9. Tenant shall look solely to the Premieesecovery of any judgment or damages from Lenile successors and assigns,
and neither Lender nor its successors or assigiktgilve any personal liability, directly or inditey, under or in connection with the Lease
this Agreement or any amendment or amendmentshereéhereof made at any time or times, heretadoteereafter, and Tenant hereby
forever and irrevocably waives and releases anyadirsdich personal liability. The limitation of bdity provided in this paragraph is in
addition to, and not in limitation of, any limitati on liability applicable to Tenant, its successamd assigns, provided by law or by any other
contract, agreement or instrument.

10. Landlord has joined in this Agreemeamntthe purpose of expressing its consent and agmeetm be bound by the
provisions hereof.

11. Any notice, election, communicaticgquest or other document or demand required orifiedunder this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed deliveredhe earlier to occur of (a) receipt or (b) théedaf delivery, refusal or nondelivery
indicated on the return receipt, if deposited ldrated States Postal Service Depository, postageaid, sent certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, or if sent via a recaghizommercial courier service providing for a rpgeaddressed to Tenant or Lender, as the
case may be, at the following addresses:

If to Tenant: Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc
505 Millennium Drive
Allen, TX 75013
Attn: Chief Financial Office

If to Lender, to: Synovus Banl
800 Shades Creek Parkw
Suite 32&
Birmingham, Alabama 352(
Attention: Daniel Harringtol

With a copy to Burr & Forman LLP
420 North 20th Stree
Suite 340(
Birmingham, Alabama 352(
Attn: Gail Livingston Mills

If to Landlord to: Southpark Distribution Center, In
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c/o Mr. Robert T. Vicent
Executive Vice Presidel
Hillwood Investment Propertie
3090 Olive Stree

Suite 20C

Dallas, Texas 7521

With a copy to Haynes and Boone, LL
2323 Victory Avenue
Suite 70C
Dallas, TX 7521-7673
Attn: Sue P. Murph

12. The term " Lendéras used herein includes any successor or aséitye mamed Lender herein, including without
limitation, any co-lender at the time of making th@an, any purchaser at a foreclosure sale andrangferee pursuant to a deed in lieu of
foreclosure, and their successors and assignghartdrms “ Tenaritand “ Landlord” as used herein include any successor and asékie o
named Tenant and Landlord herein, respectivelywigeal, however, that such reference to Tenantlsaodlord’s successors and assigns <
not be construed as Lender’s consent to any assigihon other transfer by Tenant or Landlord.

13. If any provision of this Agreement Eldhto be invalid or unenforceable by a court ahpetent jurisdiction, such
provision shall be deemed modified to the exteereary to be enforceable, or if such modificaisomot practicable, such provision shall be
deemed deleted from this Agreement, and the ottosigions of this Agreement shall remain in fulide and effect, and shall be liberally
construed in favor of Lender.

14. Neither this Agreement nor any oftifrens hereof may be terminated, amended, supplechentived or modified
orally, but only by an instrument in writing exeedtby the party against which enforcement of thaiteation, amendment, supplement,
waiver or modification is sought.

13. This Agreement shall be construed soetance with the laws of the state in which theperty is located.

14. This Agreement and all of the covenaetsns, conditions and obligations herein contiaee covenants running with
the land (the Property and the Premises) and hjnitiiereon and shall be binding upon and shall itmthe benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective successors and assigns and socs@ssitle to the Premises and successors inttitthe Property.

[Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank]




WITNESS the execution hereof as of the date fiosiva written.
LENDER:

SYNOVUS BANK,
a Georgia state banking corporat

By:
Print name
Title:
STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public ofState and County aforesaid, personally appeared , with whom | am

personally acquainted (or proved to me on the lEsatisfactory evidence), and who, upon oathnaskedged himself to be the
of Synovus Bank, a Georgia state banking corparattee within named bargainor, and that he as sffider executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contained,idpyirsg the name of Synovus Bank, by himself as of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and seal, at office in , , this day of , 2014,

Notary Public
[NOTARIAL SEAL] My Commission Expires:

TENANT:
PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES, INC.,a Delaware cantior

By:
Print name
Title:
STATE OF )
COUNTY OF )
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public ofState and County aforesaid, personally appeared , With whom | am
personally acquainted (or proved to me on the Esatisfactory evidence), and who, upon oathnaskedged himself to be the
of Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., a Delawarerporation, the within named bargainor, and tleaa$ such executed the
foregoing instrument for the purposes therein doeth by signing the name of , by himself as of said corporation.
WITNESS my hand and seal, at office in , , this day of , 2014.
Notary Public
[NOTARIAL SEAL] My Commission Expires




LANDLORD:

SOUTHPARK DISTRIBUTION
CENTER, INC ., a Maryland corporatio

By:
Print name
Title:
STATE OF TEXAS )
COUNTY OF DALLAS )
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public ofSta#e and County aforesaid, personally appeared , with whom | am

personally acquainted (or proved to me on the lEsatisfactory evidence), and who, upon oathnaskedged himself to be the
of Southpark Distribution Center, Inc., a Marylazaporation, the within named bargainor, and tleaas such officer executed the foregoing

instrument for the purposes therein contained,dpyirsg the name of Southpark Distribution Centac. ) by himself as of said
corporation.
WITNESS my hand and seal, at office in Dallas, Bexhis day of , 2014.

Notary Public
[NOTARIAL SEAL] My Commission Expires
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lots 4,5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, Phase Two, Southjpahlistrial Subdivision, First Addition, as shown glat of record in Plat Book 151, Page 73,
in the Register’s Office, Shelby County, Tennesse®hich plat reference is hereby made for a npargicular description of said property.

Together with easement for ingress and egressraaioed in Reciprocal Easement Agreement of retohdstrument FD 8806, in the
Register’s Office, Shelby County, Tennessee, aotal.

Together with Driveway Easements as contained tifRecal Easement Agreement of record in InstrunBn¥7311, in the Registes’Office,
Shelby County, Tennessee, as to Lots 4, 5 and 6.

Together with easements for ingress and egressndsiced in Access and Road Easement Agreemeatofd in Instrument EE7037, in the
Register’s Office, Shelby County, Tennessee, aot®.

Together with easements for ingress and egressnasiced in Special Warranty Deed of record inrbnsient EA 9544, in the Register’s
Office, Shelby County, Tennessee, as to Lot 10.

Being the same property conveyed to Southpark ibigton Center, Inc., a Maryland corporation, bye8ipl Warranty Deed of record in
Instrument 12077759, in the Register’s Office, Bpeounty, Tennessee.
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Name Jurisdiction
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc Delaware
Priority Fulfilment Services of Canada, Ir Ontario
PFSweb BV SPRL (f/k/a Priority Fulfillment ServicEsrope, B.V..Belgium
Business Supplies Distributors Holdings, L Delaware
Supplies Distributors, Inc Delaware
Supplies Distributors of Canada, It Ontario
Supplies Distributors S./ Belgium
PFSweb Retail Connect, In Delaware

PFSweb Philippines Services, LIl Philippines

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 31, 2014 keispect to the consolidated financial statemientee Annual Report
PFSweb, Inc. on Form 1K-for the year ended December 31, 2013. We herehgant to the incorporation by reference of
report in the Registration Statements of PFSwedb, dn Forms S-8 (File Nos. 333-164973, effectiverkary 18, 2010; 333-
128486, effective September 21, 2005; 333-75764dci@fe December 21, 2001; 333-75772, effectiveddduer 21, 2001; 333-
46096, effective September 19, 2000; 333-4218@&ctffe July 25, 2000; and 333-40020, effective JABe 2000) and ol

Forms S-3 (File Nos. 333-164971, effective Februdy2010; 333-135794, effective July 17, 2006; 3888110853, effectiv
December 1, 2003).

/sl GRANT THRONTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Michael Willoughby, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16FRFSweb, Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not aoatay untrue statement of a material fact or dmgtate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading wi
respect to the periods covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)}Hnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined i
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrégistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutas tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report istg prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahagorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting princjj

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntbi report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumréhis report based on
such evaluatior

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’'s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an a@aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; €

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andadve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardigdctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summarare report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedyunanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 31, 2014

By: /s/ MICHAEL WILLOUGHBY
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Thomas Madden, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16FRFSweb, Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not aoatay untrue statement of a material fact or dmgtate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading wi
respect to the periods covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)}Hnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined i
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrégistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutas tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report istg prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahagorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting princjj

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntbi report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumréhis report based on
such evaluatior

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’'s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an a@aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; €

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andadve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardigdctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summarare report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedyunanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 31, 2014

By: /sl THOMAS J. MADDEN
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba®etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Seti350, Chapter 63 of Tit
18, United States Code), each of the undersigrfezecd of PFSweb, Inc. (the “Company”), does heresxify that:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddnber 31, 2013 (the “Form 10-K”) of the Compauiiyf
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)%(d), as applicable, of the Securities ExchangeoAt934 and the
information contained in the Form XOfairly presents, in all material respects, theaficial condition and results of operation
the Company as of, and for, the periods presentéei Form 10-K.

March 31, 201« /s/ Michael Willoughby
Michael Willoughby
Chief Executive Office

March 31, 201« /s/ Thomas J. Madde
Thomas J. Madde
Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 60182)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sciiisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States
Code) and, accordingly, is not being filed as pathe Form 10-K for purposes of Section 18 of $®eurities Exchange Act of
1934, as whether made before or after the dateheegardless of any general incorporation languagsuch filing.

A signed original of this written statement reqdifiy Section 906 has been provided to PFSwebahltwill be retained by
PFSweb, Inc. and furnished to the Securities arah&xge Commission or its staff upon requ



